SCHLUMBERGER LTD /NV/ Form S-4/A July 16, 2010 Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 16, 2010

Registration No. 333-166326

## **UNITED STATES**

## SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

**AMENDMENT NO. 2** 

TO

FORM S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT

Under

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

# SCHLUMBERGER N.V. (SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED)

 $(Exact\ name\ of\ registrant\ as\ specified\ in\ its\ charter)$ 

Netherlands Antilles (State or other jurisdiction of

1389 (Primary Standard Industrial **52-0684746** (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization)

Classification Code Number)

**Identification Number)** 

42, rue Saint-Dominique

Paris, France 75007

33-1-4062-1000

5599 San Felipe, 17th Floor

Houston, Texas 77056

(713) 513-2000

Parkstraat 83, The Hague

The Netherlands, 2514 JG

31-70-310-54003000

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant s principal executive offices)

Alexander C. Juden

**General Counsel and Secretary** 

**Schlumberger Limited** 

5599 San Felipe, 17th Floor

Houston, Texas 77056

(713) 513-2000

 $(Name, address, including \ zip\ code, and\ telephone\ number, including\ area\ code, of\ agent\ for\ service)$ 

Copies to:

J. David Kirkland, Jr.

Daniel A. Neff

M. Breen Haire

**David Shapiro** 

Baker Botts L.L.P.

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz

One Shell Plaza

51 West 52nd Street

910 Louisiana

New York, New York 10019

Houston, Texas 77002

(212) 403-1000

(713) 229-1234

**Approximate date of commencement of the proposed sale of the securities to the public:** As soon as practicable after this registration statement becomes effective and upon completion of the merger described in the enclosed document.

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box.

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act:

Large accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer " (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

If applicable, place an X in the box to designate the appropriate rule provision relied upon in conducting this transaction:

Accelerated filer
Smaller reporting company

Exchange Act Rule 13e-4(i) (Cross-Border Issuer Tender Offer) "

Exchange Act Rule 14d-1(d) (Cross-Border Third-Party Tender Offer) "

#### CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Amount of
Title of each class of Securities to be registered Common stock, par value \$0.01 per share Securities to Securities to

- (1) Represents the maximum number of shares of common stock, par value of \$0.01 per share, of Schlumberger Limited to be issuable upon the completion of the merger described herein, equal to the product of (i) 255,013,439, the number of shares of Smith International, Inc. common stock outstanding on April 21, 2010 (other than shares owned by Smith International, Inc., the registrant and any of their respective subsidiaries) or issuable pursuant to outstanding stock options and restricted stock units, multiplied by (ii) the exchange ratio of 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger Limited common stock for each share of Smith International, Inc. common stock.
- (2) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee required by Section 6(b) of the Securities Act and calculated pursuant to Rules 457(f) and 457(c) under the Securities Act. The proposed maximum aggregate offering price of the registrant's common stock was calculated based upon the market value of shares of Smith International, Inc. common stock (the securities to be canceled in the merger) in accordance with Rule 457(c) and is equal to the product of (i) \$45.24, the average of the high and low prices per share of Smith International, Inc. common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on April 20, 2010, multiplied by (ii) 255,013,439, the maximum number of shares of Smith International, Inc. common stock that may be canceled and exchanged in the merger as of April 21, 2010.
- (3) Calculated pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Securities Act and SEC Fee Advisory #4 for Fiscal Year 2010 at a rate equal to \$71.30 per \$1,000,000 of the proposed maximum aggregate offering price.
- (4) Previously paid in connection with the initial filing of this registration statement on April 27, 2010.

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act or until this registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to Section 8(a), may determine.

Information contained herein is subject to completion or amendment. A registration statement relating to these securities has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior to the time the registration statement becomes effective. This proxy statement/prospectus shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful.

## **SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED JULY 16, 2010**

#### MERGER PROPOSAL YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

To the stockholders of Smith International, Inc.:

The board of directors of Schlumberger Limited (Schlumberger N.V.) and the board of directors of Smith International, Inc. have agreed to a strategic combination pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 21, 2010, which we refer to as the merger agreement. Upon completion of the merger of a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger with and into Smith, Schlumberger will acquire Smith, and Smith will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger.

If the merger is completed, Smith stockholders will have the right to receive 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock for each share of Smith common stock, with cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. This exchange ratio is fixed and will not be adjusted to reflect stock price changes prior to closing of the merger. Based on the closing price of Schlumberger common stock on the New York Stock Exchange, or the NYSE, on February 18, 2010, the last trading day before various news outlets began reporting on a possible transaction involving Smith and Schlumberger, the 0.6966 exchange ratio represented approximately \$45.84 in value for each share of Smith common stock. Based on the closing price of Schlumberger common stock on July 15, 2010, the most recent practicable trading day before the date of this document, the 0.6966 exchange ratio represented approximately \$40.87 in value for each share of Smith common stock.

Based on the number of shares of Smith common stock and Smith restricted stock units outstanding as of July 14, 2010, Schlumberger expects to issue approximately 175,903,891 shares of its common stock to Smith stockholders pursuant to the merger and reserve for issuance approximately 740,333 additional shares of Schlumberger common stock in connection with the exercise or conversion of Smith s outstanding equity awards. Upon completion of the merger, we estimate that current Schlumberger shareholders will own approximately 87.2% of the combined company and former Smith stockholders will own approximately 12.8% of the combined company. Schlumberger common stock and Smith common stock are both traded on the NYSE under the symbols SLB and SII, respectively.

At the annual meeting of Smith stockholders, Smith stockholders will be asked to vote on the adoption of the merger agreement. We cannot complete the merger unless the Smith stockholders approve this proposal. Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares you own. Whether or not you expect to attend the annual meeting in person, please vote your shares as promptly as possible by (1) accessing the internet website specified on your proxy card, (2) calling the toll-free number specified on your proxy card, or (3) signing and returning all proxy cards that you receive in the postage-paid envelope provided, so that your shares may be represented and voted at the Smith annual meeting. Please note that a failure to vote your shares is the equivalent of a vote against the merger.

Smith stockholders will also be asked to vote on several other proposals, including the election of three Smith directors, James Gibbs, Duane Radtke and John Yearwood; approval of Smith s 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated; the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010; and approval of the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the annual meeting. The completion of the merger is not dependent on the outcome of any of these proposals.

The Smith board of directors, by a unanimous vote, recommends that Smith stockholders vote FOR the proposal to adopt the merger agreement, FOR each of the director nominees and FOR the other proposals to be submitted to the stockholders at the Smith annual meeting.

The obligations of Smith and Schlumberger to complete the merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of several conditions set forth in the merger agreement. More information about Smith, Schlumberger and the merger is contained in this proxy statement/prospectus. Smith and Schlumberger encourage you to read this entire proxy statement/prospectus carefully, including the section entitled Risk Factors beginning on page 23.

We at Smith look forward to the successful combination of Smith and Schlumberger.

Sincerely,

John Yearwood

Chief Executive Officer, President

and Chief Operating Officer

Smith International, Inc.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the securities to be issued under the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus or determined that the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The accompanying proxy statement/prospectus is dated July 20, 2010 and is first being mailed to the stockholders of Smith International, Inc. on or about July 27, 2010.

#### 1310 Rankin Road

#### Houston, Texas 77073

(281) 443-3370

#### NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

#### TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 24, 2010

To Our Stockholders:

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Smith International, Inc. will be held on Tuesday, August 24, 2010, at 9:00 a.m. local time, at the Hotel du Pont, 11th and Market Streets, Wilmington, Delaware, to consider and take action on the following:

- 1. Approval of a proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 21, 2010, as it may be amended from time to time, among Schlumberger Limited, Turnberry Merger Sub Inc., and Smith International, Inc., a copy of which is attached as Annex A to the proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice;
- 2. Election of three Class III directors: James R. Gibbs, Duane C. Radtke and John Yearwood, each for a term of three years ending at the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their successors are duly elected and qualified;
- 3. Approval of the Smith International, Inc. 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated;
- 4. Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010;
- 5. Approval of the adjournment of Smith s annual meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the annual meeting; and
- 6. Conducting any other business as may properly come before Smith s annual meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Please refer to the proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice for further information with respect to the business to be transacted at Smith s annual meeting.

Smith s board of directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, FOR each of the director nominees, and FOR each of the other proposals described in the proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholder Meeting to Be Held on August 24, 2010: This proxy statement and the Smith 2009 Annual Report to Stockholders are available on the following website: www.proxydocs.com/sii.

The Smith board of directors has fixed the close of business on July 26, 2010 as the record date for determining stockholders who are entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting. Only holders of record of Smith common stock at the close of business on the record date are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the Smith annual meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Richard E. Chandler, Jr.

Secretary

Houston, Texas

July 20, 2010

#### YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT.

Please vote your proxy promptly so that your shares will be represented, even if you plan to attend the annual meeting. You can vote by internet, by telephone, or by using the proxy card that is enclosed. Please see your proxy card for specific instructions on how to vote. Brokers cannot vote on Proposals 1, 2 or 3 without your instructions.

The proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice provides a detailed description of the merger, the Agreement and Plan of Merger and the other matters to be considered at the Smith annual meeting. You are urged to read the entire proxy statement/prospectus, including the annexes and other documents referred to therein.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

OUTCOMONG AND ANGMEDS ADOLOGOUS MEDICED AND THE SAMELIA AND TH	Page
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER AND THE SMITH ANNUAL MEETING	I
SUMMARY	7
The Companies	7
The Merger	7
Annual Meeting of Smith Stockholders	8
Schlumberger Stockholder Approval Is Not Required	10
Share Ownership of Smith s Directors and Executive Officers	10
Treatment of Equity Awards	10
Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor	10
Ownership of Schlumberger After the Merger	11
Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger	11
Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock	11
No Appraisal Rights	11
Completion of the Merger Is Subject to Certain Conditions	11
Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger	12
No Solicitation by Smith	13
Termination of the Merger Agreement	13
Termination Fees and Expenses	14
Payment of Dividends and Stock Repurchases	15
Rights of Smith Stockholders Will Change as a Result of the Merger	15
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	15
Accounting Treatment	16
Litigation Relating to the Merger	16
Recent Developments	17
Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Schlumberger	18
Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Smith	19
Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information	20
Comparative Per Share Data	21
Comparative Per Share Market Price And Dividend Information	22
RISK FACTORS	23
Risks Relating to the Merger	23
Risks Relating to Schlumberger Following the Merger	25
Risks Relating to Schlumberger Common Stock Following the Merger	27
Risks Relating to Schlumberger and Smith	28
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	29
THE COMPANIES	31
THE ANNUAL MEETING	32
Date, Time and Place	32
Purpose of the Smith Annual Meeting	32
Smith Record Date; Stock Entitled to Vote	32
Quorum Daniella	32
Required Vote	33
Treatment of Abstentions, Not Voting and Incomplete Proxies	33
Voting of Proxies by Holders of Record	34
Shares Held in Street Name	34

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)**

Participants in Smith a Benefit Plans   35   35   35   35   35   35   35   3		Page
Solicitation of Proxies  PROPOSALS  Proposal I. Adoption of the Merger Agreement Proposal I. Election of Directors Proposal I. Election of Directors Proposal 3: Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated Proposal 3: Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated Proposal 3: Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as Smith. s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary John Statistics John	Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a Smith Stockholder s Vote	35
PROPOSALS Proposal 1; Adoption of the Merger Agreement Proposal 2; Election of Directors Proposal 3. Election of Directors Proposal 3. Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated Proposal 3. Approval of the Appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary Other Business  THE MERGER  Background of the Merger Smith s Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary THE MERGER  Background of the Merger Smith s Prinancial Advisor  46  Cominion of Smith s Financial Advisor  47  48  Comment of Smith s Prinancial Advisor  49  Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger Approval of Smith s Prinancial Advisor  55  No Appraisal Rights Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock Static Orden S	Participants in Smith s Benefit Plans	35
PROPOSALS Proposal 1; Adoption of the Merger Agreement Proposal 2; Election of Directors Proposal 3. Election of Directors Proposal 3. Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated Proposal 3. Approval of the Appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary Other Business  THE MERGER  Background of the Merger Smith s Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary THE MERGER  Background of the Merger Smith s Prinancial Advisor  46  Cominion of Smith s Financial Advisor  47  48  Comment of Smith s Prinancial Advisor  49  Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger Approval of Smith s Prinancial Advisor  55  No Appraisal Rights Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock Static of Schlumberger Stock Static Orden S	Solicitation of Proxies	35
Proposal 2: Election of Directors   36		36
Proposal 2: Election of Directors   36		26
Proposal 3: Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated Proposal 4: Ratification of the Appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith is Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 77 Orber Plusiness 78 Orber Business 79 Orber Business 70 Orber Business 70 Orber Business 71 THE MERGER 80 Background of the Merger 81 Background of the Merger 82 Background of the Merger 83 Background of the Merger 84 Opinion of Smith is Financial Advisor 84 Opinion of Smith is Financial Advisor 85 Opinion of Smith is Pinancial Advisor 86 Opinion of Smith is Pinancial Advisor 87 Opinion of Smith is Pinancial Advisor 88 Intensis of Smith is Pinancial Advisor 89 Opinion of Smith is Pinancial Advisor 80 Opi	<del></del>	
Proposal 4: Ratification of the Appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary 37 THE MERGER 38 Background of the Merger 46 Smith a Reasons for the Merger. Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors 43 Smith a Reasons for the Merger 46 Opinion of Smith a Financial Advisor 46 Inancial Projections 46 Inancial Projections 46 Inancial Projections 47 Inancial Projections 58 Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger 48 Recounting Treatment 48 Inancial U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences 49 Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger 49 Inancial Projections 40 Integrated 40 ITHE MERGER AGREEMENT 46 Representations. Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures 51 Integrated 61 Integrated 61 Integrated 62 Integrated 63 Integrated 64 Integrated	<del></del>	
Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary 37 Other Business 38 THE MERGER 38 Background of the Merger 38 Smith a Reasons for the Merger. Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors 38 Smith a Reasons for the Merger and Advisor 40 Cipnion of Smith a Financial Advisor 46 Financial Projections 47 Interests of Smith a Directors and Officers in the Merger 48 Opinion of Smith a Financial Advisor 49 Financial Projections 40 Financial Projections 41 Financial Projections 40 Financi		
Other Business 37 THE MERGER 38 Background of the Merger 38 Background of the Merger 48 Snith a Reasons for the Merger. Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors 43 Snith a Reasons for the Merger 46 Opinion of Smith a Financial Advisor 46 Financial Projections 57 Interests of Smith a Directors and Officers in the Merger 57 No Appraisal Rights 57 Interests of Smith a Directors and Officers in the Merger 57 No Appraisal Rights 58 Ististing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock 58 Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger 58 Accounting Treatment 58 Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences 59 Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger 63 Litigation Relating to the Merger 64 THE MERGER AGREEMENT 65 Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures 66 Structure of the Merger 66 Structure of the Merger 66 Structure of the Merger 76 Fractional Shares 76 Fractional Shares 76 Fractional Shares 77 Fractment of Equity Awards 77 Fractment of Equity Awards 77 Fractment of Equity Awards 77 Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books 77 Withholding Taxes 78 Withholding Taxes 79 Conditions to the Merger 77 Termination, Amendment and Waiver 78 UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 79 COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS 79	•	
THE MERGER  Background of the Merger  Seasons for the Merger: Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors  As Smith's Reasons for the Merger Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors  As Schlumberger's Reasons for the Merger  As Spanith's Financial Advisor  As Dipinion of Smith's Financial Advisor  As Directors and Officers in the Merger  As Apparisal Rights  Interests of Smith's Directors and Officers in the Merger  As Apparisal Rights  Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock  As Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger  As Accounting Treatment  Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences  Regulatory Approxals Required for the Merger  As Accounting Treatment  Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences  Regulatory Approxals Required for the Merger  As Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences  Regulatory Approxals Required for the Merger  As Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences  Regulatory Approxals Required for the Merger  As Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences  Regulatory Approxals Required for the Merger  As Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  As Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  As Representations and Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  As Accounting the Merger  As Representations and Warranties  As Represe		
Background of the Merger         38           Smith s Reasons for the Merger Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors         43           Schlumberger s Reasons for the Merger         46           Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor         46           Financial Projections         53           Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger         55           No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public         56           Disclosures         66           Effective Time: Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Freatment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68 <td>Other Business</td> <td>37</td>	Other Business	37
Smith s Reasons for the Merger: Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors         43           Schlumberger s Reasons for the Merger         46           Oppinion of Smith s Financial Advisor         53           Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger         55           No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations. Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures         66           Suructure of the Merger         66           Effective Time: Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         68           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conditions to the Merger	THE MERGER	38
Schlumberger s Reasons for the Merger         46           Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor         46           Financial Projections         53           Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger         55           No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         64           Representations. Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time; Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Freational Shares         67           Treatment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares, Stock Transfer Books         67           Representations and Warranties         68           Representations and Warranties         68	Background of the Merger	38
Schlumberger s Reasons for the Merger         46           Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor         46           Financial Projections         53           Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger         55           No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time: Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Freational Shares         67           Treatment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Representations and Warranties         68	Smith s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors	43
Financial Projections         53           Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger         55           No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         38           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time; Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Treatment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agr	Schlumberger s Reasons for the Merger	46
Interests of Smith a Directors and Officers in the Merger         55           No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public         66           Disclosures         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time; Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Fractional Shares         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         78           UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CO	Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor	46
Interests of Smith a Directors and Officers in the Merger         55           No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public         66           Disclosures         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time; Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Fractional Shares         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         78           UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CO	Financial Projections	53
No Appraisal Rights         58           Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public         66           Disclosures         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time: Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Teratment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares: Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conditions to the Merger         77           Termination, Amendment and Waiver         78		55
Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock         58           Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time; Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conditions to the Merger         77           Termination, Amendment and Waiver         78           UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         80           COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS         92		58
Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger         58           Accounting Treatment         58           Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences         59           Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger         63           Litigation Relating to the Merger         64           THE MERGER AGREEMENT         66           Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public         66           Disclosures         66           Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time; Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Treatment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conditions to the Merger         78           UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         80           COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS         92		58
Accounting Treatment  Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences  Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger  63 Litigation Relating to the Merger  64  THE MERGER AGREEMENT  66  Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  67  Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  67  Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  68  Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  68  Effective Time, Closing  69  Merger Consideration  67  Fractional Shares  67  Fractional Shares  67  Fractional Shares  67  Fractional Shares  67  Withholding Taxes  68  Representations and Warranties  68  Representations and Warranties  68  Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time  69  Certain Additional Agreements  70  Conditions to the Merger  71  Termination, Amendment and Waiver  UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  80  COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS		
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences59Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger63Litigation Relating to the Merger64THE MERGER AGREEMENT66Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as PublicDisclosures66Structure of the Merger66Effective Time; Closing66Merger Consideration67Fractional Shares67Treatment of Equity Awards67Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books67Withholding Taxes68Representations and Warranties68Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time69Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92	<del>-</del> <del>-</del>	
Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger63Litigation Relating to the Merger64THE MERGER AGREEMENT66Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as PublicDisclosures66Structure of the Merger66Effective Time: Closing66Merger Consideration67Fractional Shares67Treatment of Equity Awards67Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books67Withholding Taxes68Representations and Warranties68Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time69Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92		
Litigation Relating to the Merger64THE MERGER AGREEMENT66Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public56Disclosures66Structure of the Merger66Effective Time: Closing66Merger Consideration67Fractional Shares67Treatment of Equity Awards67Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books67Withholding Taxes68Representations and Warranties68Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time69Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92		
THE MERGER AGREEMENT  Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  Structure of the Merger  Effective Time; Closing  Merger Consideration  Fractional Shares  67  Fractional Shares  67  Treatment of Equity Awards  67  Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books  67  Withholding Taxes  Representations and Warranties  68  Representations and Warranties  69  Certain Additional Agreements  70  Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time  69  Certain Additional Agreements  70  Termination, Amendment and Waiver  UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  80  COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS	<del> </del>	
Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures  Structure of the Merger  Effective Time; Closing  Merger Consideration  Fractional Shares  Treatment of Equity Awards  Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books  Withholding Taxes  Representations and Warranties  Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time  Certain Additional Agreements  Conditions to the Merger  Termination, Amendment and Waiver  UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS  666  677  678  679  670  670  670  670  670  670  670	<del></del>	
Disclosures       66         Structure of the Merger       66         Effective Time; Closing       66         Merger Consideration       67         Fractional Shares       67         Treatment of Equity Awards       67         Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books       67         Withholding Taxes       68         Representations and Warranties       68         Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time       69         Certain Additional Agreements       72         Conditions to the Merger       77         Termination, Amendment and Waiver       78         UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS       80         COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS       92	THE MERGER AGREEMENT	66
Structure of the Merger         66           Effective Time; Closing         66           Merger Consideration         67           Fractional Shares         67           Treatment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conditions to the Merger         77           Termination, Amendment and Waiver         78           UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         80           COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS         92		
Effective Time; Closing       66         Merger Consideration       67         Fractional Shares       67         Treatment of Equity Awards       67         Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books       67         Withholding Taxes       68         Representations and Warranties       68         Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time       69         Certain Additional Agreements       72         Conditions to the Merger       77         Termination, Amendment and Waiver       78         UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS       80         COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS       92		
Merger Consideration67Fractional Shares67Treatment of Equity Awards67Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books67Withholding Taxes68Representations and Warranties68Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time69Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92		
Fractional Shares         67           Treatment of Equity Awards         67           Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books         67           Withholding Taxes         68           Representations and Warranties         68           Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time         69           Certain Additional Agreements         72           Conditions to the Merger         77           Termination, Amendment and Waiver         78           UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         80           COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS         92		
Treatment of Equity Awards  Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books  Withholding Taxes  Representations and Warranties  Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time  Certain Additional Agreements  Conditions to the Merger  Termination, Amendment and Waiver  UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS  67  68  68  69  69  69  69  69  69  69  69		
Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books       67         Withholding Taxes       68         Representations and Warranties       68         Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time       69         Certain Additional Agreements       72         Conditions to the Merger       77         Termination, Amendment and Waiver       78         UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS       80         COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS       92	Fractional Shares	67
Withholding Taxes68Representations and Warranties68Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time69Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92		67
Representations and Warranties68Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time69Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92	Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books	67
Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time69Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92	Withholding Taxes	68
Certain Additional Agreements72Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92	Representations and Warranties	68
Conditions to the Merger77Termination, Amendment and Waiver78UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS80COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS92	Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time	69
Termination, Amendment and Waiver  UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS  92	Certain Additional Agreements	72
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS  92	Conditions to the Merger	77
COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS 92	Termination, Amendment and Waiver	78
	UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	80
DESCRIPTION OF SCHLUMBERGER S CAPITAL STOCK 100	COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS	92
	DESCRIPTION OF SCHLUMBERGER S CAPITAL STOCK	100

ii

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)**

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS OF SMITH	Page 103
Nominees Directors Continuing in Office	103 103
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	106
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	108
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	112
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE REPORT	121
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	122
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION FOR FISCAL 2009	133
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT SMITH S DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	134
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION	135
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	136
APPROVAL OF 1989 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN, AS AMENDED AND RESTATED	137
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP AS INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR SMITH	141
SMITH ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION	142
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS	143
EXPERTS	143
LEGAL MATTERS	144
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	144
LIST OF ANNEXES	
Annex A Agreement and Plan of Merger  Annex B Opinion of UBS Securities LLC  Annex C Smith International, Inc. 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated	A-1 B-1 C-1

iii

#### QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER AND THE SMITH ANNUAL MEETING

The following are some questions that you, as a stockholder of Smith, may have regarding the merger and the annual meeting, and brief answers to those questions. You are urged to read carefully this proxy statement/prospectus and the other documents referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus in their entirety because this section may not provide all of the information that is important to you with respect to the merger and the annual meeting. Additional important information is contained in the annexes to, and the documents incorporated by reference into, this proxy statement/prospectus.

Questions About the Merger

#### Q: Why am I receiving this document?

A: Schlumberger and Smith have agreed to combine under the terms of a merger agreement that is described in this proxy statement/prospectus. A copy of the merger agreement is attached as Annex A. In order to complete the merger, Smith stockholders must vote to adopt the merger agreement. Smith will submit this proposal to its stockholders at its annual meeting.

At the annual meeting, Smith stockholders will be asked to vote on several other proposals, including the election of James Gibbs, Duane Radtke and John Yearwood as directors of Smith; approval of Smith s 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated; the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010; and the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement.

This document contains important information about the merger and the meeting of the stockholders of Smith, and you should read it carefully. The enclosed voting materials allow you to vote your shares without attending the annual meeting.

Your vote is important. We encourage you to vote as soon as possible.

## Q: What will happen in the merger?

A: Schlumberger and Smith have agreed to a merger, pursuant to which Turnberry Merger Sub Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger that was formed for the purpose of the merger, will be merged with and into Smith. Smith will be the surviving corporation in the merger and will be a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger following completion of the merger.

In the merger, Schlumberger will issue shares of Schlumberger common stock as the consideration to be paid to holders of Smith common stock. Following the merger, Smith will cease to be a publicly held corporation and will be a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger.

#### Q: Why am I being asked to adopt the merger agreement?

A: In order to complete the merger, Smith stockholders must vote to adopt the merger agreement. This document is being delivered to you as both a proxy statement of Smith and a prospectus of Schlumberger in connection with the merger. It is the proxy statement by which the Smith board of directors is soliciting proxies from you to vote on certain matters, including the adoption of the merger agreement, at the annual meeting or at any adjournment or postponement of the annual meeting. It is also the prospectus by which Schlumberger is offering the Schlumberger common stock to be issued to you in the merger.

### Q: What will I receive in the merger?

A: If the merger is completed, each of your shares of Smith common stock will be cancelled and converted automatically into the right to receive 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock. You will receive cash for any fractional shares of Schlumberger common stock that you would otherwise receive in the merger.

1

#### **Table of Contents**

Based on the closing price of Schlumberger common stock on the NYSE on February 18, 2010, the last trading day before various news outlets began reporting on a possible transaction involving Smith and Schlumberger, the merger consideration represented approximately \$45.84 in value for each share of Smith common stock. Based on the closing price of Schlumberger common stock on the NYSE on July 15, 2010, the most recent practicable trading day prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the merger consideration represented approximately \$40.87 in value for each share of Smith common stock. The market price of Schlumberger common stock will fluctuate prior to the merger, and the market price of Schlumberger common stock when received by Smith stockholders after the merger is completed could be greater or less than the current market price of Schlumberger common stock. See Risk Factors beginning on page 23 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

#### Q: What happens if the merger is not completed?

A: If the merger agreement is not adopted by Smith stockholders or if the merger is not completed for any other reason, you will not receive any payment for your shares of Smith common stock in connection with the merger. Instead, Smith will remain an independent public company and Smith common stock will continue to be listed and traded on the NYSE. If the merger agreement is terminated under specified circumstances, Smith may be required to pay Schlumberger a termination fee of \$340 million, or Schlumberger may be required to pay Smith a termination fee of \$615 million, as described under The Merger Agreement Termination, Amendment and Waiver Fees and Expenses beginning on page 79 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

#### Q: Will I continue to receive future dividends?

- A: Before completion of the merger, Smith expects to continue to pay its regular quarterly cash dividends on shares of its common stock, which currently are \$0.12 per share of Smith common stock. However, Smith and Schlumberger will coordinate the timing of dividend declarations leading up to the merger so that a holder will neither receive two dividends, nor fail to receive one dividend, for any quarter. Receipt of the regular quarterly dividend will not reduce the merger consideration you receive. After completion of the merger, you will be entitled only to dividends on any shares of Schlumberger common stock you receive in the merger. Although Schlumberger provides no assurances as to the level or payment of any future dividends on shares of its common stock, and Schlumberger s board of directors has the power to modify its dividend policy at any time, Schlumberger currently pays dividends at a quarterly rate of \$0.21 per share of Schlumberger common stock.
- Q: Does the Smith board of directors recommend that stockholders adopt the merger agreement?
- A: Yes, the Smith board of directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the adoption of the merger agreement.
- Q: What happens if I sell my shares after the record date but before the annual meeting?
- A: The record date for the annual meeting is earlier than the date of the annual meeting and the date that the merger is expected to be completed. If you sell or otherwise transfer your shares of Smith common stock after the record date but before the date of the annual meeting, you will retain your right to vote at the annual meeting. However, you will not have the right to receive the merger consideration to be received by Smith stockholders in the merger. In order to receive the merger consideration, you must hold your shares through completion of the merger.
- Q: Am I entitled to appraisal rights if I vote against the adoption of the merger agreement?

A:

No. Appraisal rights confer on stockholders who vote against the merger the right to demand that the corporation pay the fair value for their shares as determined by a court in a judicial proceeding instead of receiving the consideration offered to stockholders in connection with the merger. Because Smith common stock was listed on the NYSE on the record date and will, upon the completion of the merger, be converted into the right to receive Schlumberger common stock, which will also be listed on the NYSE, Smith stockholders will not have appraisal rights in connection with the merger.

- Q: Is completion of the merger subject to any conditions?
- A: Yes. In addition to the adoption of the merger agreement by Smith stockholders, completion of the merger requires the receipt of the necessary governmental and regulatory approvals and the satisfaction or, to the extent permitted by applicable law, waiver of the other conditions specified in the merger agreement.
- Q When do you expect to complete the merger?
- A: Smith and Schlumberger are working toward completing the merger promptly. Smith and Schlumberger currently expect to complete the merger in the second half of 2010, subject to receipt of Smith s stockholder approval, governmental and regulatory approvals and other usual and customary closing conditions. However, no assurance can be given as to when, or if, the merger will occur.
- Q: Should I send in my stock certificates now?
- A: No. Smith stockholders should not send in their stock certificates at this time. At the effective time of the merger, your shares of Smith common stock will be converted automatically into the right to receive the merger consideration. After completion of the merger, Schlumberger is exchange agent will send you a letter of transmittal and instructions for exchanging your shares of Smith common stock for the merger consideration. Upon surrender of the certificates or book-entry shares for cancellation along with the executed letter of transmittal and other documents, a Smith stockholder will receive the merger consideration and any unpaid dividends and distributions declared and paid in respect of Schlumberger common stock after completion of the merger. Unless you specifically request to receive Schlumberger stock certificates, the shares of Schlumberger stock you receive in the merger will be issued in book-entry form.

General Information About Voting

- Q: When and where will the annual meeting be held?
- A: The Smith annual meeting of stockholders will be held at the Hotel du Pont, 11th and Market Streets, Wilmington, Delaware, on Tuesday, August 24, 2010, at 9:00 a.m., local time.
- Q: Who may vote?
- A: You are entitled to vote your shares of Smith common stock if you are a stockholder of record on July 26, 2010, the record date for the annual meeting.
- Q: How many votes do I have?
- A: You are entitled to one vote for each share of Smith common stock that you owned as of the record date. Each share of Smith common stock has one vote. The enclosed proxy card shows the number of shares that you are entitled to vote. As of the close of business on July 14, 2010, there were approximately 248,576,204 outstanding shares of Smith common stock. As of that date, approximately 0.60% of the outstanding shares of common stock of Smith entitled to vote were owned by its directors and executive officers and their affiliates.

#### O: How do I vote?

A: Stockholders of record of Smith as of the record date for the Smith annual meeting may vote in person by attending the stockholder meeting, or by telephone, internet or mail. If you are voting by mail, please sign, date and mail the enclosed proxy card. If you are voting by telephone or internet, please follow the instructions on the enclosed proxy card. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, we encourage you to vote by proxy as soon as possible. If you hold your shares in more than one type of account or your shares are registered differently, you may receive more than one proxy card. We encourage you to vote each proxy card that you receive.

If you choose to attend the meeting in person, you will be asked to present valid picture identification and, if you hold your shares through a broker, you will be asked to present a copy of your brokerage statement showing your stock ownership as of July 26, 2010, and, in order to vote at the annual meeting, a legal proxy from your broker. For directions to the meeting, contact the Hotel du Pont, Wilmington, Delaware at (302) 594-3100.

#### Q: How will my shares be voted?

A: If you vote by proxy, the individuals named on the proxy card (your proxies) will vote your shares in the manner you indicate. You may specify on your proxy card whether your shares should be voted for all of the nominees for director or your vote should be withheld with respect to one or more of the nominees. You may also specify whether you approve, disapprove or abstain from the other proposals. If you sign and return your proxy card without indicating your voting instructions, your shares will be voted FOR the adoption of the merger agreement, FOR the election of all nominees for director, FOR the approval of the Smith long-term incentive compensation plan, FOR the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche as Smith s independent registered accounting firm and, if necessary, FOR the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting.

#### Q: What if my shares are held by a broker?

A: If you hold your shares in a stock brokerage account or if your shares are held by a bank or nominee (that is, in street name), you must provide the record holder of your shares with instructions on how to vote your shares. Please follow the voting instructions provided by your bank or broker. Please note that you may not vote shares held in street name by returning a proxy card directly to Smith or by voting in person at the Smith annual meeting unless you provide a legal proxy, which you must obtain from your bank or broker.

If you do not instruct your broker on how to vote your shares, your broker may not give a proxy on or vote your shares on the proposals to adopt the merger agreement (which will have the same effect as a vote against adoption of the merger agreement), elect directors (which will have no effect on the election results, assuming a quorum is present) or to approve the incentive plan proposal (which will have the same effect as a vote against the approval of the incentive plan) without specific instructions from their customers, but may give a proxy on or vote your shares with respect to the other proposals to be considered at the annual meeting. We refer to matters where a proxy has been given but the broker may not vote the shares due to the lack of specific instructions as broker non-votes.

## Q: May I revoke or change my vote?

A: Yes. You may revoke or change your proxy at any time before it is exercised by submitting written notice of revocation to Smith s Corporate Secretary so that he receives it before the Smith annual meeting (which, if you hold your shares in street name, you must do in accordance with instructions from your bank or broker); voting again by telephone, internet or mail; or voting in person at the Smith annual meeting.

Attendance at the Smith annual meeting will not by itself revoke a previously granted proxy. If you hold your shares in street name and you wish to change your vote at the Smith annual meeting, you will need to obtain a proxy from the broker or nominee that holds your shares.

#### Q: What constitutes a quorum?

A: The holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock entitled to vote at the meeting constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business at the annual meeting. If you have returned valid proxy instructions or attend the meeting in person and are entitled to vote your shares at the meeting, your Smith common stock will be counted for the purpose of determining whether there is a quorum, even if you wish to abstain from voting on some or all matters introduced at the meeting. Broker non-votes also count for quorum purposes.

#### Q: How many votes are required to approve each proposal?

A: The following votes are required to approve each proposal:

Adoption of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the aggregate voting power of all of the shares of Smith common stock that are outstanding as of the record date and entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting.

Election of each director requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the total votes cast either for or against the election of such director at the Smith annual meeting. If a nominee is not elected, he must promptly tender his resignation to the Smith board of directors, which will determine, based on a

4

recommendation from the nominating and corporate governance committee of the Smith board of directors, whether to accept or reject the resignation. In the event of a vacancy on the Smith board of directors, a majority of the remaining directors will appoint a successor or decrease the size of the Smith board of directors.

The approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal, provided that the total vote cast on the proposal constitutes at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock. Shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal include all shares that are voted in person at the meeting or that are represented by valid proxies.

Each of the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2010 fiscal year, and the approval of the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal. Shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal include all shares that are voted in person at the meeting or that are represented by valid proxies.

- Q: What will happen if I return my proxy card without indicating how to vote?
- A: If you are a holder of record and you sign and return your proxy card without indicating how to vote on any particular proposal, the Smith common stock represented by your proxy will be voted as recommended by the Smith board of directors with respect to that proposal.
- Q: What will happen if I fail to vote or I abstain from voting?
- A: If you fail to vote, fail to instruct your broker or nominee to vote, or vote to abstain, it will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. It will have no effect on the outcome of the proposal to elect directors, assuming a quorum is present. With respect to the proposal to approve the 1989 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan, a failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome, assuming that a quorum is present and that at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock vote on the proposal, but a failure to instruct your broker or nominee to vote or a vote to abstain will have the same effect as a vote against such proposal. With respect to the proposals to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2010 fiscal year or to adjourn the Smith annual meeting, a failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of either of such proposals, assuming in each case that a quorum is present, a failure to specify your voting instructions to your broker or nominee to vote will permit your broker or nominee to vote your shares on such proposals, and a vote to abstain will have the same effect as a vote against such proposals.
- Q: What other matters will be acted upon at the meeting?
- A: We do not know of any other matters that will be presented at the Smith annual meeting, other than those mentioned in this proxy statement/prospectus.

#### Q: Who pays the cost of this proxy solicitation?

Smith will pay the cost of solicitation of proxies including preparing, printing and mailing this proxy statement/prospectus. Smith has retained MacKenzie Partners to help in soliciting proxies for a fee of \$25,000, plus reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses. Smith will also reimburse brokers, banks and other nominees for their costs in sending proxy materials to beneficial owners of Smith common stock. Other proxy solicitation expenses that Smith will pay include those for preparation, mailing, returning and tabulating the proxies.

- Q: Who may attend the annual meeting?
- A: Holders of record of Smith common stock as of July 26, 2010 may attend the annual meeting. For a period of at least 10 days prior to the Smith annual meeting, a complete list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting will be open to examination by any Smith stockholder during ordinary business hours at the office of the Smith Corporate Secretary at 1310 Rankin Road, Houston Texas 77073.

5

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Q: What do I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?

A: You may receive more than one set of voting materials for the annual meeting, including multiple copies of this proxy statement/prospectus, proxy cards and/or voting instruction forms. This can occur if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, if you hold shares directly as a record holder and also in street name, or otherwise through a nominee, and in certain other circumstances. If you receive more than one set of voting materials, each should be voted and/or returned separately in order to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

#### Q: What do I need to do now?

A: Carefully read and consider the information contained in and incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus, including its annexes. Then, please vote your shares of Smith common stock, which you may do by:

completing, dating, signing and returning the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying postage-paid envelope;

submitting your proxy by telephone or via the internet by following the instructions included on your proxy card; or

attending the Smith annual meeting and voting by ballot in person.

If you hold shares through a broker or other nominee, please instruct your broker or nominee to vote your shares by following the instructions that the broker or nominee provides to you with these materials.

#### Q: Whom should I call with questions?

A: Smith stockholders who have questions about the merger, the election of directors or the other matters to be voted on at the Smith annual meeting or desire additional copies of this document or additional proxy cards should contact:

MacKenzie Partners, Inc.

105 Madison Avenue

New York, New York 10016

proxy@mackenziepartners.com

Call Collect: (212) 929-5500

or

Toll-Free: (800) 322-2885

6

#### **SUMMARY**

This summary highlights selected information from this proxy statement/prospectus. It may not contain all of the information that is important to you. You are urged to read carefully the entire proxy statement/prospectus and the other documents referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus in order to fully understand the merger agreement and the proposed merger. See Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 144 of this proxy statement/prospectus. Each item in this summary refers to the page of this proxy statement/prospectus on which that subject is discussed in more detail.

#### The Companies (page 31)

## Schlumberger Limited

Founded in 1926, Schlumberger is the world s leading supplier of technology, integrated project management and information solutions to the international oil and gas exploration and production industry.

Schlumberger has principal executive offices in Paris, Houston and The Hague. Its principal executive offices in the United States are located at 5599 San Felipe, 17th Floor, Houston, Texas 77056, and its telephone number is (713) 513-2000.

#### Smith International, Inc.

Founded in 1902, Smith is a leading global provider of premium products and services used during the drilling, completion and production phases of oil and natural gas development activities.

Smith was incorporated in the state of California in January 1937 and reincorporated under Delaware law in May 1983. Smith s executive offices are headquartered at 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073, and its telephone number is (281) 443-3370.

#### Turnberry Merger Sub Inc.

Turnberry Merger Sub Inc., referred to as Merger Sub, is a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger. Merger Sub was formed solely for the purpose of participating in the merger and has conducted no activities other than in connection with the merger.

#### The Merger

#### The Merger Agreement (page 66)

Schlumberger, Smith and Merger Sub have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 21, 2010, which, as it may be amended from time to time, is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the merger agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement and in accordance with Delaware law, Merger Sub will be merged with and into Smith, with Smith continuing as the surviving corporation. Upon completion of this transaction, which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the merger, Smith will be a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger, and Smith common stock will no longer be publicly traded. A copy of the merger agreement is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement/prospectus. You should read the merger agreement carefully because it is the legal document that governs the merger.

#### The Merger Consideration (page 67)

If the merger is completed, Smith stockholders will be entitled to receive in the merger, for each share of Smith common stock that they own, 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock. The number of shares of Schlumberger common stock delivered in respect of each share of Smith common stock in the merger is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the exchange ratio. Schlumberger will not issue any fractional shares of its common stock in the merger. Instead, the total number of shares of Schlumberger common stock that each Smith stockholder will receive in the merger will be rounded down to the nearest whole number, and each Smith stockholder will receive cash, without interest, for any fractional shares of Schlumberger common stock that he or she would otherwise receive in the merger. The amount of cash for fractional shares will be calculated by multiplying the fraction of a share of Schlumberger common stock that the Smith stockholder would otherwise be entitled to receive in the merger by the closing sale price of a share of Schlumberger common stock on the business day immediately preceding the completion of the merger. The Schlumberger common stock issuable based on the exchange ratio, together with any cash payable in lieu of fractional shares, is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the merger consideration.

Example: If you currently own 100 shares of Smith common stock, you will be entitled to receive 69 shares of Schlumberger common stock and cash for the market value of 0.66 shares of Schlumberger common stock at the closing sale price of a share of Schlumberger common stock on the business day immediately preceding the completion of the merger.

The exchange ratio of 0.6966 of a share of Schlumberger common stock is fixed, which means that it will not change between now and the date of the merger, regardless of whether the market price of either Schlumberger or Smith common stock changes. Therefore, the value of the merger consideration will depend on the market price of Schlumberger common stock at the time Smith stockholders receive Schlumberger common stock in the merger. The market price of Schlumberger common stock will fluctuate prior to the merger, and the market price of Schlumberger common stock when received by Smith stockholders in connection with the merger could be greater or less than the current market price of Schlumberger common stock.

#### **Annual Meeting of Smith Stockholders (page 32)**

#### Meeting

The Smith annual meeting will be held at the Hotel du Pont, 11<sup>th</sup> and Market Streets, Wilmington, Delaware, on Tuesday, August 24, 2010 at 9:00 a.m., local time. At the Smith annual meeting, Smith stockholders will be asked to vote on the following proposals:

to adopt the merger agreement;

to elect three Class III directors: James R. Gibbs, Duane C. Radtke and John Yearwood, each for a term of three years ending at the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders or until their respective successors have been duly elected and qualified;

to approve the Smith International, Inc. 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated;

to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2010 fiscal year; and

to adjourn the Smith annual meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the Smith annual meeting.

#### Record Date

Only Smith stockholders of record at the close of business on July 26, 2010, which is referred to as the record date, will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Smith annual meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof.

As of July 14, 2010, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, there were 248,576,204 shares of Smith common stock outstanding and expected to be entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting. The Smith common stock is the only class of securities entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting. Each share of Smith common stock outstanding on the record date entitles the holder thereof to one vote on each matter properly brought before the Smith annual meeting, exercisable in person or by proxy through the internet or by telephone or by a properly executed and delivered proxy with respect to the Smith annual meeting.

For a period of at least 10 days prior to the Smith annual meeting, a complete list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting will be open to examination by any Smith stockholder during ordinary business hours at the office of the Smith Corporate Secretary at 1310 Rankin Road. Houston, Texas 77073.

#### Required Vote

To adopt the merger agreement, holders of a majority of the shares of Smith common stock outstanding on the record date must vote in favor of adoption of the merger agreement. Smith cannot complete the merger unless its stockholders adopt the merger agreement. Because approval is based on the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock, a Smith stockholder s failure to vote, an abstention from voting or the failure of an Smith stockholder who holds his or her shares in street name through a broker or other nominee to give voting instructions to such broker or other nominee will all have the same effect as a vote AGAINST adoption of the merger agreement.

Election of the directors requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast either for or against the election of such director at the Smith annual meeting. An abstention does not count as a vote cast for these purposes. If a nominee is not elected, he must promptly tender his resignation to the Smith board of directors, which will determine, based on a recommendation from the nominating and corporate governance committee of the Smith board of directors, whether to accept or reject the resignation. In the event of a vacancy on the Smith board of directors, a majority of the remaining directors will appoint a successor or decrease the size of the Smith board of directors.

Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal, provided that at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock vote on such proposal.

Approval of each of the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2010 fiscal year and the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal.

## Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors

The Smith board of directors unanimously recommends that Smith stockholders vote FOR the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. For the factors considered by the Smith board of directors in reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement, see The Merger Smith s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors.

The Smith board of directors recommends that Smith stockholders vote **FOR** each of the director nominees and **FOR** all of the other proposals set forth above.

### Schlumberger Stockholder Approval Is Not Required

Schlumberger stockholders are not required to adopt the merger agreement or approve the merger or the issuance of shares of Schlumberger common stock in connection with the merger.

#### Share Ownership of Smith s Directors and Executive Officers (page 32)

As of July 14, directors and executive officers of Smith and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote 1,487,629 shares of Smith common stock, or approximately 0.60% of the shares of Smith common stock outstanding on that date. It is currently expected that Smith s directors and executive officers will vote their shares in favor of the adoption of the merger agreement and each of the other Smith proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus, although none of them have entered into any agreements obligating them to do so.

#### **Treatment of Equity Awards (page 67)**

At the effective time of the merger, all outstanding options to purchase shares of Smith common stock will be converted into options to purchase shares of Schlumberger common stock with the duration and terms of such converted options to remain the same as the original Smith option. The number of shares of Schlumberger common stock subject to each option will be determined by multiplying the number of shares of Smith common stock subject to the original Smith option by the exchange ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share. The option exercise price per share of Schlumberger common stock will be equal to the option exercise price per share of Smith common stock under the original Smith option divided by the exchange ratio rounded up to the nearest whole cent. All converted Schlumberger options, other than those issued in respect of Smith options awarded after February 21, 2010, will be fully vested and exercisable.

At the effective time of the merger, each outstanding award of restricted stock units granted by Smith under any of its plans on or prior to February 21, 2010, will be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration based on the total number of shares of Smith common stock subject to the outstanding award. To the extent the outstanding award is for performance-based restricted stock units, the number of shares subject to the outstanding award will be calculated based on the deemed attainment of performance goals at 100% of the target performance level. Any award of restricted stock units made by Smith after February 21, 2010 will be converted into an award of Schlumberger restricted stock units in an amount equal to the product of the number of shares of Smith stock subject to the original Smith award and the exchange ratio, with any fractional units rounded to the nearest whole unit.

## Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor (page 46)

On February 20, 2010, at a meeting of Smith s board of directors held to evaluate the proposed merger, UBS Securities LLC, referred to as UBS, delivered to Smith s board of directors an oral opinion, which opinion was confirmed by delivery of a written opinion, dated February 20, 2010, to the effect that, as of that date and based on and subject to various assumptions, matters considered and limitations described in its opinion, the exchange ratio provided for in the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to holders of Smith common stock other than Schlumberger and its affiliates.

The full text of UBS—opinion describes the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by UBS. A copy of this opinion is attached as Annex B hereto and is incorporated into this proxy statement/prospectus by reference. Holders of Smith common stock are encouraged to read UBS—opinion carefully in its entirety. UBS—opinion was provided for the benefit of Smith—s board of directors in connection with, and for the purpose of, its evaluation of the exchange ratio from a financial point of view and does not address any other aspect of the merger. The opinion does not address the relative merits of the merger as compared to other business strategies or transactions that might be available with respect to Smith or Smith—s underlying business decision to effect the merger. The opinion does not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to how to vote or act with respect to the merger.

## Ownership of Schlumberger After the Merger

Based on the number of shares of Smith common stock and Smith restricted stock units outstanding as of July 14, 2010, Schlumberger expects to issue approximately 175,903,891 shares of its common stock to Smith stockholders pursuant to the merger and reserve for issuance approximately 740,333 additional shares of Schlumberger common stock in connection with the exercise or conversion of Smith s outstanding equity awards. The actual number of shares of Schlumberger common stock to be issued and reserved for issuance pursuant to the merger will be determined at the completion of the merger based on the exchange ratio of 0.6966 and the number of shares of Smith common stock, options and restricted stock units outstanding at such time. Immediately after completion of the merger, it is expected that former Smith stockholders will own approximately 12.8% of Schlumberger s outstanding common stock, based on the number of shares of Smith and Schlumberger common stock outstanding, on a fully diluted basis.

### Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger (page 55)

Smith s executive officers and directors have financial interests in the merger that are different from, or in addition to, those of Smith s stockholders generally. The independent members of Smith s board of directors were aware of and considered these interests, among other matters, in evaluating and negotiating the merger agreement and the merger, and in recommending to Smith stockholders that the merger agreement be adopted.

Certain of Smith s executive officers, including each of its named executive officers, are party to change of control agreements with Smith that provide severance and other benefits in the case of qualifying terminations of employment in connection with or following a change of control, including completion of the merger.

Smith equity compensation plans and award agreements generally provide for the vesting of stock-based awards upon completion of the merger.

In addition, under the terms of the merger agreement, Smith may establish a retention program with a retention pool in an aggregate amount up to \$74.3 million. Of this amount, up to \$16 million will be allocated to persons who are executive officers of Smith or who are party to change of control employment agreements with Smith. Smith separately recently allocated approximately \$18 million in retention payments to certain employees who are not executive officers, and may make additional allocations.

Please see The Merger Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger beginning on page 55 of this proxy statement/prospectus for additional information about those financial interests.

### Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock (page 58)

Schlumberger will apply to have the shares of its common stock to be issued in the merger approved for listing on the NYSE, where Schlumberger common stock is currently traded. If the merger is completed, Smith shares will no longer be listed on the NYSE, and will be deregistered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the Exchange Act.

#### No Appraisal Rights (page 58)

Under Delaware law, Smith stockholders will not have appraisal rights in connection with the merger.

### **Completion of the Merger Is Subject to Certain Conditions (page 77)**

Conditions to the Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger. The respective obligations of each party to effect the merger will be subject to the fulfillment of the following conditions on or prior to the closing date:

the adoption of the merger agreement by Smith s stockholders;

11

(1) the termination or expiration of any waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, which is referred to as the HSR Act, and (2) the issuance by the European Commission of a decision under Council Regulation No. 4064/89 of the European Community, which is referred to as the EC Merger Regulation, declaring the merger compatible with the common market;

the expiration, lapse or termination of all applicable waiting or other time periods under antitrust laws in other specified jurisdictions;

the absence of any judgment, injunction, order or decree of any governmental authority in the United States, the European Union or other specified jurisdictions prohibiting or enjoining the consummation of the merger;

the effectiveness of the registration statement that includes this prospectus, and the absence of any stop order or proceeding seeking a stop order;

the approval for listing on the NYSE of the Schlumberger common stock to be issued pursuant to the merger;

performance in all material respects by each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub, on the one hand, and Smith, on the other hand, of its respective covenants and agreements required to be performed by it under the merger agreement at or prior to the closing date;

representations and warranties of Schlumberger and Merger Sub, on the one hand, and Smith, on the other hand, contained in the merger agreement being true and correct as of the date of the merger agreement and as of the closing date, subject to certain materiality thresholds; and

receipt of an opinion by Schlumberger and Smith from their respective counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Schlumberger and Smith, respectively, dated as of the closing date, to the effect that for U.S. federal income tax purposes (1) the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and (2) each transfer of Smith stock to Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the merger (other than a stockholder of Smith that is a five percent transferee shareholder of Schlumberger, as defined in Treasury regulations promulgated under Section 367(a) of the Internal Revenue Code) will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

#### Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger (page 63)

The merger is subject to review by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice, which is referred to as the Antitrust Division, under the HSR Act. Under the HSR Act, Schlumberger and Smith are required to make premerger notification filings and to await the expiration or early termination of the statutory waiting period (and any extension of the waiting period) prior to completing the merger. On March 3, 2010, Schlumberger and Smith each filed a Premerger Notification and Report Form with the Antitrust Division and the Federal Trade Commission, which is referred to as the FTC. By agreement between the two agencies, the Antitrust Division is conducting the review. Prior to the expiration of the initial 30-day waiting period, on April 2, 2010, Schlumberger and Smith each received a request for additional information and documentary material, often referred to as a second request, from the Antitrust Division. Issuance of the second request extends the statutory waiting period until 30 days after such time as each of Schlumberger and Smith has certified substantial compliance with the second request, unless the Antitrust Division provides written notice that the transaction may close prior to that time. On July 16, 2010, Schlumberger and Smith each certified substantial compliance with the second request.

The merger is also subject to antitrust review by government authorities in several foreign jurisdictions in which the companies have a sufficient market presence to require filings. As of the date of this proxy statement/

12

prospectus, the parties have made certain antitrust filings in the European Union pursuant to the EC Merger Regulation, and in other jurisdictions.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, Schlumberger has the right, but not the obligation, to oppose by refusing to consent, through litigation or otherwise, any divestitures, hold-separate restrictions or other restrictions demanded by an antitrust regulator. Schlumberger is required to agree to take all actions demanded by an antitrust regulator in order to resolve any objections to the merger (including divestitures, hold-separate restrictions or other restrictions) if doing so would not exceed a specified threshold, which is referred to as the detriment limit. The detriment limit would be exceeded if the required divestitures or hold-separate restrictions affect assets other than (1) the W-H Energy Services business and corresponding Schlumberger operations and (2) other assets accounting for Schlumberger or Smith revenues of not more than \$190 million in 2009, excluding from such calculation any W-H Energy Services operations and Smith s Wilson business unit. If the merger has not occurred on or before the termination date described below in Termination of the Merger Agreement due to the failure to obtain regulatory clearances, or if an order, decree or ruling permanently prohibits the merger, the merger agreement may be terminated (subject in some circumstances to payment of a termination fee, as described below).

## No Solicitation by Smith (page 72)

Under the merger agreement, Smith has agreed not to (and to direct and use its reasonable best efforts to cause its officers, directors, employees, investment bankers, consultants, attorneys, accountants, advisors, agents and other representatives not to), among other things:

solicit, initiate, knowingly encourage or knowingly facilitate, or participate in discussions regarding, any competing acquisition proposal;

provide nonpublic information regarding Smith or access to Smith s properties, books or records to a third party in connection with a competing acquisition proposal; or

approve or recommend a competing acquisition proposal.

However, before the adoption of the merger agreement by the Smith stockholders, Smith may, under certain circumstances, engage in negotiations with and provide information regarding Smith to a third party making an unsolicited, written acquisition proposal that Smith s board of directors concludes in good faith is reasonably likely to be superior to the merger. Under the merger agreement, Smith is required to notify Schlumberger if it receives any competing acquisition proposal or request for information in connection with such a proposal. Additionally, before the adoption of the merger agreement by the Smith stockholders, the Smith board of directors may withdraw its recommendation of the merger if it determines in good faith, after consultation with its outside legal counsel and financial advisors, that a failure to change its recommendation would be inconsistent with its fiduciary duties. To date, Smith has not received any competing acquisition proposals.

## **Termination of the Merger Agreement (page 78)**

The merger agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the effective time of the merger, notwithstanding the adoption of the merger agreement by Smith s stockholders:

by mutual written agreement of Schlumberger and Smith;

by either Schlumberger or Smith if:

the merger has not occurred on or before the termination date, February 21, 2011, which termination date may, subject to specified conditions, at the option of either Schlumberger or Smith, be extended to a date not later than May 31, 2011;

the Smith stockholders do not adopt the merger agreement at the annual meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the annual meeting; or

a court of competent jurisdiction in the United States, the European Union or other specified jurisdictions has issued a final, nonappealable order, decree or ruling permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the merger;

by Smith if:

Schlumberger is in breach of the merger agreement such that the conditions set forth in the merger agreement would not be satisfied and such breach is not curable prior to the termination date, or

Smith has received an acquisition proposal that Smith s board of directors determines in good faith to be superior to the merger and reasonably likely to be consummated and, after giving Schlumberger at least three business days notice of its intent to terminate the agreement (and at least two business days notice following any change to the financial terms of such proposal), resolves to accept such proposal and pay the termination fee described below; or

by Schlumberger if:

Smith is in breach of the merger agreement such that the conditions set forth in the merger agreement would not be satisfied and such breach is not curable prior to the termination date, or

the Smith board of directors fails to recommend the merger to Smith stockholders or there is a change in the Smith board of directors recommendation.

## Termination Fees and Expenses (page 79)

The merger agreement provides for the payment of termination fees by one party to the other if the agreement is terminated in specified circumstances.

Smith will be obligated to pay Schlumberger a \$340 million termination fee if:

either party terminates the merger agreement because Smith s stockholder approval is not obtained and:

prior to such time there is a publicly announced or disclosed acquisition proposal by another bidder that has not been withdrawn, and

within one year after the date of termination, Smith enters into a definitive agreement with respect to, or consummates, an acquisition proposal;

Smith terminates the merger agreement prior to obtaining the approval of Smith stockholders in order to enter into an agreement providing for a superior proposal; or

the Smith board of directors fails to recommend its approval of the merger or there is a change in the Smith board of directors recommendation.

Schlumberger will be obligated to pay a \$615 million termination fee if the merger agreement is terminated by Smith or Schlumberger as a result of an order, decree, ruling or other action prohibiting the merger under certain antitrust or competition laws or because the merger has not been

consummated on or before the termination date, and all other conditions to the merger (except for those that, by their nature, cannot be satisfied until closing but remain capable of satisfaction) have been satisfied or waived as of the date of such termination.

The merger agreement generally provides that all expenses incurred by the parties will be borne by the party that has incurred such expenses. However, under specified circumstances either party may be required to reimburse the other party for its expenses of up to \$10 million.

14

#### Payment of Dividends and Stock Repurchases (page 70)

#### Schlumberger

Schlumberger has paid quarterly cash dividends of \$0.210 per share since the first quarter of 2008. Prior to the first quarter of 2008, Schlumberger paid quarterly cash dividends of \$0.175 per share. Schlumberger is not prohibited under the terms of the merger agreement from paying quarterly dividends consistent with past practice.

On April 17, 2008, the Schlumberger board of directors approved an \$8 billion share repurchase program for Schlumberger common stock, to be acquired in the open market before December 31, 2011. Schlumberger is not prohibited from making repurchases under the share repurchase program by the terms of the merger agreement.

#### Smith

Smith makes regular quarterly distributions under a cash dividend program. The Smith board of directors declared dividends of \$0.12 per share, \$0.12 per share and \$0.10 per share for each quarter during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Under the terms of the merger agreement, during the period before the closing of the merger, Smith is prohibited from paying any dividends other than regular quarterly dividends not exceeding \$0.12 per share without the consent of Schlumberger.

The Smith board of directors approved a share repurchase program that allows for the purchase of up to 20 million shares of Smith common stock, subject to regulatory issues, market considerations and other relevant factors. Under the terms of the merger agreement, during the period before the closing of the merger, Smith is prohibited from making repurchases under the share repurchase program without the consent of Schlumberger.

## Rights of Smith Stockholders Will Change as a Result of the Merger (page 92)

Smith stockholders will have different rights once they become Schlumberger stockholders due to differences between Delaware corporate law and Netherlands Antilles law and the organizational documents of Schlumberger and Smith.

## Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (page 59)

The merger is intended to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and it is a condition to the completion of the merger that Smith and Schlumberger each receive a written opinion from its respective counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Smith and Schlumberger, respectively, dated as of the date of completion of the merger, to the effect that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, (1) the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and (2) each transfer of Smith stock to Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the merger (other than a stockholder of Smith that is a five percent transferee shareholder of Schlumberger, as defined in Treasury regulations promulgated under Section 367(a) of the Internal Revenue Code) will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, Schlumberger and Smith expect that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, holders of Smith common stock generally will not recognize any gain or loss on the exchange of their shares of Smith common stock for Schlumberger common stock in the merger, except with respect to any cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Schlumberger common stock.

Please refer to The Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 59 of this proxy statement/prospectus for a description of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of

the merger. Determining the actual tax consequences of the merger to you may be complex and will depend on your specific situation. You should consult your tax advisor for a full understanding of the tax consequences of the merger to you.

#### **Accounting Treatment (page 58)**

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, Schlumberger will account for the merger as an acquisition of a business.

## Litigation Relating to the Merger (page 64)

Subsequent to the announcement of the merger, five putative class action lawsuits were commenced on behalf of stockholders of Smith against Smith and its directors, and in certain cases against Schlumberger and one of its affiliates, challenging the merger. Four of the lawsuits were filed in the District Court of Harris County, Texas, and have been consolidated into a single action in the 164th District Court of Harris County, Texas (the Texas Action ), and one lawsuit is pending in the Delaware Court of Chancery (the Delaware Action, and collectively with the Texas Action, the Actions ). The parties in the Texas Action and Delaware Action have agreed to an expedited discovery schedule and to the coordination of pleadings and discovery in advance of any preliminary injunction hearing, which will be heard only in the Texas Action. On April 19, 2010, the court in the Delaware Action approved the parties agreement concerning the coordination of the Texas and Delaware Actions and agreed to otherwise stay the Delaware proceedings through any preliminary injunction hearing in Texas. Plaintiffs in the Texas and Delaware Actions have served a consolidated amended petition for breach of fiduciary duty and a verified amended class action complaint, respectively. The amended pleadings are substantively similar and allege that Smith s directors breached their fiduciary duties by, among other things, causing Smith to enter into the merger agreement at an allegedly inadequate and unfair price, agreeing to transaction terms that improperly inhibit alternative transactions and failing to provide material information to Smith s stockholders in the preliminary proxy statement filed in connection with the merger. Specifically, the pleadings allege that the preliminary proxy statement omits material information relating to, among other things: the analyses performed by, and the information relied upon by, UBS; any strategic alternatives to the merger considered by UBS; UBS s involvement in the negotiations between Smith and Schlumberger; the fee to be paid to UBS in connection with the merger; and any negotiations or plans concerning the employment of Smith management after consummation of the merger. The pleadings also allege that Smith and Schlumberger aided and abetted the directors breaches of fiduciary duties. The pleadings seek, among other things, an injunction barring defendants from consummating the proposed transaction, declaratory relief and attorneys fees.

On May 28, 2010, a purported Smith stockholder filed an individual lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, against Smith and its directors, alleging that Smith had disseminated a false and materially misleading preliminary proxy statement in connection with the merger in violation of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules promulgated thereunder. The lawsuit alleges that the preliminary proxy statement omits and/or misrepresents material information relating to, among other things: negotiations, if any, with other potential acquirers of Smith; any market check conducted by Smith in connection with the merger; any strategic alternatives considered by Smith s directors in connection with the merger; whether the merger consideration includes any compensation for the synergies to be achieved in the merger; the financial information and forecasts provided by Smith s directors to UBS in connection with its fairness opinion; the discounted cash flow, comparable transaction and selected companies analyses performed by UBS; and business ties between any of Smith s directors and Schlumberger. The complaint seeks, among other things, injunctive relief, compensatory damages and reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the action, including counsel fees and expert fees.

Smith and Schlumberger believe that the lawsuits in which they are named are without merit and intend to defend the lawsuits vigorously.

16

# **Recent Developments**

On April 20, 2010, a fire and explosion occurred onboard the semisubmersible drilling rig *Deepwater Horizon*, owned by Transocean Ltd. and under contract to a subsidiary of BP plc. Pursuant to a contract between M-I SWACO (a joint venture 60% owned by Smith and 40% owned by Schlumberger) and BP for the provision of certain services by M-I SWACO under the direction of BP, five employees of M-I SWACO were aboard the *Deepwater Horizon* at the time of the incident and unfortunately two of them were killed (the other three were uninjured). A number of legal actions, certain of which name Schlumberger and an M-I SWACO entity as defendants, have been filed in connection with the *Deepwater Horizon* incident, and additional legal actions are likely to be filed in the future. The parties are currently investigating the incident and the liabilities that could potentially arise therefrom, and are assessing the availability of contractual indemnities and insurance coverage. However, the information currently known indicates that the amount of any potential loss that M-I SWACO could face with respect to any potential liabilities related to the incident would not be material.

# Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Schlumberger

The following table sets forth Schlumberger's selected consolidated historical financial information that has been derived from Schlumberger's consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and for the years then ended and as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 and for the three months then ended. This disclosure does not include the effects of the merger. You should read this financial information in conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in Schlumberger's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2010 incorporated by reference in this document. See also the proforma information set forth elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus regarding the proposed merger with Smith. Schlumberger's historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in future periods.

	As of/I Three I Ended M	Months	As	s of/For the `	Years Ended	December 3	31,
	2010	2009	2009	2008	2007	2006	2005
CTATEMENT OF INCOME DATA			(In million	s, except per	share data)		
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA	ф. <b>5.5</b> 00	<b>#</b> < 000	A 22 502	Ф 27 162	A 22 255	ф 10 <b>22</b> 0	ф <b>1.1.2</b> 00
Revenue	\$ 5,598	\$ 6,000	\$ 22,702	\$ 27,163	\$ 23,277	\$ 19,230	\$ 14,309
Income from continuing operations	674	940	3,164	5,422	5,177	3,759	2,290
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations	\$ 0.56	\$ 0.78	\$ 2.61	\$ 4.42	\$ 4.20	\$ 3.01	\$ 1.81
BALANCE SHEET DATA							
Working capital	\$ 6,311		\$ 6,391	\$ 4,811	\$ 3,551	\$ 2,731	\$ 3,121
Total assets	32,883		33,465	32,094	27,853	22,832	18,077
Net debt <sup>(1)</sup>	75		126	1,129	1,857	2,834	532
Long-term debt	4,052		4,355	3,694	3,794	4,664	3,591
Schlumberger stockholders equity	19,428		19,120	16,862	14,876	10,420	7,592
Cash dividends declared per share	\$ 0.21		\$ 0.84	\$ 0.84	\$ 0.70	\$ 0.50	\$ 0.42

(1) Net debt represents gross debt less cash, short-term investments and fixed income investments, held to maturity. Management believes that net debt provides useful information regarding the level of Schlumberger s indebtedness by reflecting cash and investments that could be used to repay debt.

18

## Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Smith

The following table sets forth Smith s selected consolidated historical financial information that has been derived from Smith s consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and for the years then ended and as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 and for the three months then ended. This disclosure does not include the effects of the merger. You should read this financial information in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in Smith s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2010 incorporated by reference in this document. See also the pro forma information set forth elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus regarding the proposed merger with Schlumberger. Smith s historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in future periods.

		For the Months					
	Ended N	Iarch 31,	As o	of/For the Ye	ears Ended	December	31,
	2010	2009	2009	2008	2007	2006	2005
			(In millions,	except per s	hare data)		
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA							
Revenues	\$ 2,138	\$ 2,411	\$ 8,219	\$ 10,771	\$8,764	\$7,334	\$ 5,579
Gross profit	\$ 591	\$ 692	2,250	3,429	2,856	2,344	1,685
Operating income	125	242	599	1,642	1,370	1,080	671
Net income attributable to Smith	12	97	148	767	647	502	302
Earnings per share diluted basis	\$ 0.05	\$ 0.44	\$ 0.66	\$ 3.68	\$ 3.20	\$ 2.49	\$ 1.48
BALANCE SHEET DATA							
Working capital	\$ 2,911		\$ 3,404	\$ 2,153	\$ 2,554	\$ 1,892	\$ 1,504
Total assets	10,403		10,739	10,816	6,062	5,335	4,060
Long-term debt	1,317		1,814	1,441	846	801	611
Smith stockholders equity	5,416		5,441	4,549	2,595	1,987	1,579
Cash dividends declared per common share	\$ 0.12		\$ 0.48	\$ 0.48	\$ 0.40	\$ 0.32	\$ 0.24

# **Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information**

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of income information for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and for the year ended December 31, 2009 have been prepared to give effect to the merger as if it had occurred on January 1, 2009. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet information of Schlumberger as of March 31, 2010 has been prepared to give effect to the merger as if it had occurred on March 31, 2010.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been presented for informational purposes only. The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of what the combined company s financial position or results of operations actually would have been had the merger been completed as of the dates indicated. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not purport to project the future financial position or operating results of the combined company. Future results may vary significantly from the results reflected because of various factors, including those discussed in Risk Factors. The following selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements and related notes included elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus.

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2010 (In millions, exce	Decem	er Ended ber 31, 2009 amount)
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Income Information:			
Revenue	\$ 7,681	\$	30,711
Income from continuing operations attributable to Schlumberger/Smith	691		3,206
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to Schlumberger/Smith	0.50		2.31
			As of rch 31, 2010 millions)
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet Information:			
Total assets		\$	49,898
Total debt			7,110
Net debt			1,651
Total equity			30,873

# **Comparative Per Share Data**

The following table presents: (1) historical per share information for Schlumberger; (2) pro forma per share information of the combined company after giving effect to the merger; and (3) historical and equivalent pro forma per share information for Smith.

The combined company pro forma per share information was derived by combining information from the historical consolidated financial statements of Schlumberger and Smith. You should read this table together with the historical consolidated financial statements of Schlumberger and Smith that are filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. You should not rely on the pro forma per share information as being necessarily indicative of actual results had the merger occurred on January 1, 2009 for statement of operations purposes or December 31, 2009 or March 31, 2010, as applicable, for book value per share data. The equivalent pro forma per share information was derived by multiplying the combined company pro forma per share information by the exchange ratio of 0.6966.

	Year Ended December 31, 2009				
	Schlui	Smith			
		Combined		Equivalent	
		Company		Pro	
	Historical	Pro Forma	Historical	Forma	
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations	\$ 2.63	\$ 2.33	\$ 0.67	\$ 1.62	
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations	2.61	2.31	0.66	1.61	
Cash dividends per share	0.84	0.84	0.48	0.59	
Book value per share at period end	16.00		21.92		

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2010				
	Schlur	mith			
		Combined		Equivalent Pro	
		Company			
	Historical	Pro Forma	Historical	Forma	
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations	\$ 0.56	\$ 0.50	\$ 0.05	\$ 0.35	
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations	0.56	0.50	0.05	0.35	
Cash dividends per share	0.21	0.21	0.12	0.15	
Book value per share at period end	16.28	22.37	21.80	15.58	

# **Comparative Per Share Market Price And Dividend Information**

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the intra-day high and low sales prices per share for Schlumberger and Smith common stock as reported on the NYSE, which is the principal trading market for both Schlumberger and Smith common stock, and the cash dividends declared per share of Schlumberger and Smith common stock.

	Schlumberger Common Stock Cash			Smi	on Stock Cash		
	High	Low	Dividends Declared	High	Low		vidends eclared
2010	mgn	Low	Deciared	Iligii	Dow	D.	ciared
Third Quarter (through July 15, 2010)	\$ 59.70	\$ 53.61	\$	\$ 40.98	\$ 36.51	\$	
Second Quarter	73.99	51.67	0.210	49.66	34.44		0.120
First Quarter	72.00	59.42	0.210	45.32	27.17		0.120
2009							
Fourth Quarter	\$ 71.10	\$ 56.00	\$ 0.210	\$ 34.46	\$ 25.54	\$	0.120
Third Quarter	63.00	48.13	0.210	30.92	22.12		0.120
Second Quarter	63.78	39.11	0.210	32.44	20.50		0.120
First Quarter	49.25	35.05	0.210	29.45	18.43		0.120
2008							
Fourth Quarter	\$ 78.00	\$ 37.07	\$ 0.210	\$ 57.82	\$ 18.23	\$	0.120
Third Quarter	111.95	75.53	0.210	88.40	54.69		0.120
Second Quarter	110.11	85.72	0.210	85.67	62.59		0.120
First Quarter	102.71	72.30	0.210	76.89	53.39		0.120
2007							
Fourth Quarter	\$ 114.84	\$ 87.42	\$ 0.175	\$ 76.99	\$ 58.91	\$	0.100
Third Quarter	108.75	81.26	0.175	74.35	54.08		0.100
Second Quarter	89.20	68.25	0.175	60.82	47.68		0.100
First Quarter	71.17	55.68	0.175	49.05	36.13		0.100

The following table sets forth the closing sale price per share of Schlumberger and Smith common stock as reported on the NYSE as of February 18, 2010, the last trading day before various news outlets began reporting on a possible transaction involving Smith and Schlumberger; as of February 19, 2010, the last trading date before the public announcement of the merger; and as of July 15, 2010, the most recent practicable trading day prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus. The table also shows the implied value of the merger consideration proposed for each share of Smith common stock as of the same dates. This implied value was calculated by multiplying the closing sale price of Schlumberger common stock on the relevant date by the exchange ratio of 0.6966.

	Schl	umberger				
	C	losing	9	Smith	Equ	iivalent
	]	Price	Clos	ing Price	Per Sl	nare Value
February 18, 2010	\$	65.81	\$	33.35	\$	45.84
February 19, 2010		63.90		37.70		44.51
July 15, 2010		58.67		40.29		40.87

The market prices of Schlumberger and Smith common stock will fluctuate between the date of this proxy statement/prospectus and the completion of the merger. No assurance can be given concerning the market prices of Schlumberger or Smith common stock before the completion of the merger or Schlumberger common stock after the completion of the merger. Because the exchange ratio is fixed in the merger agreement, the market value of the Schlumberger common stock that Smith stockholders will receive in connection with the merger may vary significantly from the prices shown in the table above. Accordingly, Smith stockholders are advised to obtain current market quotations for Schlumberger and Smith common stock before deciding whether to vote for adoption of the merger agreement.

#### RISK FACTORS

# Risks Relating to the Merger

The exchange ratio is fixed and will not be adjusted in the event of any change in either Smith s or Schlumberger s stock price.

Upon the closing of the merger, each share of Smith common stock (other than shares held by Smith or its subsidiaries) will be converted into the right to receive 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock, with cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. This exchange ratio was fixed in the merger agreement and will not be adjusted for changes in the market price of either Smith common stock or Schlumberger common stock. Changes in the price of Schlumberger common stock prior to the merger will affect the market value that Smith stockholders will become entitled to receive on the date of the merger. Stock price changes may result from a variety of factors (many of which are beyond Smith s or Schlumberger s control), including:

changes in Smith s and Schlumberger s respective business, operations and prospects;

changes in market assessments of the business, operations and prospects of either company;

market assessments of the likelihood that the merger will be completed, including related considerations regarding regulatory approvals of the merger:

interest rates, general market, industry and economic conditions and other factors generally affecting the price of Smith s and Schlumberger s common stock; and

federal, state and local legislation, governmental regulation and legal developments in the businesses in which Smith and Schlumberger operate.

The price of Schlumberger common stock at the closing of the merger may vary from its price on the date the merger agreement was executed, on the date of this proxy statement/prospectus and on the date of the Smith annual meeting. As a result, the market value represented by the exchange ratio will also vary. For example, based on the range of closing prices of Schlumberger common stock during the period from February 18, 2010 (the last trading day before various news outlets began reporting on a possible transaction between Smith and Schlumberger), through July 15, 2010, the most recent practicable trading day before the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the exchange ratio represented a market value ranging from a low of \$35.99 to a high of \$51.54 for each share of Smith common stock.

Because the date that the merger is completed will be later than the date of the Smith annual meeting, at the time of the Smith annual meeting, Smith stockholders will not know the exact market value of the Schlumberger common stock that they will receive upon completion of the merger.

If the price of Schlumberger common stock declines between the date of the Smith annual meeting and the effective time of the merger, including for any of the reasons described above, Smith stockholders will receive shares of Schlumberger common stock that have a market value upon completion of the merger that is less than the market value calculated pursuant to the exchange ratio on the date of the Smith annual meeting. Therefore, while the number of shares of Schlumberger common stock to be issued in the merger is fixed, Smith stockholders cannot be sure of the market value of the Schlumberger common stock they will receive upon completion of the merger or the market value of Schlumberger common stock at any time after the completion of the merger.

Smith s directors and executive officers have interests in the merger that may be different from, and in addition to, the interests of other Smith stockholders.

Smith s directors and executive officers are parties to agreements or participants in other arrangements that give them interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of the other stockholders of Smith, which could create conflicts of interest in their

determinations to recommend the merger.

## **Table of Contents**

Smith stockholders should consider these interests in voting on the merger. These different interests are described under The Merger Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger.

The ability of Smith and Schlumberger to complete the merger is subject to the approval of Smith stockholders, certain closing conditions and the receipt of consents and approvals from government entities, which may impose conditions that could adversely affect Smith or Schlumberger or cause the merger to be abandoned.

The merger agreement contains certain closing conditions, including approval of the merger by Smith stockholders, the absence of injunctions or other legal restrictions and that no material adverse effect shall have occurred with respect to either company. In addition, Smith and Schlumberger will be unable to complete the merger until approvals are received from the Antitrust Division, the European Commission and various other governmental entities. Regulatory entities may impose certain requirements or obligations as conditions for their approval. The merger agreement may require Smith and/or Schlumberger to accept conditions from these regulators that could adversely impact the combined company. We can provide no assurance that the various closing conditions will be satisfied and that the necessary approvals will be obtained, or that any required conditions will not materially adversely affect the combined company following the merger. In addition, we can provide no assurance that these conditions will not result in the abandonment or delay of the merger.

## Failure to complete the merger could negatively impact Smith and Schlumberger.

If the merger is not completed, the ongoing businesses and the market price of the common stock of Smith and/or Schlumberger may be adversely affected and Smith and Schlumberger will be subject to several risks, including Smith being required, under certain circumstances, to pay Schlumberger a termination fee of \$340 million or Schlumberger being required, under certain circumstances, to pay Smith a termination fee of \$615 million; Smith or Schlumberger having to pay certain costs relating to the merger; and diverting the focus of management from pursuing other opportunities that could be beneficial to each of Smith and Schlumberger, in each case, without realizing any of the benefits which might have resulted had the merger been completed.

# The pendency of the merger could adversely affect Smith and Schlumberger.

In connection with the pending merger, some of the customers of Smith and/or Schlumberger may delay or defer purchasing decisions, which could negatively impact revenues, earnings and cash flows regardless of whether the merger is completed. Additionally, Smith and Schlumberger have each agreed in the merger agreement to refrain from taking certain actions with respect to their business and financial affairs during the pendency of the merger, which restrictions could be in place for an extended period of time if completion of the merger is delayed and could adversely impact Smith s and Schlumberger s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

## Smith may be unable to retain key employees during the pendency of the merger.

In connection with the pending merger, current and prospective employees of Smith may experience uncertainty about their future roles with the combined company following the merger, which may materially adversely affect the ability of Smith to attract and retain key personnel during the pendency of the merger. Key employees may depart because of issues relating to the uncertainty and difficulty of integration or a desire not to remain with the combined company following the merger. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that Smith will be able to retain key employees to the same extent that Smith has been able to in the past.

Smith stockholders will have a significantly reduced ownership and voting interest after the merger and will exercise less influence over management.

Immediately after the completion of the merger, it is expected that former Smith stockholders, who collectively own 100% of Smith, will own approximately 12.8% of Schlumberger based on the number of

## **Table of Contents**

shares of Smith and Schlumberger common stock outstanding, on a fully diluted basis. Consequently, Smith stockholders will have less influence over the management and policies of Schlumberger than they currently have over the management and policies of Smith.

Multiple lawsuits have been filed against Smith challenging the merger, and an adverse ruling in any such lawsuit may prevent the merger from being completed.

Subsequent to the announcement of the merger, five putative class action lawsuits were commenced on behalf of stockholders of Smith against Smith and its directors, and in certain cases against Schlumberger and one of its affiliates, challenging the merger. See The Merger Litigation Relating to the Merger for more information about the lawsuits related to the merger that have been filed.

One of the conditions to the closing of the merger is that no law, order, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling or other similar requirement shall be in effect that prohibits the completion of the merger. Accordingly, if any of the plaintiffs is successful in obtaining an injunction prohibiting the completion of the merger, then such injunction may prevent the merger from becoming effective, or delay its becoming effective within the expected timeframe.

# Risks Relating to Schlumberger Following the Merger

Schlumberger and Smith are, and following completion of the merger, the combined company will continue to be, subject to the risks described in (a) Part I, Item 1A in Schlumberger s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the SEC on February 5, 2010, (b) Part II, Item 1A in Schlumberger s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, filed with the SEC on April 28, 2010, (c) Part I, Item 1A in Smith s Annual Report on Form 10-Q for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the SEC on March 1, 2010, and (d) Part II, Item 1A in Smith s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, filed with the SEC on April 28, 2010, each of which is incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. See Where You Can Find More Information beginning on page 144 of this proxy statement/prospectus. In addition, the business and operations of the combined company may be affected by the following additional risks:

# The combined company could incur substantial expenses related to the integration of Smith and Schlumberger.

Smith and Schlumberger expect that the combined company will incur substantial expenses in connection with integrating their respective businesses, policies, procedures, operations, technologies and systems. There are a large number of systems that must be integrated, including information management, purchasing, accounting and finance, sales, billing, payroll and benefits, fixed asset and lease administration systems and regulatory compliance. There are a number of factors beyond the control of either party that could affect the total amount or the timing of all of the expected integration expenses. Moreover, many of the expenses that will be incurred, by their nature, are difficult to estimate accurately at the present time. These expenses could, particularly in the near term, exceed the savings that Schlumberger expects to achieve from the elimination of duplicative expenses and the realization of economies of scale and cost savings and revenue enhancements related to the integration of the businesses following the completion of the merger. These integration expenses may result in the combined company taking significant charges against earnings following the completion of the merger.

Following the merger, the combined company may be unable to successfully integrate Smith s and Schlumberger s businesses and realize the anticipated benefits of the merger.

The merger involves the combination of two companies which currently operate as independent public companies. The combined company will be required to devote management attention and resources to integrating its business practices and operations. Potential difficulties the combined company may encounter in the integration process include the following:

the inability to successfully integrate the respective businesses of Smith and Schlumberger in a manner that permits the combined company to achieve the cost savings and operating synergies anticipated to

25

## **Table of Contents**

result from the merger, which would result in the anticipated benefits of the merger not being realized partly or wholly in the time frame currently anticipated or at all;

lost sales and customers as a result of certain customers of either or both of the two companies deciding not to do business with the combined company, or deciding to decrease their amount of business in order to reduce their reliance on a single company;

integrating personnel from the two companies while maintaining focus on providing consistent, high quality products and customer service;

potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen increased expenses, delays or regulatory conditions associated with the merger; and

performance shortfalls at one or both of the two companies as a result of the diversion of management s attention caused by completing the merger and integrating the companies operations.

Business issues currently faced by one company may be imputed to the operations of the other company.

To the extent that either Schlumberger or Smith currently has or is perceived by customers to have operational challenges, such as on-time performance, safety issues or workforce issues, those challenges may raise concerns by existing customers of the other company following the merger which may limit or impede Schlumberger s future ability to obtain additional work from those customers.

Failure to retain key employees and skilled workers could adversely affect Schlumberger following the merger.

Schlumberger s performance following the merger could be adversely affected if the combined company is unable to retain certain key employees and skilled workers of Smith. The loss of the services of one or more of these key employees and skilled workers could adversely affect Schlumberger s future operating results because of their experience and knowledge of Smith s business. In addition, current and prospective employees of Schlumberger and Smith may experience uncertainty about their future roles with the company until after the merger is completed. This may adversely affect the ability of Schlumberger and Smith to attract and retain key personnel, which could adversely affect Schlumberger s performance following the merger.

The required regulatory approvals may not be obtained or may contain materially burdensome conditions that could have an adverse effect on Schlumberger.

Completion of the merger is conditioned upon the receipt of certain governmental approvals, including, without limitation, the expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period under the HSR Act, the issuance by the European Commission of a decision under the EC Merger Regulation declaring the merger compatible with the common market and the approval of the merger by the antitrust regulators in other specified jurisdictions. Although Schlumberger and Smith have agreed in the merger agreement to use their reasonable best efforts to obtain the requisite governmental approvals, there can be no assurance that these approvals will be obtained. In addition, the governmental authorities from which these approvals are required may impose conditions on the completion of the merger or require changes to the terms of the merger. Under the terms of the merger agreement, Schlumberger is required to agree to take all actions demanded by an antitrust regulator in order to resolve any objections to the merger (including divestitures, hold-separate restrictions or other restrictions) if doing so would not exceed a specified threshold, which is referred to as the detriment limit. The detriment limit would be exceeded if the required divestitures or hold-separate restrictions affect assets other than (1) the W-H Energy Services business and corresponding Schlumberger operations and (2) other assets accounting for Schlumberger or Smith revenues of not more than \$190 million in 2009, excluding from such calculation any W-H Energy Services operations and Smith's Wilson business unit. Please see The Merger Agreement Certain Additional Agreements Filings on page 74 for more information on the calculation of the detriment limit. If Schlumberger agrees to undertake divestitures or comply with operating restrictions in

order to obtain any approvals required to complete the merger, Schlumberger may be less able to realize anticipated benefits of the merger, and the business and results of operations of the combined company after the merger may be adversely affected.

A portion of the combined company s revenue will be dependent on the activity level of natural gas exploration and production in North America.

Upon consummation of the merger, a portion of the combined company s revenues will be derived from its North American operations. Because of the current economic environment and related decrease in demand for energy, natural gas exploration and production in North America have decreased significantly from their peak levels in the summer of 2008. Warmer than normal winters in North America, among other factors, may adversely impact demand for natural gas and, therefore, demand for oilfield services. If the economic conditions deteriorate further or do not improve, the decline in natural gas exploration and production could cause a decline in the demand for the services and products of the combined company. Such decline could result in a significant adverse effect on the operating results of the combined company and the expected benefits of the merger.

#### Risks Relating to Schlumberger Common Stock Following the Merger

The market value of Schlumberger common stock could decline if large amounts of its common stock are sold following the merger.

Following the merger, stockholders of Schlumberger and former stockholders of Smith will own interests in a combined company operating an expanded business with more assets and a different mix of liabilities. Current stockholders of Schlumberger and Smith may not wish to continue to invest in the combined company, or may wish to reduce their investment in the combined company, in order to comply with institutional investing guidelines, to increase diversification or to track any rebalancing of stock indices in which Schlumberger or Smith common stock is included. If, following the merger, large amounts of Schlumberger common stock are sold, the price of its common stock could decline.

The merger will likely not be accretive, and may be dilutive, to Schlumberger s earnings per share in the near term, which may negatively affect the market price of Schlumberger common stock.

Schlumberger anticipates that the merger will not be accretive, and may be dilutive, to earnings per share in the near term. This expectation is based on preliminary estimates that may materially change. In addition, future events and conditions could decrease or delay any accretion, result in dilution or cause greater dilution than is currently expected, including:

adverse changes in energy market conditions;
commodity prices for oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids;
production levels;
reserve levels;
operating results;
competitive conditions;
laws and regulations affecting the energy business;

capital expenditure obligations; and

general economic conditions.

Any dilution of, or decrease or delay of any accretion to, Schlumberger s earnings per share could cause the price of Schlumberger s common stock to decline.

27

The shares of Schlumberger common stock to be received by Smith stockholders upon the completion of the merger will have different rights from shares of Smith common stock.

Upon completion of the merger, Smith stockholders will no longer be stockholders of Smith, a Delaware corporation, but will instead become shareholders of Schlumberger, a company organized under the laws of the Netherlands Antilles, and their rights as shareholders will be governed by Netherlands Antilles law and Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and bylaws. Netherlands Antilles law and the terms of Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and bylaws may be materially different than Delaware law and the terms of Smith s restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, which currently govern the rights of Smith stockholders. Please see Comparison of Shareholder Rights for a discussion of the different rights associated with Schlumberger common stock.

### Risks Relating to Schlumberger and Smith

The offshore oil and gas operations of the combined company could be adversely impacted by the Deepwater Horizon drilling rig accident and resulting oil spill.

On April 20, 2010, a fire and explosion occurred onboard the semisubmersible drilling rig *Deepwater Horizon*, owned by Transocean Ltd. and under contract to a subsidiary of BP plc. In response to this incident, the Minerals Management Service of the U.S. Department of the Interior, or MMS, issued a notice on May 30, 2010 implementing a six-month moratorium on certain drilling activities in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. The notice also stated that the MMS would not consider during the six-month moratorium period drilling permits for new wells and related activities for specified water depths. In addition, wells covered by the moratorium that were then being drilled were required to halt drilling and take steps to secure the well. On June 22, 2010, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana issued a preliminary injunction prohibiting the enforcement of the moratorium, which the Department of the Interior has appealed to the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. On July 8, 2010, the court of appeals denied the government s request that the district court s order be stayed while the appeal is pending. On July 12, 2010, the Secretary of the Department of the Interior directed the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and Enforcement, or BOEM (formerly named the MMS), to issue a suspension until November 30, 2010 of drilling activities for specified drilling configurations and technologies, rather than a moratorium based on water depths. The BOEM has issued new safety guidelines and is expected to issue new environmental guidelines or regulations for drilling in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and may take other steps that could increase the costs of exploration and production, reduce the area of operations and result in permitting delays.

Schlumberger Oilfield Services revenue attributable to the U.S. Gulf of Mexico represented approximately 3.5% of consolidated Schlumberger revenue for the year ended December 31, 2009. In addition, WesternGeco U.S. Gulf of Mexico revenue amounted to approximately 1.8% of consolidated revenue. The majority of these revenues related to the high-technology services and products deployed in deepwater operations.

At this time, neither Smith nor Schlumberger can predict what further impact, if any, the *Deepwater Horizon* incident may have on the regulation of offshore oil and gas exploration and development activity, the cost or availability of insurance coverage to cover the risks of such operations, or what actions may be taken by customers of Schlumberger or Smith or other industry participants in response to the incident. Increased costs for the operations of Schlumberger s and Smith s customers in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, along with permitting delays, could affect the economics of currently planned activity in the area and demand for their services and may result over the long term in a shift in activity away from the United States. A prolonged suspension of drilling activity in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and resulting new regulations could materially adversely affect each company s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

28

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This proxy statement/prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein include forward-looking statements about Schlumberger, Smith and the combined company within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act, Section 21E of the Exchange Act, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The opinions, forecasts, projections, or other statements other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Similarly, statements that describe future plans, objectives or goals or future revenues or other financial metrics are also forward-looking statements. Although Schlumberger and Smith believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, they can give no assurances that such expectations will prove to have been correct. These statements are subject to, among other things, satisfaction of the closing conditions to the merger, the risk that the contemplated merger does not occur, negative effects from the pendency of the merger, the ability to successfully integrate the merged businesses and to realize expected synergies, the risk that Schlumberger and Smith will not be able to retain key employees, expenses of the merger, and other risk factors.

Statements that are predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or that include words such as would, should, plans, likely, expects, anticipates, intends, believes, estimates, thinks, may and similar expressions, are forward-looking stateme following important factors, in addition to those discussed under Risk Factors and elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein, could affect the future results of the energy industry in general, and Schlumberger after the merger in particular, and could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by such forward-looking statements:

forecasts or expectations regarding business outlook;
overall demand for and pricing of the products and services of Schlumberger and Smith;
growth for Schlumberger, Smith and the combined company (and for specified products or geographic areas within each business segment);
Schlumberger s ability to integrate the operations of Smith;
the amount and timing of any cost savings synergies or other efficiencies expected to result from the merger;
oil and natural gas demand and production growth;
oil and gas prices;
operating margins;
regulatory and operational risks arising from the international nature of Smith s and Schlumberger s operations;
capital expenditures by the companies and the oil and gas industry;
the business strategies of customers;

failure to retain certain key employees and skilled workers;
effects of the drilling moratorium in the Gulf of Mexico, or related changes in laws or regulations;
future global economic conditions;
expected pension and post-retirement funding;
expected stock compensation costs;
future results of operations;
political stability of oil-producing countries;
changes in laws or regulations;
the various risks and other factors considered by the respective boards of Schlumberger and Smith as described under The Merger Smith s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors and under The Merger Schlumberger Reasons for the Merger;
future and pro forma financial condition or results of operations and future revenues and expenses;
business strategy and other plans and objectives for future operations;
regulatory conditions which may be imposed as a condition to approval of the merger;
changes in interest rates;
unexpected liabilities, including environmental liabilities; and
loss of intellectual property rights.

Table of Contents 53

29

## **Table of Contents**

Any projection or estimate by Smith that was furnished to its financial advisor, including those statements summarized herein, was made as of a date shortly before the date of the merger agreement and spoke only as of the date furnished and has not been updated. These estimates and projections were only intended to be used by such financial advisor for analysis of the merger and are not intended to provide guidance as to future results and should not be relied upon for that purpose.

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to Schlumberger or Smith or to persons acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by reference to these risks and uncertainties. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Each forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date of the particular statement, and neither Schlumberger nor Smith undertakes any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements except as required by law.

For additional information with respect to these factors, see Where You Can Find More Information.

30

#### THE COMPANIES

# Schlumberger Limited (Schlumberger N.V.)

Founded in 1926, Schlumberger is the world s leading supplier of technology, integrated project management and information solutions to the international oil and gas exploration and production industry. Having invented wireline logging as a technique for obtaining downhole data in oil and gas wells, Schlumberger today provides the industry s widest range of products and services from exploration through production. As of December 31, 2009, Schlumberger employed approximately 77,000 people of over 140 nationalities operating in approximately 80 countries. Schlumberger consists of two business segments, Schlumberger Oilfield Services and WesternGeco. Schlumberger Oilfield Services provides the industry s widest range of products and services from exploration to production, while WesternGeco is the world s most technologically advanced surface seismic acquisition and processing company.

The principal United States market for Schlumberger's common stock is the NYSE, where it is traded under the symbol SLB. Schlumberger's common stock is also traded on the Euronext Paris, Euronext Amsterdam, London and SIX Swiss stock exchanges.

Schlumberger has principal executive offices in Paris, Houston and The Hague. Its principal executive offices in the United States are located at 5599 San Felipe, 17th Floor, Houston, Texas 77056, and its telephone number is (713) 513-2000.

## Smith International, Inc.

Founded in 1902, Smith is a leading global provider of premium products and services used during the drilling, completion and production phases of oil and natural gas development activities. Smith s business is segregated into three operating segments, M-I SWACO, Smith Oilfield and Distribution. Smith provides a comprehensive line of technologically-advanced products and engineering services, including drilling and completion fluid systems, solids-control and separation equipment, waste-management services, three-cone and diamond drill bits, borehole enlargement services, tubulars, directional systems, measurement-while-drilling and logging-while-drilling services, coiled tubing, cased-hole wireline and other complementary downhole tools and services. Smith also offers supply-chain management solutions through an extensive North American branch network providing pipe, valves and fittings as well as mill, safety and other maintenance products.

Smith s common stock is listed on the NYSE, where it is traded under the symbol SII.

Smith was incorporated in the state of California in January 1937 and reincorporated under Delaware law in May 1983. Smith s executive offices are headquartered at 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073, and its telephone number is (281) 443-3370.

# **Turnberry Merger Sub Inc.**

Turnberry Merger Sub Inc., referred to as Merger Sub, is a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger. Merger Sub was formed solely for the purpose of participating in the merger and has conducted no activities other than in connection with the merger.

31

#### THE ANNUAL MEETING

## **Date, Time and Place**

The annual meeting of Smith stockholders will be held on Tuesday, August 24, 2010, at 9:00 a.m., local time, at the Hotel du Pont, located at 11th and Market Streets, Wilmington, Delaware.

# **Purpose of the Smith Annual Meeting**

At the Smith annual meeting, Smith stockholders will be asked to vote on the following proposals:

- to adopt the merger agreement;
- 2. to elect three Class III directors to hold office until the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders or until their respective successors have been elected and qualified;
- 3. to approve Smith s 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated;
- 4. to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2010 fiscal year; and
- 5. to approve the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the annual meeting.

Only the approval of Proposal 1 is required for the completion of the merger.

# Smith Record Date; Stock Entitled to Vote

Only Smith stockholders of record at the close of business on July 26, 2010, which is referred to as the record date, will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Smith annual meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof.

As of July 14, 2010, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, there were 248,576,204 shares of Smith common stock outstanding and expected to be entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting. The Smith common stock is the only class of securities entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting. Each share of Smith common stock outstanding on the record date entitles the holder thereof to one vote on each matter properly brought before the Smith annual meeting, exercisable in person or by proxy through the internet or by telephone or by a properly executed and delivered proxy with respect to the Smith annual meeting.

As of July 14, 2010, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, directors and executive officers of Smith and their affiliates owned and were entitled to vote 1,487,629 shares of Smith common stock, or approximately 0.60% of the shares of Smith common stock outstanding on that date. It is currently expected that Smith s directors and executive officers will vote their shares in favor of the adoption of the merger agreement and each of the other proposals described in this proxy statement/prospectus, although none of them have entered into any agreements obligating them to do so.

For a period of at least 10 days prior to the Smith annual meeting, a complete list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting will be open to examination by any Smith stockholder during ordinary business hours at the office of the Smith Corporate Secretary at 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073.

#### Quorum

The holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock entitled to vote constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business at the Smith annual meeting. If you have returned valid proxy instructions or attend the meeting in person, your Smith common stock will be counted for the purpose of determining whether there is a quorum, even if you wish to abstain from voting on some or all matters introduced at the

meeting. Broker non-votes are included in the calculation of the number of shares considered to be present at the Smith annual meeting.

As of July 14, 2010, there were 248,576,204 shares of Smith common stock outstanding and expected to be entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting. Accordingly, it is expected that the presence, in person or by proxy, of holders of approximately 124,288,103 shares of Smith common stock will be required in order to establish a quorum.

#### **Required Vote**

Adoption of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the aggregate voting power of the shares of Smith common stock outstanding as of the record date and entitled to vote at the Smith annual meeting.

Election of the directors requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast either for or against the election of such director at the Smith annual meeting. An abstention does not count as a vote cast for these purposes. If a nominee is not elected, he must promptly tender his resignation to the Smith board of directors, which will determine, based on a recommendation from the nominating and corporate governance committee of the Smith board of directors, whether to accept or reject the resignation. In the event of a vacancy on the Smith board of directors, a majority of the remaining directors will appoint a successor or decrease the size of the Smith board of directors.

Approval of Smith s 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal, provided that at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock vote on such proposal.

Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2010 fiscal year requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal.

Approval of the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal.

# Treatment of Abstentions, Not Voting and Incomplete Proxies

For the merger proposal, an abstention or a failure to vote will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST such proposal.

For the election of directors, assuming a quorum is present, an abstention or a failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of the election.

For the incentive plan proposal, assuming a quorum is present and at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock vote on such proposal, a failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for the proposal, while an abstention will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** such proposal.

For the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2010 fiscal year, assuming a quorum is present, a failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for the proposal, while an abstention will have the same effect as a vote AGAINST such proposal.

For the approval of the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting, if necessary, assuming a quorum is present, a failure to vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for the proposal, while an abstention will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** such proposal. If a proxy is received without indication as to how to vote on any particular proposal, the shares of Smith common stock represented by such proxy will be voted as recommended by the Smith board of directors with respect to that proposal.

# Voting of Proxies by Holders of Record

Giving a proxy means that a Smith stockholder authorizes the persons named in the enclosed proxy card to vote its shares at the Smith annual meeting in the manner it directs. A Smith stockholder may vote by proxy or in person at the Smith annual meeting. If you hold your shares of Smith common stock in your name as a stockholder of record, to submit a proxy, you as a Smith stockholder may use one of the following methods:

Submit a proxy by internet, by accessing the website specified on the proxy card and following the instructions on the proxy card;

**Submit a proxy by telephone**, by dialing the toll-free number specified on the proxy card and following the instructions on the proxy card; or

**Submit a proxy by mail**, by completing and returning the proxy card in the enclosed envelope. The envelope requires no additional postage if mailed in the United States.

A signed proxy also confers discretionary authority to vote with respect to any matter presented at the Smith annual meeting, except as set forth in the proxy and except for matters proposed by a stockholder who notifies Smith not later than the close of business on July 26, 2010. At the date hereof, management has no knowledge of any business that will be presented for consideration at the Smith annual meeting and which would be required to be set forth in this proxy statement/prospectus or the related proxy card other than the matters set forth in the Smith Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. If any other matter is properly presented at the Smith annual meeting for consideration, it is intended that the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy and acting thereunder will vote in accordance with their best judgment on such matter.

Every Smith stockholder s vote is important. Accordingly, each Smith stockholder should sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card, or submit a proxy via the internet or by telephone, whether or not it plans to attend the Smith annual meeting in person. Proxies must be received by August 23, 2010.

### **Shares Held in Street Name**

If you are a Smith stockholder and your shares are held in street name in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or nominee, you must provide the record holder of your shares with instructions on how to vote the shares. Please follow the voting instructions provided by the bank or broker. You may not vote shares held in street name by returning a proxy card directly to Smith or by voting in person at the Smith annual meeting unless you provide a legal proxy, which you must obtain from your bank or broker. Further, brokers who hold shares of Smith common stock on behalf of their customers may not give a proxy to Smith to vote those shares with respect to the merger proposal, the Smith incentive plan proposal or the election of directors without specific instructions from their customers, as brokers do not have discretionary voting power on such matters.

Therefore, if you are a Smith stockholder and you do not instruct your broker or other nominee on how to vote your shares:

Your broker or other nominee may not vote your shares on the merger proposal, for which broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** such proposal.

Your broker or other nominee may not vote your shares for the election of directors, for which broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the election.

Your broker or other nominee may not vote your shares on the incentive plan proposal, for which broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** such proposal.

Your broker or other nominee may vote your shares on the other Smith annual meeting matters.

34

# Revocability of Proxies and Changes to a Smith Stockholder s Vote

As a Smith stockholder, you have the power to change your vote at any time before your shares are voted at the Smith annual meeting by:

submitting notice in writing to Smith s Corporate Secretary at Smith International, Inc., 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073 that you are revoking your proxy (which, if you hold your shares in street name, you must do in accordance with instructions from your bank or broker);

executing and delivering a later-dated proxy card or submitting a later-dated proxy by telephone or on the internet; or

voting in person at the Smith annual meeting.

If you are a Smith stockholder of record, revocation of your proxy or voting instructions through the internet, by telephone or by mail must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern time, on August 23, 2010, although you may also revoke your proxy by attending the Smith annual meeting and voting in person. However, if your shares are held in street name by a bank or broker, you may revoke your instructions only by informing the bank or broker in accordance with any procedures it has established.

# Participants in Smith s Benefit Plans

Participants in the Smith International, Inc. 401(k) Retirement Plan, Wilson 401(k) Retirement Plan, M-I Retirement Plan or M-I L.L.C. Greybull Retirement Plan have received voting instruction cards in lieu of a proxy card. Only the trustees of these plans, in their capacity as directed trustees, can vote the plan shares at the Smith annual meeting.

# **Solicitation of Proxies**

The solicitation of proxies from Smith stockholders is made on behalf of the Smith board of directors. Smith and Schlumberger will each bear their own costs and expenses, including with respect to printing and mailing this proxy statement/prospectus and payment of fees to the SEC. Smith will pay the costs of soliciting and obtaining proxies from Smith stockholders, including the cost of reimbursing brokers, banks and other financial institutions for forwarding proxy materials to their customers. Proxies may be solicited, without extra compensation, by Smith officers and employees by mail, telephone, fax, personal interviews or other methods of communication. Smith has engaged the firm of MacKenzie Partners, Inc. to assist Smith in the distribution and solicitation of proxies from Smith stockholders and will pay MacKenzie Partners, Inc. an estimated fee of \$25,000, as well as out-of-pocket expenses for its services.

35

## **PROPOSALS**

# **Proposal 1: Adoption of the Merger Agreement**

Smith is asking its stockholders to vote on the proposal to adopt the merger agreement. For a detailed discussion of the terms and conditions of the merger, see The Merger Agreement. As discussed in the section entitled The Merger Smith s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors, after careful consideration, the Smith board of directors, by a unanimous vote of all directors, determined that the merger, the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement are advisable and in the best interests of Smith and its stockholders, and approved the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby.

Adoption of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock. For purposes of this vote, an abstention or a failure to vote or to instruct a broker or nominee to vote will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** the proposal.

We will vote your shares as you specify on your proxy card. If you properly execute and return your proxy card (in paper form, electronically via the internet or by telephone), but do not specify how you want your shares voted, we will vote them **FOR** the adoption of the merger agreement.

The Smith board of directors unanimously recommends that Smith stockholders vote FOR the adoption of the merger agreement.

## **Proposal 2: Election of Directors**

At the Smith annual meeting, stockholders will elect three persons as Class III directors to hold office until the 2013 annual meeting of Smith stockholders, or until they are succeeded by other qualified directors who have been appointed or elected. The nominees are James R. Gibbs, Duane C. Radtke and John Yearwood. It is not expected that the members of the Smith board of directors will continue to serve on the board of Smith or of the combined company following the completion of the merger.

Directors must be elected by a majority of the votes cast at the meeting either for or against the election of such director. We will vote your shares as you specify on your proxy card. If you properly execute and return your proxy card (in paper form, electronically via the internet or by telephone), but do not specify how you want your shares voted, we will vote them **FOR** the election of all of the nominees listed above.

Each of the nominees is a current member of the Smith board of directors and has consented to serve if elected. Although management does not contemplate the possibility, in the event any nominee is not a candidate or is unable to serve as a director at the time of the election, the proxies will vote for any nominee who is designated by the present Smith board of directors to fill the vacancy.

#### The Smith board of directors recommends a vote FOR each of the director nominees named above.

Please see Election of Directors of Smith for a brief biography of all directors, including the director nominees.

## Proposal 3: Approval of the 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated

At the Smith annual meeting, you will be asked to approve an amendment and restatement to the Smith International, Inc. 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the plan ), which incorporates previous amendments, increases by 5,000,000 the number of shares of Smith common stock reserved for the plan and makes other minor changes identified herein. On July 15, 2010, the last reported closing price of Smith s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape was \$40.29.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the Smith annual meeting and entitled to vote will be required to approve the plan, provided that the total votes cast on the proposal represent at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock.

# Proposal 4: Ratification of the Appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee of the Smith board of directors has selected Deloitte & Touche LLP as its independent registered public accounting firm to audit the books and records of Smith for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. The services of Deloitte & Touche LLP will include the audit of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting. Smith has been advised by Deloitte & Touche LLP that the firm has no relationship with Smith or its subsidiaries other than that arising from the firm s engagement as independent registered public accountants and, in limited circumstances, tax advisors. Deloitte & Touche LLP has audited Smith s financial statements since April 15, 2002.

Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Smith s independent registered public accountants requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal. For purposes of this vote, an abstention will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** the proposal.

The Smith board of directors recommends a vote FOR the continued engagement of Deloitte & Touche LLP as independent registered public accounting firm to audit Smith s books and records for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010.

# Proposal 5: Approval of the Adjournment of the Smith Annual Meeting, if Necessary

Smith is asking its stockholders to vote on a proposal to approve the adjournment of the Smith annual meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes to adopt the merger agreement at the time of the annual meeting.

Adjournment of the Smith annual meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on such proposal. For purposes of this vote, an abstention will have the same effect as a vote **AGAINST** the proposal.

The Smith board of directors recommends that the stockholders vote FOR approval to adjourn the Smith annual meeting, if necessary.

#### Other Business

The Smith board of directors does not intend to present any other business for action at the meeting, and Smith has not been advised of any other business intended to be presented by others.

37

#### THE MERGER

# **Background of the Merger**

Smith and Schlumberger periodically review and assess their industry and strategic alternatives available to enhance shareholder value. As leading companies in their respective lines of business, Smith and Schlumberger are generally familiar with each other s business. Smith and Schlumberger have, from time to time, discussed and engaged in both commercial and strategic transactions with each other, and meet regularly at board meetings of and otherwise with respect to the operation of M-I SWACO, a joint venture between Smith and Schlumberger since 1999, of which Smith is a 60 percent owner and Schlumberger is a 40 percent owner. The terms of the M-I SWACO joint venture include a buy/sell provision pursuant to which either Smith or Schlumberger can offer to sell to the other its entire ownership interest in M-I SWACO in exchange for a cash purchase price per percentage interest specified by the offering party. If the initiating party s offer to sell is not accepted, such party is obligated to purchase the other party s interest at the same valuation per percentage interest. In addition, the terms of the M-I SWACO joint venture agreements require a party which is undergoing a change of control to offer to sell to the other its entire ownership interest in M-I SWACO in exchange for a cash purchase price per percentage interest specified by the offering party, and the non-offering party may either accept such offer, require the offering party to purchase the non-offering party s interest at the same valuation per percentage interest or retain its ownership interest.

In late 2005, Schlumberger approached Smith and suggested that the parties discuss a potential business combination. In connection with these discussions, Smith and Schlumberger entered into a confidentiality agreement dated November 7, 2005, in which Smith and Schlumberger each agreed to a standstill provision providing that it would not, for a period of two years, acquire or seek, offer or propose to acquire any securities of the other party or undertake certain other transactions to control or influence the other party. Following the exchange of high-level due diligence information and preliminary discussions, Schlumberger proposed a business combination with consideration per share of Smith common stock consisting of 0.6824 shares of Schlumberger common stock (as adjusted for a 2006 split of the Schlumberger common stock) and \$8.00 in cash. Schlumberger s offer equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$9.8 billion, including \$8.5 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, based on the number of outstanding shares as of the then-most recently available filings and including all of Smith s debt and cash (including all of the debt and cash in Smith s M-I SWACO joint venture and CE Franklin Ltd. subsidiary) and the book value of the noncontrolling interests in M-I SWACO and CE Franklin Ltd. The Smith board concluded that, in light of Smith s prospects at the time and the trading multiples of each company s shares relative to their historical levels, the financial terms of the proposed transaction were not acceptable, and discussions terminated in late November 2005.

On January 13, 2006, Mr. Doug Rock, then-Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer of Smith, Mr. Loren Carroll, a Smith director, Mr. Andrew Gould, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Schlumberger, and Mr. Simon Ayat, currently Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Schlumberger, met to discuss a potential business combination. However, Smith and Schlumberger were unable to reach an agreement on price, and discussions were terminated prior to the parties commencing substantive discussions on other terms.

During the second and third quarter of 2007, Schlumberger and Smith engaged in discussions regarding the creation of a new joint venture that would have involved Smith s drill bits business. Among other possibilities, the parties discussed reducing Schlumberger s interest in M-I SWACO in connection with this new joint venture. Ultimately, the parties were unable to agree on the relative values of Smith Technologies and M-I SWACO and discussions terminated.

In early February 2008, Mr. Ayat approached Mr. John Yearwood, who was then a director of Smith and who had been employed by Schlumberger for more than 27 years, most recently serving as Senior Advisor to the Chief Executive Officer of Schlumberger from March 2006 until May 2008, regarding a potential business

combination of Smith and Schlumberger. On February 8, 2008, Smith and Schlumberger entered into a new confidentiality agreement, which again provided for a standstill period extending for two years from the date of the agreement. Prior to any material discussions regarding a business combination, Schlumberger decided to pursue other business opportunities and advised Smith that it would not make a proposal to Smith.

In late January 2009, Mr. Simon Ayat, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Schlumberger, called Mr. Yearwood, who had since been named Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer of Smith, and suggested that they discuss the possibility of a business combination. Mr. Ayat did not present any specific proposal. Mr. Yearwood indicated that he would discuss the matter with the Smith board.

At meetings in early February 2009, the Smith board, together with UBS Securities LLC, its financial advisor, and Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, its legal advisor, considered the possibility of entering into business combination discussions with Schlumberger, but determined not to do so in view of Smith s need to refinance debt which had impending maturities and the dislocation in the credit markets. The Smith board, while generally acknowledging the strategic logic of the combination, believed that the timing for a negotiation of a business combination with Schlumberger was inopportune. The Smith board believed that it was not practicable for Smith at the time to attempt to conduct discussions concerning a business combination while simultaneously seeking to publicly or privately sell its debt securities. Accordingly, Mr. Yearwood met with Mr. Gould and informed him that Smith was not interested in discussing a business combination at that time.

Smith completed a public offering of \$1 billion of senior notes in March 2009 to refinance certain of its impending debt maturities. Following this refinancing, Mr. Ayat again suggested to Mr. Yearwood that they discuss a business combination. On April 14, 2009, Smith and Schlumberger entered into a new confidentiality agreement, which again provided for a two-year standstill period, as well as an agreement that neither party would exercise its rights under the M-I SWACO buy/sell provisions for a period of 90 days after termination of negotiations between the parties. Following execution of the confidentiality agreement, Smith furnished due diligence information to Schlumberger and the parties conducted due diligence of Smith, which included meetings between members of Smith and Schlumberger management. Mr. Gould and Mr. Yearwood also had several discussions regarding the potential terms of a business combination.

On May 12, 2009, Schlumberger sent a letter to Smith proposing a business combination with consideration equivalent to 0.70 shares of Schlumberger common stock per share of Smith common stock, consisting of 85% in Schlumberger common stock and 15% in cash in a transaction intended to be taxable to Smith stockholders, which equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$12.4 billion, including \$8.6 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, calculated on the same basis as described above.

In late May and early June 2009, the Smith board met, along with its financial and legal advisors, to consider the Schlumberger proposal, including the financial terms of the proposal, the likelihood that the transaction could be successfully completed, and potential responses to the proposal. The Smith board considered alternatives to a business combination transaction, including exercising the M-I SWACO buy/sell provisions and continuing its existing business with the buy/sell provisions remaining in place, but did not believe these alternatives compared favorably from a financial and strategic perspective to the transaction proposed by Schlumberger. The Smith board also considered approaching other potential counterparties with respect to a business combination as an alternative to a strategic transaction with Schlumberger, but believed that strategic benefits similar to those offered by the Schlumberger proposal were not readily obtainable from other parties, and believed that several of the other potentially interested parties either lacked the financial resources to make a financially more attractive offer and/or would have significant risks relating to antitrust approvals for any such business combination. Further, despite its view that a competing bid was highly unlikely, the Smith board concluded that any merger agreement should include provisions which would permit an interested party to offer a superior transaction and enable the Smith board to terminate the Schlumberger transaction upon payment of a relatively modest breakup fee in order to proceed with any such superior transaction. Following these

39

#### **Table of Contents**

discussions, Mr. Yearwood sent a letter to Mr. Gould on June 4, 2009 suggesting that Schlumberger increase the amount of the consideration to the equivalent of 0.775 shares of Schlumberger common stock per share of Smith common stock, which equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$13.8 billion, including \$9.9 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, calculated on the same basis as described above. Mr. Yearwood also recommended, among other matters, that Schlumberger commit to take any actions necessary to obtain regulatory approvals and to pay a ticking fee if the transaction were not consummated by the end of 2009, and that Smith have the right to terminate the transaction to accept a superior proposal on payment of a break-up fee of 2.5% of Smith s pre-signing equity value, in which case the M-I SWACO buy/sell provisions would be suspended for two years.

On June 9, 2009, Mr. Ayat responded to Mr. Yearwood that Schlumberger was not prepared to increase the consideration or modify the provisions regarding regulatory approval, the ticking fee and the suspension of the M-I SWACO buy/sell provisions and he reiterated Schlumberger s prior proposal.

The Smith board met on June 10 and 11, 2009, along with its financial and legal advisors, to discuss the Schlumberger response, including the valuation of Smith and the allocation of risks that antitrust approvals would not be obtained. Among the methods that the Smith board considered for allocating regulatory risks were to require greater commitments by Schlumberger to make divestitures, require Schlumberger to pay a fee if the transaction were terminated for failure to obtain regulatory approvals or require Schlumberger to increase the consideration paid to Smith stockholders if the closing of the transaction were delayed. Following these discussions, the Smith board determined that it was prepared to consider a business combination with Schlumberger on revised terms, including consideration equivalent to 0.72 shares of Schlumberger common stock per share of Smith common stock in which Smith stockholders would receive 85% Schlumberger common stock and 15% cash in a fully taxable transaction, which equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$13.7 billion, including approximately \$9.8 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, calculated on the same basis as described above. On June 11, 2009, Mr. Yearwood sent to Mr. Gould a letter proposing this level of consideration as well as a requirement for Schlumberger to accept regulatory requirements to divest certain assets; a reverse termination fee of \$600 million payable by Schlumberger if regulatory approvals were not obtained; a one-year suspension of the M-I SWACO buy/sell provisions upon such termination; a delayed ticking fee; and a Smith right to terminate the transaction to accept a superior proposal on payment of a break-up fee of 1% of Smith signing date equity value.

Later in the day on June 11, 2009, Mr. Gould sent to Mr. Yearwood a letter presenting what Mr. Gould characterized as Schlumberger s best and final offer, expiring at the close of business on June 12, 2009. This proposal accepted Smith s proposed consideration but increased the break-up fee payable by Smith to 3% of Smith s signing date equity value and rejected the related suspension of the M-I SWACO buy/sell provisions which Smith had proposed, limited Schlumberger s divestiture obligations to assets (other than W-H and Wilson assets) generating up to \$250 million in revenues, reduced the reverse termination fee payable by Schlumberger to 3% of Smith s signing date equity value, and eliminated the ticking fee.

At a meeting on June 12, 2009, the Smith board, along with its financial and legal advisors, met to discuss Schlumberger s proposal. The Smith board reviewed each of the points in the Schlumberger letter in detail with management and its advisors. At the conclusion of its deliberations, the Smith board determined to proceed with the negotiation of a definitive merger agreement on the basis of the Schlumberger proposal. Mr. Yearwood informed Mr. Gould of the Smith board s willingness to proceed on this basis. Later that evening, Schlumberger s legal advisor, Baker Botts L.L.P., delivered a draft merger agreement to Wachtell, Lipton. Over the next week, Wachtell, Lipton, Baker Botts and members of Smith s and Schlumberger s respective management teams negotiated the terms of the merger agreement and related documentation, while Schlumberger, Smith, and their respective advisors continued their due diligence efforts.

On June 20, 2009, Mr. Gould informed Mr. Yearwood that the Schlumberger board was concerned about Smith s anticipated financial results for the second quarter of 2009 as furnished to Schlumberger on the previous day. Mr. Gould suggested that merger agreement negotiations be suspended while due diligence efforts

40

continued. Mr. Yearwood responded that it would not be appropriate to continue due diligence efforts if the parties were not actively pursuing a business combination, and Mr. Gould stated that Schlumberger would suspend further work on the business combination pending the expiry of at least three trading days following the announcement of Smith second-quarter earnings.

On August 6, 2009, after Smith s July 28, 2009 earnings announcement, Mr. Gould called Mr. Yearwood to propose reengaging on the same terms as presented in the June 11, 2009 letter (including that consideration would be 85% in Schlumberger common stock and 15% in cash in a fully taxable transaction), except that consideration would be equal to a 35% premium over the average implied exchange ratio based on the closing prices of Schlumberger and Smith common stock from July 6, 2009 through the signing of the definitive merger agreement. Based on such prices through August 6, 2009, this proposal implied consideration equivalent to approximately 0.6206 shares of Schlumberger common stock per share of Smith common stock, which equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$10.9 billion, including \$7.3 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, calculated on the same basis as described above.

At a meeting on August 7, 2009, the Smith board, along with its financial and legal advisors, reviewed Schlumberger s revised proposal and internal and external developments in the Smith business since June 2009. The Smith board decided to reject Schlumberger s proposal, and Mr. Yearwood sent to Mr. Gould a letter to that effect. By letters sent on September 2 and 3, 2009, Schlumberger and Smith officially terminated negotiations.

On November 23, 2009, Mr. Gould and Mr. Yearwood met in response to Mr. Gould s request to review the summer 2009 discussions and Smith s positions on issues other than valuation. During this meeting Mr. Yearwood informed Mr. Gould that, based on Schlumberger s modifications to its proposal following the Smith July 28, 2009 earnings announcement and the Smith board s rejection of that proposal, he believed that in any renewed discussions with Schlumberger, the Smith board would focus on value and certainty of closing. Following this meeting, Mr. Richard E. Chandler, Jr., Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Smith, and Mr. Alex Juden, Secretary and General Counsel of Schlumberger, discussed regulatory approvals, the time and potential concessions that would be required to obtain such approvals and other issues related to closing certainty if discussions were to resume with Schlumberger.

In late January, in light of Mr. Yearwood s prior statements about the board s focus, Mr. Gould requested that he be permitted to make a proposal directly to the Smith board. In response to the request, Mr. Rock, Chairman of the Board of Smith, and Mr. James Gibbs, Lead Director of Smith, met with Mr. Gould to discuss a potential business combination. At this meeting, Mr. Gould expressed his view that Schlumberger was interested in renewing prior discussions with a view to quickly completing a business combination with Smith, but if an agreement was not reached as a result of these discussions, that Schlumberger would proceed with other possible transactions. Mr. Gould suggested meeting through the weekend of February 13, 2010 until midday on Thursday, February 18, 2010 to permit the presentation and discussion of a business combination proposal.

At a meeting on February 3, 2010, the Smith board was informed of the upcoming meeting with Mr. Gould and determined that in order to facilitate direct discussions between the Smith board and Schlumberger, it would be appropriate to establish a negotiation committee composed of Messrs. Rock, Carroll and Yearwood as the three members of the Smith board with the greatest knowledge regarding Smith. On February 13, 2010, Messrs. Gould and Ayat met with Messrs. Rock, Carroll and Yearwood as well as Mr. William Restrepo, Smith s Chief Financial Officer, to discuss the terms of a potential transaction. Mr. Gould proposed a transaction intended to be tax-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes for Smith stockholders, with consideration entirely in the form of Schlumberger common stock with a value equal to a 35% premium over the average closing price of Smith stock for the 10 trading days preceding the date of the definitive merger agreement, and otherwise on the same terms set forth in Schlumberger s June 11, 2009 letter. For the 10 trading days preceding February 13, 2010, this was equivalent to consideration of approximately 0.6595 shares of Schlumberger common stock per share of Smith common stock, which equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$13.1 billion, including \$10.5 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, calculated on the same basis as described above. The Smith

41

representatives indicated that the proposed level of consideration was insufficient, and following negotiation, the Schlumberger representatives and Smith representatives reached agreement on a proposed valuation formula with a 40% premium over the 10-day trading period, which as of that day was equivalent to consideration of approximately 0.6839 shares of Schlumberger common stock per share of Smith common stock, which equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$13.5 billion, including \$10.9 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, calculated on the same basis as described above. Messrs. Gould, Yearwood, Rock and Carroll then left the meeting, which was joined by Mr. Peter Pintar, Smith s Vice President Corporate Strategy and Development and Mr. Simon Farrant, Schlumberger s Portfolio Manager, Mr. Krishna Shivram, Schlumberger s Manager, Mergers & Acquisitions, and Messrs. Chandler and Juden, whereupon the parties confirmed various commercial and financial aspects of the proposed transaction in light of the agreements reached earlier in the meeting, and discussed next steps. On February 14, 2010, Messrs. Gould, Ayat, Shivram, Farrant and Juden met with Messrs. Yearwood, Restrepo, Pintar and Chandler to continue to confirm various aspects of the proposed transaction that had been discussed the previous day.

The Smith board met on February 14, 2010, along with its financial and legal advisors, to review the Schlumberger proposal. Following this discussion, the Smith board authorized Smith management and advisors to continue the negotiations with Schlumberger, including negotiation of the terms of a merger agreement. Later that evening Baker Botts delivered a draft merger agreement to Wachtell, Lipton based on the draft agreement that had been discussed in June 2009, and Smith and Schlumberger recommenced due diligence efforts.

The Smith board met again on February 16, 2010, along with its financial and legal advisors, to discuss the Schlumberger proposal in detail, including the financial aspects of the proposal, and further information from the ongoing negotiations and due diligence. The Smith board discussed the advisability of the proposed transaction, including among other things the valuation implied by the proposal, Smith s business prospects and strategy, and the strategic benefits of a combination with Schlumberger. The Smith board also discussed whether other parties were likely to be able to enter into alternative business combinations on terms more favorable to Smith stockholders and concluded that other parties were not likely to be able to do so. The Smith board considered the consequences of a premature disclosure that could endanger the Schlumberger negotiations. The Smith board also considered that the terms of the draft merger agreement allowed the Smith board to change or withdraw its recommendation or terminate the merger agreement in favor of a superior proposal. The Smith board determined to continue with negotiations. Over the next several days, Smith and Schlumberger continued their due diligence efforts, including management interviews of both Smith and Schlumberger officers, while Wachtell, Lipton and Baker Botts negotiated the terms of a merger agreement.

On February 18, 2010, the Schlumberger board met to consider the terms of the proposed transaction. Goldman, Sachs & Co., Schlumberger s financial advisor, reviewed with the Schlumberger board its preliminary financial analysis of the exchange ratio provided for in the proposed merger. Following discussion, the Schlumberger board unanimously approved the proposed merger agreement, the proposed merger, and the other agreements and transactions contemplated by the proposed merger agreement, subject to the receipt by the finance committee of the Schlumberger board of Goldman Sachs s final financial analysis of the exchange ratio provided for in the proposed merger, and the finance committee s not recommending that the Schlumberger board s approval be revised or withdrawn.

After the close of trading on February 18, 2010, media reports regarding the proposed transaction began to circulate, causing significant shifts in the trading prices of both Smith and Schlumberger common stock on February 19, 2010. The Smith board met later that day, along with its financial and legal advisors, to receive an update as to these reports and the effect on the proposed merger consideration. The Smith board authorized Mr. Yearwood to negotiate with Schlumberger adjustments to the calculation of the exchange ratio in response to these events. Mr. Yearwood and Mr. Ayat spoke later that day and agreed, in light of the media reports which had affected the trading prices of the Smith and Schlumberger common stock, to modify the proposed valuation formula by replacing the actual trading prices on February 19, 2010 with a second occurrence of the February 18, 2010 trading prices, which resulted in an exchange ratio of 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock per

42

## **Table of Contents**

share of Smith common stock and which equated to a total enterprise value of approximately \$14.0 billion, including \$11.4 billion for the shares of Smith common stock, based on the closing price of Smith and Schlumberger common stock on February 18, 2010, calculated on the same basis as described above, and which reflected a 40.6% premium to the average implied historical exchange ratio between the shares of common stock of the two companies for the 10 trading day period ended February 18, 2010 and a 37.7% premium to the same ratio for the 10 trading day period ended February 19, 2010. The terms of the proposed merger agreement, including the proposed exchange ratio of 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock per share of Smith common stock, were finalized and submitted to the Smith board and the Schlumberger board for their consideration.

On February 20, 2010, the Smith board met, along with its financial and legal advisors, to consider the terms of the proposed transaction, which had been negotiated. UBS reviewed with the Smith board its financial analysis of the exchange ratio provided for in the proposed merger. Wachtell, Lipton reviewed the legal terms of the proposed merger agreement, including the provisions relating to the allocation of regulatory risks. UBS delivered to the Smith board an oral opinion, which was confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated February 20, 2010, attached hereto as Annex B, to the effect that, as of that date and subject to the factors and assumptions set forth in such opinion, the 0.6966 exchange ratio provided for in the proposed merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to Smith s stockholders, other than Schlumberger and its affiliates, as more fully described below under the caption Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor. Following discussion, the board unanimously determined that the proposed merger agreement, the proposed merger, and the other agreements and transactions contemplated by the proposed merger agreement are fair to and in the best interests of Smith and its stockholders, and approved and adopted and declared to be advisable the proposed merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the proposed merger agreement, including the proposed merger.

On February 21, 2010, the finance committee of the Schlumberger board met to consider the terms of the proposed transaction. Goldman Sachs reviewed with the finance committee its financial analysis of the exchange ratio provided for in the proposed merger. Following discussion, pursuant to the authority delegated to the committee by the Schlumberger board, the finance committee unanimously determined to proceed with the transaction.

Later in the day on February 21, 2010, the merger agreement was executed by Smith, Schlumberger and Turnberry Merger Sub Inc., and Smith and Schlumberger issued a joint press release announcing the merger agreement.

# Smith s Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the Smith Board of Directors

In reaching its decision to approve the merger and the merger agreement and recommend adoption of the merger agreement by Smith stockholders, the Smith board of directors consulted with Smith senior management, as well as with Smith s legal and financial advisors, and considered a number of factors, including the following material factors:

The fact that the implied value of the proposed exchange ratio, based on the closing price of Schlumberger common stock on February 18, 2010 (the last trading day before various news outlets began reporting on a possible transaction involving Smith and Schlumberger), represented a 37.5% premium to the closing price of Smith common stock on such date and a 40.6% premium to the average implied historical exchange ratio between the shares of common stock of the two companies for the 10 trading day period ended February 18, 2010.

The fact that Smith stockholders immediately prior to the merger would own approximately 12.8% of the equity interests of Schlumberger immediately following the completion of the merger, which would give former Smith stockholders the opportunity to participate in future earnings and growth of Schlumberger and future appreciation in the value of Schlumberger s common stock following the merger should they determine to retain the Schlumberger common stock they would receive in the merger.

43

The fact that the combined company would be a global leader in oil and natural gas supply and services, operating in a wide variety of areas such as drilling fluid systems, drill bits, wireline, directional drilling, tubular products, down-hole tools, coiled tubing, and waste management services, which it believed would benefit Smith and the combined company.

The fact that the combined company would be able to offer an integrated suite of products and services to its customers, including in areas outside of the fluid systems, solids-control and separation equipment, waste-management services, drill bits, downhole tools and services and supply chain management businesses which Smith currently operates, and would have enhanced capability to design and implement technological advances in equipment and operations.

The Smith board s belief that a business combination with Schlumberger offered strategic benefits as described above that would not be easily realized with other counterparties.

The fact that Smith did not receive any proposals from any party other than Schlumberger regarding a business combination with Smith at any time during the consideration of the various Schlumberger proposals.

The Smith board of directors knowledge of Smith s business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects and of Schlumberger s business, operations, financial condition, earnings and prospects, taking into account the results of Smith s due diligence review of Schlumberger.

The prevailing macroeconomic conditions, and the economic environment of the industries in which Smith and Schlumberger operate, including Schlumberger s strong performance in the recent challenging operating environment, which it viewed as supporting the rationale for seeking a strategic transaction that should create a global oil and natural gas supply and services company better positioned to respond to volatile macroeconomic and industry conditions than Smith on a standalone basis.

The fact that the financial profile of a combined Smith and Schlumberger would be more attractive than that of Smith as a standalone company, with a more diversified revenue base, both with respect to product/service offering and geography, and a greater free cash flow as well as the synergies anticipated to be achievable in connection with the merger.

The strong strategic fit with Schlumberger, particularly with respect to integrated design of drilling assemblies, including drill bits and drilling fluids, distribution and supply-chain services, and product development programs, and increasing demand by exploration and development companies for a single source of oilfield supplies and services.

The longstanding relationship with Schlumberger through joint ownership and operation of M-I SWACO, as well as the terms of the M-I SWACO joint venture permitting either Smith or Schlumberger to initiate a purchase or sale of the parties interests in M-I SWACO, which terms create challenges for companies other than Schlumberger which may seek to engage in a business combination with Smith unless Schlumberger supports such transaction, as well as risks that Schlumberger could select a time for the exercise of the M-I SWACO buy/sell provisions which could prove to be inopportune to Smith.

The financial analyses and presentation of UBS, and its related written opinion, dated February 20, 2010, to the effect that, as of that date and based upon and subject to the factors and assumptions set forth in its opinion (a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex B), the exchange ratio was fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of shares of Smith common stock, other than Schlumberger and its affiliates. See Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor and Financial Projections.

The level of the commitments by the parties to obtain applicable regulatory approvals, which in the view of the Smith board of directors after considering the advice of counsel, made it highly likely that the merger, once announced, would be completed.

The expectation that the merger will qualify as a reorganization for U.S. federal income tax purposes and that, as a result, the exchange by Smith stockholders of their shares of Smith common stock for shares of Schlumberger common stock in the merger generally will be tax-free to Smith stockholders.

44

The fact that the merger agreement allows the Smith board of directors to change or withdraw its recommendation regarding the merger proposal if a superior transaction proposal is received from a third party or in response to certain material developments or changes in circumstances, if in either case the Smith board of directors determines that a failure to change its recommendation would result in a breach of its fiduciary duties under applicable law, subject to the payment of a termination fee upon termination under certain circumstances.

The fact that the merger agreement requires payment of a termination fee by Schlumberger upon termination of the merger agreement under certain circumstances. See 
The Merger Agreement Termination, Amendment and Waiver.

The fact that the combined company would have a highly experienced management team with extensive industry experience in most significant facets of the oil and natural gas supply and services industry, which experience and leadership were considered beneficial to Smith and the combined company.

The Smith board of directors also considered potential risks and potentially negative factors concerning the merger in connection with its deliberations of the proposed transaction, including:

The possibility that the merger may not be completed, or that completion may be unduly delayed, for reasons beyond the control of Smith and Schlumberger.

The risk that regulatory agencies may not approve the merger or may impose terms and conditions on their approvals that would either materially impair the business operations of the combined company or adversely impact the ability of the combined company to realize the synergies that are projected to occur in connection with the merger.

The risks inherent in combining and integrating two companies, including that the companies may not be successfully integrated or that the synergies anticipated to be achievable from combining the two companies may not be realized.

The fact that the exchange ratio included in the merger agreement provides for a fixed number of shares of Schlumberger common stock, the possibility that Smith stockholders could be adversely affected by a decrease in the trading price of Schlumberger common stock before the closing of the merger, and the fact that the merger agreement does not provide Smith with a termination right based on the trading price of Schlumberger common stock or other similar protection.

The potential for diversion of management and employee attention and for increased employee attrition during the substantial period prior to the completion of the merger, and the potential effect of the merger on Smith s business and relations with customers and suppliers.

The potential impact of the restrictions imposed by the merger agreement on Smith sability to take specified actions during the period prior to the completion of the merger (which may delay or prevent Smith from undertaking business opportunities that may arise pending completion of the merger).

The transaction costs to be incurred in connection with the merger.

The potential that the termination payment provisions of the merger agreement and the provisions of the M-I SWACO joint venture could have the effect of discouraging a bona fide alternative business combination proposal for Smith.

The possibility that the fee that Schlumberger would be required to pay under the merger agreement upon termination of the merger agreement under certain circumstances would be insufficient to compensate Smith for its costs incurred in connection with the merger agreement.

The interests of Smith executive officers and directors with respect to the merger apart from their interests as Smith stockholders, and the risk that these interests might influence their decision with respect to the merger (see Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger ).

45

The Smith board of directors concluded that the potentially negative factors associated with the proposed merger were outweighed by the potential benefits that it expected the Smith stockholders would achieve as a result of the merger.

In view of the wide variety of factors considered in connection with its evaluation of the merger and the complexity of these matters, the Smith board of directors did not find it useful and did not attempt to quantify or assign any relative or specific weights to the various factors that it considered in reaching its determination to approve the merger and the merger agreement and to recommend that Smith stockholders vote for the merger proposal. In addition, individual members of the Smith board of directors may have given differing weights to different factors. The Smith board of directors conducted an overall analysis of the factors described above, including through discussions with, and questioning of, Smith management and outside legal and financial advisors regarding certain of the matters described above.

The Smith board of directors, by a unanimous vote of all directors, determined that the merger, the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement are advisable and in the best interests of Smith and its stockholders, and approved the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

The Smith board of directors unanimously recommends that Smith stockholders vote **FOR** the adoption of the merger agreement.

This explanation of Smith s reasons for the merger and other information presented in this section is forward-looking in nature and, therefore, should be read in light of the factors described under Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.

### Schlumberger s Reasons for the Merger

Schlumberger believes the merger will create sustainable long-term value for its stockholders. Key factors considered by Schlumberger include the following:

Smith s operations complement and strengthen Schlumberger s strategy to provide its customers with engineered drilling systems that optimize all the components of the drillstring, allowing customers to drill more economically in demanding conditions;

by increasing its interest in M-I SWACO from 40% to 100%, Schlumberger would increase its ability to design and deploy drillings fluids to, together with its bottom-hole assembly technologies, optimize the drilling system;

Schlumberger believes that it can leverage Wilson s core supply chain management competencies to improve Schlumberger s existing supply chain and logistics systems;

certain Smith products fill gaps in Schlumberger s current portfolio, enabling the combined company to offer a more complete offering to customers:

the merger is anticipated to provide Schlumberger with additional opportunities through new product development programs enabled by Smith s assets and operations;

the continued strength of the balance sheet of the combined company post-merger in order to maintain business flexibility; and

Schlumberger s expectation that the merger would result in meaningful cost savings and operational synergies, estimated to include approximately \$160 million in 2011 and approximately \$320 million in 2012.

Opinion of Smith s Financial Advisor

On February 20, 2010, at a meeting of Smith s board of directors held to evaluate the proposed merger, UBS delivered to Smith s board of directors an oral opinion, which opinion was confirmed by delivery of a written opinion, dated February 20, 2010, to the effect that, as of that date and based on and subject to various

assumptions, matters considered and limitations described in its opinion, the exchange ratio provided for in the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to holders of Smith common stock other than Schlumberger and its affiliates.

The full text of UBS—opinion describes the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by UBS. A copy of this opinion is attached as Annex B hereto and is incorporated into this proxy statement/prospectus by reference. Holders of Smith common stock are encouraged to read UBS—opinion carefully in its entirety. UBS—opinion was provided for the benefit of Smith—s board of directors in connection with, and for the purpose of, its evaluation of the exchange ratio from a financial point of view and does not address any other aspect of the merger. The opinion does not address the relative merits of the merger as compared to other business strategies or transactions that might be available with respect to Smith or Smith—s underlying business decision to effect the merger. The opinion does not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to how to vote or act with respect to the merger. The following summary of UBS—opinion is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of UBS—opinion.

In arriving at its opinion, UBS, among other things:

reviewed certain publicly available business and financial information relating to Smith and Schlumberger;

reviewed certain internal financial information and other data relating to Smith s business and financial prospects that were not publicly available, including financial forecasts and estimates prepared by Smith s management that Smith s board of directors directed UBS to utilize for purposes of its analysis;

reviewed certain financial information and other data relating to the business and financial prospects of Schlumberger that were publicly available, including Wall Street consensus financial forecasts and estimates as published by Institutional Brokers Estimate System (IBES) for 2010 (Schlumberger Street Estimates) that Smith s management directed UBS to utilize for purposes of its analysis;

conducted discussions with members of the senior managements of Smith and Schlumberger concerning the businesses and financial prospects of Smith and Schlumberger;

reviewed publicly available financial and stock market data with respect to certain other companies UBS believed to be generally relevant;

compared the financial terms of the merger with the publicly available financial terms of certain other transactions UBS believed to be generally relevant;

reviewed current and historical market prices of Smith common stock and Schlumberger common stock;

reviewed a draft of the merger agreement; and

conducted such other financial studies, analyses and investigations, and considered such other information, as UBS deemed necessary or appropriate.

In connection with its review, with the consent of Smith s board of directors, UBS assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness in all material respects of the information provided to or reviewed by UBS for the purpose of its opinion. In addition, with the consent of Smith s board of directors, UBS did not make any independent evaluation or appraisal of any of the assets or liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of Smith or Schlumberger, and was not furnished with any such evaluation or appraisal. With respect to the financial forecasts and estimates for Smith referred to above, UBS assumed, at the direction of Smith s board of directors, that such forecasts and estimates

were reasonably prepared on a basis reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of Smith s management as to the future financial performance of Smith. UBS was not provided with any Schlumberger internal financial forecasts or estimates, nor with any forecasts or estimates regarding Schlumberger prepared by Smith, and therefore did not consider any such

information in connection with its analysis or its opinion. Based on UBS discussions with Smith s board of directors, UBS assumed, with the consent of Smith s board of directors, that the Schlumberger Street Estimates that UBS reviewed were a reasonable basis upon which to evaluate the future performance of Schlumberger for 2010 and UBS used such forecasts and estimates for purposes of its analysis and its opinion. UBS assumed, with the consent of Smith s board of directors, that the merger would qualify for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. UBS opinion was necessarily based on economic, monetary, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information available to UBS as of, the date of its opinion.

At the direction of Smith s board of directors, UBS was not asked to, and it did not, offer any opinion as to the terms, other than the exchange ratio to the extent expressly specified in UBS opinion, of the merger agreement or the form of the merger. In addition, UBS expressed no opinion as to the fairness of the amount or nature of any compensation to be received by any officers, directors or employees of any parties to the merger, or any class of such persons, relative to the exchange ratio. UBS expressed no opinion as to what the value of Schlumberger common stock would be when issued pursuant to the merger or the price at which Smith common stock or Schlumberger common stock would trade at any time. In rendering its opinion, UBS assumed, with the consent of Smith s board of directors, that (i) the final executed form of the merger agreement would not differ in any material respect from the draft that UBS reviewed, (ii) Smith and Schlumberger would comply with all material terms of the merger agreement and (iii) the merger would be consummated in accordance with the terms of the merger agreement without any adverse waiver or amendment of any material term or condition of the merger agreement. UBS also assumed that all governmental, regulatory or other consents and approvals necessary for the consummation of the merger would be obtained without any material adverse effect on Smith, Schlumberger or the merger. UBS was not authorized to solicit and did not solicit indications of interest in a transaction with Smith from any party. Except as described above, Smith imposed no other instructions or limitations on UBS with respect to the investigations made or the procedures followed by UBS in rendering its opinion. The issuance of UBS opinion was approved by an authorized committee of UBS.

In connection with rendering its opinion to Smith s board of directors, UBS performed a variety of financial and comparative analyses which are summarized below. The following summary is not a complete description of all analyses performed and factors considered by UBS in connection with its opinion. The preparation of a financial opinion is a complex process involving subjective judgments and is not necessarily susceptible to partial analysis or summary description. With respect to the selected companies analyses of Smith and Schlumberger and the selected transactions analysis summarized below, no company or transaction used as a comparison was identical to Smith, Schlumberger or the merger. These analyses necessarily involve complex considerations and judgments concerning financial and operating characteristics and other factors that could affect the public trading or acquisition values of the companies concerned.

UBS believes that its analyses and the summary below must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of its analyses and factors or focusing on information presented in tabular format, without considering all analyses and factors or the narrative description of the analyses, could create a misleading or incomplete view of the processes underlying UBS analyses and opinion. UBS did not draw, in isolation, conclusions from or with regard to any one factor or method of analysis for purposes of its opinion, but rather arrived at its ultimate opinion based on the results of all analyses undertaken by it and assessed as a whole.

The estimates of the future performance of Smith and Schlumberger provided by Smith or derived from public sources in or underlying UBS analyses are not necessarily indicative of future results or values, which may be significantly more or less favorable than those estimates. In performing its analyses, UBS considered industry performance, general business and economic conditions and other matters, many of which were beyond the control of Smith and Schlumberger. Estimates of the financial value of companies do not purport to be appraisals or necessarily reflect the prices at which businesses or securities actually may be sold or acquired.

48

The exchange ratio was determined through negotiation between Smith and Schlumberger and the decision by Smith to enter into the merger agreement was solely that of Smith s board of directors. UBS opinion and financial analyses were only one of many factors considered by Smith s board of directors in its evaluation of the merger and should not be viewed as determinative of the views of Smith s board of directors or management with respect to the merger or the exchange ratio.

The following is a brief summary of the material financial analyses performed by UBS and reviewed with Smith s board of directors on February 20, 2010 in connection with its opinion relating to the proposed merger. The financial analyses summarized below include information presented in tabular format. In order for UBS financial analyses to be fully understood, the tables must be read together with the text of each summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses. Considering the data below without considering the full narrative description of the financial analyses, including the methodologies and assumptions underlying the analyses, could create a misleading or incomplete view of UBS financial analyses. For purposes of certain analyses described below, the term implied per share value of the merger consideration refers to the implied per share value of the merger consideration based on the merger exchange ratio of 0.6966 and the closing price of Schlumberger common stock on February 19, 2010 of \$63.90.

### Smith Financial Analyses

Enterprise value and transaction value for Smith were calculated as the aggregate value of Smith s equity (based on, where indicated below, the unaffected market price or the implied per share value of the merger consideration) plus debt at book value and noncontrolling interests at book value, less cash and cash equivalents. Enterprise value and transaction value for Smith on a net basis were calculated as the aggregate value of Smith s equity (based on, where indicated below, the unaffected market price or the implied per share value of the merger consideration) plus debt at book value, less cash and cash equivalent, less 40% of the net debt of M-I SWACO and less 45.4% of the net debt of CE Franklin Ltd. Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) for Smith on a net basis was calculated as EBITDA, less 40% of the EBITDA of M-I SWACO and less 45.4% of the EBITDA of CE Franklin Ltd. Cash flow for Smith was calculated as net income before deducting the noncontrolling interests in such income plus depreciation and amortization, less distributions to minority holders of M-I SWACO and CE Franklin Ltd. Cash flow for Smith on a net basis was calculated as net income after deducting such noncontrolling interests plus depreciation and amortization.

Selected Companies Analysis

UBS compared selected financial and stock market data of Smith with corresponding data of the following six U.S. listed publicly traded large capitalization oilfield services companies with diversified product offerings (i.e., not focused primarily on contract drilling services):

Schlumberger
Halliburton Company
National Oilwell Varco, Inc.
Baker Hughes Incorporated
Weatherford International Ltd.

### Cameron International Corporation

UBS reviewed, among other things, the enterprise values of the selected companies, calculated as equity market value based on closing stock prices on February 19, 2010 (except for that of Schlumberger, which was based on its unaffected closing price on February 18, 2010, the last trading day before various news outlets began reporting on a possible transaction involving Smith and Schlumberger), plus debt at book value, preferred stock at liquidation value and noncontrolling interests at book value, less cash and cash equivalents, as multiples of latest 12 months

( LTM ) EBITDA. Historical balance sheet data were based on the most recent publicly available information as of February 19, 2010. UBS also reviewed closing stock prices of the selected companies

on the dates referred to above as a multiple of (i) calendar years 2010 and 2011 estimated earnings per share ( EPS ) and (ii) calendar years 2010 and 2011 cash flow per share ( CFPS ). UBS then compared these multiples derived for the selected companies with corresponding multiples implied for Smith based both on the closing price of Smith common stock on February 18, 2010 and the implied per share value of the merger consideration. Financial data for the selected companies were based on IBES consensus estimates, public filings and other publicly available information. Estimated financial data for Smith were based on IBES consensus estimates and internal estimates of Smith s management, referred to as Smith Management Estimates. This analysis indicated the following implied high, mean, median and low multiples for the selected companies, as compared to corresponding multiples implied for Smith:

	Price/EPS		Price/CFPS		Ent	alue/	
	2010E	2011E	E 2010E 2011E		LTM	<b>2010E</b>	2011E
High	24.1x	17.2x	14.9x	11.9x	12.5x	11.3x	9.1x
Mean	20.8x	14.7x	11.7x	9.4x	10.1x	9.0x	7.3x
Median	22.5x	14.9x	11.9x	9.4x	10.6x	8.9x	7.2x
Low	14.0x	12.0x	7.8x	5.9x	6.0x	6.8x	6.3x
IBES Consensus Estimates:							
Smith	30.6x	17.6x	13.0x	9.7x	11.4x	10.1x	7.5x
Smith @ Offer	40.8x	23.5x	17.4x	13.0x	14.4x	12.7x	9.5x
Smith Management Estimates:							
Smith	35.9x	17.7x	12.7x	9.2x	11.4x	9.8x	7.1x
Smith @ Offer	47.9x	23.7x	17.0x	12.3x	14.4x	12.3x	9.0x
Smith (Net)	35.9x	17.7x	13.8x	9.8x	13.7x	11.4x	8.1x
Smith @ Offer (Net) Selected Transactions Analysis	47.9x	23.7x	18.5x	13.1x	17.8x	14.7x	10.5x

UBS reviewed transaction values in the following fifteen selected transactions, comprising transactions in the prior twelve years (i) for which forward looking research analyst estimates were available at the time of the announcement of the transaction, (ii) involving target companies with product offerings not focused primarily on contract drilling and (iii) with transaction values in excess of \$1 billion, with the sole exception of the NATCO Group Inc. acquisition by Cameron International Corporation, which was included despite having a transaction value below \$1 billion because of its pertinence due to its having occurred within the previous twelve months:

Announcement Date	Acquiror	Target
August 31, 2009	Baker Hughes Incorporated	BJ Services Company
June 1, 2009	Cameron International Corporation	NATCO Group Inc.
June 13, 2008	Candover Investments plc	Expro International Group Ltd.
June 2, 2008	Smith	W-H Energy Services, Inc.
December 19, 2007	First Reserve Corporation	Abbot Group Limited
December 17, 2007	National Oilwell Varco, Inc.	Grant Prideco, Inc.
February 5, 2007	Universal Compression, Inc.	Hanover Compressor Company
September 5, 2006	Compagnie Générale de Géophysique	Veritas DGC Inc.
June 6, 2005	Weatherford International Ltd.	Precision Drilling Corporation
August 12, 2004	National-Oilwell, Inc.	Varco International Incorporated
July 3, 2001	Technip	Coflexip Stena Offshore Group S.A.
June 19, 1998	Schlumberger	Camco International Inc.
May 11, 1998	Baker Hughes Incorporated	Western Atlas Inc.
March 4, 1998	EVI, Inc.	Weatherford Enterra, Inc.
February 26, 1998	Halliburton Company	Dresser Industries, Inc.

UBS reviewed, among other things, transaction values in the selected transactions, calculated as the purchase price paid for the target company s equity, plus debt at book value, preferred stock at liquidation value and noncontrolling interests at book value, less cash and cash equivalents, as multiples of estimated EBITDA for the fiscal year ending after the then current fiscal year at the time of announcement (FY+1). Historical balance sheet data were based on the most recent publicly available information at the time of announcement of the relevant transaction. UBS also reviewed the purchase price paid for the target company s equity in the selected transactions as multiples of, to the extent publicly available, FY+1 estimated cash flow and FY+1 estimated net income. Estimated financial data for the targets listed in the Selected Transactions Analysis were based on IBES consensus estimates as of the time of announcement of the applicable transaction. UBS then compared these multiples derived for the selected transactions with corresponding multiples implied for Smith based on the implied per share value of the merger consideration. Multiples for the selected transactions were based on publicly available information at the time of announcement of the relevant transaction. Estimated financial data for Smith were based on internal estimates of Smith s management. This analysis indicated the following implied high, median, mean and low multiples for the selected transactions, as compared to corresponding multiples implied for Smith:

	Eq	Equity Value/					
	FY +1 Cash Flow	FY +1 Net Income	FY +1 EBITDA				
High	23.1x	42.5x	14.5x				
Mean	12.5x	25.8x	9.8x				
Median	11.7x	23.6x	8.8x				
Low	7.2x	13.4x	6.1x				
IBES Consensus Estimates:							
Smith	13.0x	30.6x	10.1x				
Smith @ Offer	17.4x	40.8x	12.7x				
Smith Management Estimates:							
Smith	12.7x	35.9x	9.8x				
Smith @ Offer	17.0x	47.9x	12.3x				
Smith (Net)	13.8x	35.9x	11.4x				
Smith @ Offer (Net)	18.5x	47.9x	14.7x				
Discounted Cash Flow Analysis							

UBS performed a discounted cash flow analysis of Smith using financial forecasts and estimates prepared by Smith s management. UBS calculated a range of implied present values (as of December 31, 2009) of the standalone unlevered, after-tax free cash flows that Smith was forecasted to generate from 2010 through 2013 using discount rates ranging from 10.5% to 12.5%, based on an estimated range of Smith s weighted average cost of capital. UBS also calculated a range of implied terminal values for Smith by applying a range of EBITDA terminal value multiples of 7.0x to 9.0x to Smith s mid-cycle EBITDA, as estimated by Smith s management that Smith s board of directors directed UBS to use for purposes of its analysis. UBS selected the range of terminal value multiples following a review of Smith s historical LTM EBITDA trading multiple over a period that included multiple oil price cycles. The implied terminal values were then discounted to present value using discount rates ranging from 10.5% to 12.5%. The discounted cash flow analysis resulted in a range of implied present values of approximately \$27.50 to \$37.50 per outstanding share of Smith common stock, as compared to the implied per share value of the merger consideration of \$44.51.

## Schlumberger Financial Analysis

Selected Companies Analysis

UBS compared selected financial and stock market data of Schlumberger with corresponding data of the selected companies referred to above under Smith Financial Analyses Selected Companies Analysis; with the difference that Smith was included as a selected company instead of Schlumberger.

UBS reviewed, among other things, the enterprise values of the selected companies (based on closing stock prices on February 19, 2010, except for that of Smith, which was based on its unaffected closing price on February 18, 2010, the last trading day before various news outlets began reporting on a possible transaction involving Smith and Schlumberger) as multiples of LTM EBITDA, calendar year 2010 and calendar year 2011 estimated EBITDA. UBS also reviewed closing stock prices of the selected companies on the dates referred to above as a multiple of (i) calendar year 2010 and 2011 estimated EPS and (ii) calendar year 2010 and 2011 CFPS. UBS then compared these multiples derived for the selected companies with corresponding multiples implied for Schlumberger based on the closing price of Schlumberger common stock on February 18, 2010. Financial data for the selected companies and Schlumberger were based on IBES consensus estimates, public filings and other publicly available information. This analysis indicated the following implied high, mean, median and low multiples for the selected companies, as compared to corresponding multiples implied for Schlumberger:

	Price	Price/EPS		Price/CFPS		EV/ EBITDA	
	2010E	2011E	2010E	2011E	LTM	2010E	2011E
High	30.6x	17.6x	14.9x	11.9x	12.0x	10.1x	7.6x
Mean	22.1x	14.8x	11.6x	9.2x	10.0x	8.8x	7.0x
Median	22.6x	14.9x	11.9x	9.4x	10.6x	8.9x	7.2x
Low	14.0x	12.0x	7.8x	5.9x	6.0x	6.8x	6.3x
IBES Consensus Estimates:							
Schlumberger	22.6x	17.2x	13.7x	11.4x	12.5x	11.3x	9.1x
Contribution Analysis							

UBS reviewed the respective estimated contributions to the merger on the combined company s estimated pro forma EBITDA, cash flow, and net income for fiscal year 2010. Estimated financial data for Schlumberger were based on Schlumberger Street Estimates. Estimated financial data for Smith were based on internal estimates of Smith s management.

The analysis indicated the following relative contributions of Smith and Schlumberger to the combined company s pro forma estimated 2010 EBITDA, as compared to the enterprise values of each company, based on both the unaffected stock prices and on the implied per share value of the merger consideration:

	Relative Contributions
<u>2010E EBITDA</u>	
Smith	14%
Schlumberger	86%
Enterprise Value at Unaffected Prices	
Smith	12%
Schlumberger	88%
Enterprise Value at Exchange Ratio	
Smith	15%
Schlumberger	85%

52

UBS also reviewed the respective estimated contributions of Smith and Schlumberger to the combined company s pro forma estimated 2010 net income and cash flow, as compared to the equity values of each company, based on both the unaffected stock prices and on the exchange ratio. This analysis indicated the following relative contributions of Smith and Schlumberger:

	Relative Contributions
2010E Net Income	
Smith	6%
Schlumberger	94%
2010E Cash Flow	
Smith	10%
Schlumberger	90%
Pro Forma Ownership at Unaffected Prices	
Smith	10%
Schlumberger	90%
Pro Forma Ownership at Exchange Ratio	
Smith	13%
Schlumberger	87%
Miscellaneous	

Under the terms of UBS engagement, Smith agreed to pay UBS for its financial advisory services in connection with the merger an aggregate fee currently estimated to be approximately \$29.3 million, a portion of which was payable in connection with the delivery of UBS opinion and approximately \$26.8 million of which is contingent upon consummation of the merger. In addition, Smith agreed to reimburse UBS for its reasonable expenses, including fees, disbursements and other charges of counsel, and to indemnify UBS and related parties against liabilities, including liabilities under federal securities laws, relating to, or arising out of, its engagement. In the past, UBS and its affiliates have provided investment banking services to Smith unrelated to the proposed merger, for which UBS and its affiliates received compensation. Specifically, during the past two years UBS acted as co-manager in Smith s offering of Smith common stock in 2009. In the ordinary course of business, UBS and its affiliates may hold or trade, for their own accounts and the accounts of their customers, securities of Smith and Schlumberger, and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in such securities. Smith selected UBS as its financial advisor in connection with the merger because UBS is an internationally recognized investment banking firm with substantial experience in similar transactions and because of UBS familiarity with Smith, Schlumberger and their respective businesses. UBS is regularly engaged in the valuation of businesses and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, leveraged buyouts, negotiated underwritings, competitive bids, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities and private placements.

### **Financial Projections**

Smith does not, as a matter of course, publicly disclose forecasts as to future performance, earnings or other results due to the unpredictability of the underlying assumptions and estimates. However, in connection with discussions concerning the merger, Smith provided Schlumberger and its financial advisors with certain non-public unaudited prospective financial information based on estimates by Smith management. These estimates were prepared with respect to prospective financial information in connection with due diligence, and were not prepared with a view toward public disclosure or with a view toward complying with the guidelines established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants for preparation and presentation of prospective financial data, published guidelines of the SEC regarding forward-looking statements or GAAP. A summary of this information is presented below.

53

While the financial forecasts were prepared in good faith, no assurance can be made regarding future events. The financial forecasts rely on a number of estimates and assumptions, including the following:

Global rig counts were estimated to increase to 2,552 in 2010, 2,650 in 2011, 2,849 in 2012 and 3,032 in 2013;

The global market was assumed to recover modestly in 2010, with a more robust recovery thereafter, as reflected in global GDP growth estimated to be 1.8% in 2010, 3.6% in 2011, 4.2% in 2012 and 4.1% in 2013;

Margins for earnings before income and taxes were assumed to recover steadily over the forecast period, returning to historical levels after 2012, and were specifically estimated to be 8.8% in 2010, 12.0% in 2011, 14.5% in 2012 and 16.5% in 2013; and

Capital expenditures per revenue dollar and effective tax rate were assumed to remain fairly consistent over the forecast period. These and the other estimates and assumptions underlying the financial forecasts involve judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive, regulatory and financial market conditions and future business decisions that may not be realized and that are inherently subject to significant business, economic, competitive and regulatory uncertainties and contingencies, including, among other things, the inherent uncertainty of the business and economic conditions affecting the industries in which Smith and Schlumberger operate, and the risks and uncertainties described under Risk Factors and Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are outside the control of Smith and Schlumberger and will be beyond the control of the combined company. There can be no assurance that the underlying assumptions will prove to be accurate or that the projected results will be realized, and actual results likely will differ, and may differ materially, from those reflected in the financial forecasts, whether or not the merger is completed. The inclusion in this proxy statement/prospectus of the unaudited prospective financial information below should not be regarded as an indication that Smith, Schlumberger, or their respective boards of directors considered, or now considers, these projections and forecasts to be a reliable predictor of future results. The financial forecasts are not fact and should not be relied upon as being necessarily indicative of future results, and readers of this proxy statement/prospectus are cautioned not to place undue reliance on this information. None of the financial forecasts reflects any impact of the merger.

All of the financial forecasts summarized in this section were prepared by the management of Smith. Deloitte & Touche LLP (Smith s independent registered public accounting firm) has not examined, compiled or otherwise performed any procedures with respect to the prospective financial information contained in these financial forecasts and, accordingly, Deloitte & Touche LLP has not expressed any opinion or given any other form of assurance with respect thereto and they assume no responsibility for the prospective financial information. The Deloitte & Touche LLP reports either incorporated by reference or included in this proxy statement/prospectus relate to the historical financial information of Smith. Such reports do not extend to the financial forecasts and should not be read to do so.

By including in this proxy statement/prospectus a summary of certain financial forecasts, neither Smith nor any of its representatives has made or makes any representation to any person regarding the ultimate performance of Smith or Schlumberger compared to the information contained in the financial forecasts. The financial forecasts summarized in this section were prepared during the periods described above and have not been updated to reflect any changes since February 2010 or the actual 2009 results of operation of Smith, as set forth herein under Selected Historical Financial Data of Smith. Neither Smith, Schlumberger, nor, after completion of the merger, the combined company undertakes any obligation, except as required by law, to update or otherwise revise the financial forecasts or financial information to reflect circumstances existing since their preparation or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, even in the event that any or all of the underlying assumptions are shown to be in error, or to reflect changes in general economic or industry conditions.

54

The summary of the financial forecasts is not included in this proxy statement/prospectus in order to induce any stockholder to vote in favor of the merger proposal or any of the other proposals to be voted on at the Smith annual meeting.

The following tables present select unaudited prospective financial data for the fiscal years ending 2010 through 2013 prepared by Smith s management.

	Fiscal Year Ended December 31,			31,
	2010E	2011E	2012E	2013E
		(in	millions)	
EBITDA (gross) (1)(2)	\$ 1,128	\$ 1,541	\$ 1,982	\$ 2,432
EBITDA (net) (1)(3)	843	1,185	1,562	1,945
Unlevered Free Cash Flow	386	412	552	776
Revenue	8,599	9,673	10,976	12,313

- (1) Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization ( EBITDA ) is a non-GAAP financial measure and should not be considered as an alternative to operating income or net income as a measure of operating performance or cash flows or as a measure of liquidity. EBITDA does not include the impact of any (i) synergies or (ii) costs related to the merger.
- (2) Includes EBITDA associated with noncontrolling interests.
- (3) Excludes EBITDA associated with noncontrolling interests.

### Interests of Smith s Directors and Officers in the Merger

In considering the recommendation of the Smith board of directors that you vote to adopt the merger agreement, you should be aware that some of Smith s executive officers and directors have financial interests in the merger that are different from, or in addition to, those of Smith s stockholders generally. The independent members of Smith s board of directors were aware of and considered these interests, among other matters, in evaluating and negotiating the merger agreement and the merger, and in recommending to the stockholders that the merger agreement be adopted. References in this section to Smith s executive officers are to the following individuals: Malcolm W. Anderson, Richard E. Chandler, Jr., Bryan L. Dudman, John J. Kennedy, Norman A. Mckay, Peter J. Pintar, William Restrepo, Christopher I.S. Rivers, Doug Rock (who resigned as an employee of Smith effective May 12, 2010), Brian E. Taylor, Lee A. Turner, Geraldine D. Wilde and John Yearwood.

Change of Control. For purposes of all of the Smith agreements and plans described below, completion of the merger will constitute a change of control of Smith.

Equity Compensation Awards. The terms of Smith s equity compensation plans and the applicable award agreements provide that, for awards granted prior to the date of the merger agreement, on the day prior to a change of control, all restrictions and conditions on any outstanding restricted stock units lapse, and all performance-based awards become fully vested and deemed earned in full at the specified 100% target amount. Based on Smith equity compensation holdings as of July 14, 2010, and assuming a closing date of November 15, 2010, (1) the number of time-based restricted stock units in respect of Smith common stock held by each of Messrs. Rock, Yearwood, Restrepo, Rivers, Mckay and Dudman, the seven other Smith executive officers (as a group), and the six Smith non-employee directors (as a group), that would vest in connection with completion of the merger is 0, 0, 23,385, 12,453, 74,122, 12,453, 44,093 and 39,671, respectively, and (2) the number of performance-based restricted stock units in respect of Smith common stock held by each of Messrs. Rock, Yearwood, Restrepo, Rivers, Mckay, and Dudman, the seven other Smith executive officers (as a group), and the six Smith non-employee directors (as a group), that would vest in connection with completion of the merger is 0, 265,204, 27,989, 93,705, 61,555, 99,191, 161,738 and 0, respectively. In connection with Mr. Rock s retirement on May 12, 2010 as an employee of Smith, the vesting of 24,324 restricted stock units held by him accelerated.

The merger agreement provides that, upon completion of the merger, (i) each then-outstanding Smith stock option will be converted into a Schlumberger stock option and (ii) each then-outstanding Smith restricted stock unit and performance-based restricted stock unit granted prior to the date of the merger agreement will be

Table of Contents 87

55

cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration. With respect to performance-based restricted stock unit awards, the total number of shares of Smith common stock subject to the award will be calculated based on the deemed attainment of performance goals at 100% of the target performance level. The treatment of outstanding Smith stock options and the cash settlement of other equity awards in the merger, including treatment of awards granted subsequent to the date of the merger agreement, are discussed in greater detail under. The Merger Treatment of Equity Awards.

Change of Control Employment Agreements. Smith is party to change of control employment agreements with each of Messrs. Yearwood, Anderson, Chandler, Kennedy, Restrepo, Mckay, Dudman, Pintar and Rivers. The agreements provide for change of control severance benefits in the event of certain qualifying terminations of employment in connection with or following a change of control.

Under the agreements, if Smith terminates the applicable executive s employment without cause (as defined in the agreements) or the executive terminates employment for good reason (as defined in the agreements and summarized below) at any time during the three-year period commencing upon a change of control or within the 12-month period prior to a change of control but in anticipation thereof, the executive will be eligible to receive the following payments and benefits:

a lump sum cash payment equal to:

the sum of (1) the executive s annual base salary through the termination date (to the extent not already paid), (2) an annual bonus amount equal to the product of (a) the higher of (x) the highest annual bonus paid to the executive in the last three full fiscal years prior to the date of change of control and (y) the annual bonus paid for the most recently completed fiscal year during the post-change of control employment period (the Highest Annual Bonus) and (b) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days in the applicable fiscal year through the termination date, and the denominator of which is 365, and (3) any accrued and unpaid vacation pay;

an amount equal to the product of (1) the Termination Multiple (three times for a termination during the first year following a change of control, two times for a termination during the second year following a change of control and one times for a termination during the third year following a change of control), and (2) the sum of (x) the executive s annual base salary and (y) the Highest Annual Bonus; and

a payment equal to the excess of (1) the actuarial equivalent of the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) benefit that the executive would have received had the executive semployment continued for a number of years after the termination date equal to the Termination Multiple over (2) the actuarial equivalent of the executive sactual SERP benefit;

continued coverage under Smith healthcare and life insurance plans for a number of years equal to the Termination Multiple or such longer period as may be provided by the terms of the appropriate Smith plan; and

outplacement benefits.

For purposes of the change of control employment agreements, good reason is defined generally to include (1) certain diminutions in position, authority, duties, responsibilities, compensation, benefits, (2) certain relocations or (3) any failure by Smith to have a successor assume the agreements. Additionally, a termination by the executive for any reason during the 30-day period immediately following the first anniversary of the change of control will constitute termination for good reason for purposes of the agreements.

*Retention Program.* Under the terms of the merger agreement and subsequent agreements between Smith and Schlumberger, Smith is permitted to establish a retention program with a retention pool in an aggregate amount up to \$74.3 million. Smith has allocated a portion of this aggregate amount to persons who are executive officers of Smith or who are party to change of control employment agreements. These allocations

56

total \$14.1 million in the aggregate if the merger is consummated in 2010 and \$3.75 million in the aggregate if the merger is consummated in 2011. See The Merger Certain Additional Agreements Employee Matters. The individual allocations to executive officers are reflected in the table set forth in Summary of Estimated Value of Equity Awards, Retention Payments and Severance Benefits. The allocated amounts will be payable at the closing if the applicable employee is employed by Smith or its subsidiaries at such time. In addition, Smith recently allocated approximately \$18 million in retention payments to certain employees who are not executive officers, and may make additional allocations.

Summary of Estimated Value of Equity Awards, Retention Payments and Severance Benefits. The chart below sets forth the number of outstanding equity awards that will vest upon consummation of the merger for Smith s executive officers and directors, as well as the estimated aggregate value of such awards. The chart also includes the amount of cash retention payments, the estimated amount of cash severance payments and the estimated value of other severance benefits that the executive officers would receive. Except with respect to the column titled Cash Retention Payments Assuming Consummation of Merger in 2011, the chart assumes that the merger is completed on November 15, 2010 and each executive officer experiences a severance-qualifying termination immediately thereafter.

				Cash	Retention	Cash	n Retention				
		Estimated Va Restricte			nts Assuming mmation of	•	nts Assuming immation of	Estim Ca			stimated ie of Other
	Restricted Stock Units	Stock Units(1)		Me	erger in 2010		erger in 2011	Sever Payme	ance	Se	everance enefits(3)
Doug Rock	0	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0	\$	0
John Yearwood	265,204	10,879,	404		5,250,000		2,550,000	4,22	21,765		102,386
William Restrepo	51,374	2,107,	504		2,000,000		1,050,000	1,61	5,283		102,386
Christopher I.S. Rivers	106,158	4,354,	896		0		0	3,88	39,741		102,386
Norman A. Mckay	135,677	5,565,	847		250,000		150,000	2,95	55,763		102,386
Bryan L. Dudman	111,644	4,579,	947	,	2,500,000		0	4,25	54,165		102,386
Other executive officers, as a											
group	205,831	8,443,	759	4	4,100,000		0	11,88	39,503		409,543
Other non-employee directors,											
as a group	39,671	1,627,	414		0		0		0		0

- (1) Based on the closing price of Schlumberger common stock as of July 14, 2010.
- (2) Cash severance payments include prorated annual bonus, lump-sum cash severance payment, and the SERP equalization payment.
- (3) Other severance benefits include welfare benefit continuation and outplacement benefits.

Employment Agreement with Doug Rock. Effective January 1, 2009, Smith entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Rock, which superseded a prior employment agreement and a prior change of control agreement and provides that Mr. Rock will serve as a Special Executive Advisor to the chief executive officer of Smith. The 2009 employment agreement provided for the payment of certain severance benefits in the event of termination of Mr. Rock s employment by Smith without cause (as defined in his agreement) or upon a change of control (in which case his employment terminates automatically). However, because Mr. Rock resigned from employment on May 12, 2010, Mr. Rock will not receive any change of control related benefits in connection with this transaction.

Deferred Compensation Plans. Smith currently maintains the Post-2004 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the Post-2004 SERP), the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the SERP) and non-qualified deferred compensation plans for, the benefit of officers and certain other eligible Smith employees. Under the terms of the plan, upon the date of an employee s separation from service, his or her account balance generally becomes distributable in the form of payment as elected by the participant. If such separation from service occurs within the 12-month period following a change of control, all distributions are automatically made in a lump sum within 30 days of the separation from service. The SERP and Post-2004 SERP benefits are paid from a rabbi trust. Upon the occurrence of a change of control, these trusts become irrevocable and must be fully funded.

57

Relationship of Smith s Directors and Officers with Schlumberger. There are no agreements or arrangements between Schlumberger and any of the current directors of Smith or any of the executive officers of Smith who were involved in the merger negotiations regarding continued employment or service following the merger. Mr. Yearwood owned shares of Schlumberger common stock with an approximate market value of \$2.27 million as of July 14, 2010.

### No Appraisal Rights

Relevant state law may, under certain circumstances, give stockholders of a corporation appraisal or dissenters rights in connection with a proposed merger. However, Smith stockholders will not have such rights in connection with the merger.

Under Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, appraisal rights are not available for shares of stock if (1) such shares were, at the record date fixed to determine the stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote on the agreement of merger, either (a) listed on a national securities exchange, such as the NYSE, or (b) held of record by more than 2,000 holders, and (2) the holders of such shares will receive shares of stock of another corporation that are listed on a national securities exchange. Because Smith common stock will be listed on the NYSE on the applicable record date and will, upon the completion of the merger, be converted into the right to receive Schlumberger common stock, which will also be listed on the NYSE, Smith stockholders will not have appraisal rights in connection with the merger. The foregoing discussion is not a complete statement of law pertaining to appraisal rights under Delaware law and is qualified in its entirety by reference to Delaware law.

### Listing of Schlumberger Stock and Delisting and Deregistration of Smith Stock

Schlumberger will apply to have the shares of its common stock to be issued in the merger approved for listing on the NYSE, where Schlumberger common stock is currently traded. If the merger is completed, Smith shares will no longer be listed on the NYSE, and will be deregistered under the Exchange Act.

#### Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger

Shares of Schlumberger common stock issued in the merger will not be subject to any restrictions on transfer arising under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except for shares of Schlumberger common stock issued to any Smith stockholder who may be deemed to be an affiliate of Schlumberger after the completion of the merger. This proxy statement/prospectus does not cover resales of Schlumberger common stock received by any person upon the completion of the merger, and no person is authorized to make any use of this proxy statement/prospectus in connection with any resale.

### **Accounting Treatment**

The merger will be accounted for as an acquisition of a business. Schlumberger will record net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Smith at their respective fair values at the date of the completion of the merger. Any excess of the purchase price, which will equal the market value at the date of the completion of the merger, of the Schlumberger common stock issued as consideration for the merger over the net fair value of such assets and liabilities will be recorded as goodwill.

The financial condition and results of operations of Schlumberger after completion of the merger will reflect Smith s balances and results after completion of the transaction but will not be restated retroactively to reflect the historical financial condition or results of operations of Smith. The earnings of Schlumberger following the completion of the merger will reflect acquisition accounting adjustments, including the effect of changes in the carrying value for assets and liabilities on depreciation and amortization expense. Goodwill will not be amortized but will be tested for impairment at least annually, and all assets including goodwill will be tested for impairment when certain indicators are present. If, in the future, Schlumberger determines that tangible or intangible assets (including goodwill) are impaired, Schlumberger would record an impairment charge at that time.

### Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

a broker-dealer or trader in securities or currencies;

a U.S. holder whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar;

The following is a discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. holders and non-U.S. holders (each as defined below) of Smith common stock (1) of the merger and (2) related to the ownership and disposition of Schlumberger common stock received in the merger. This discussion is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which is referred to as the Code, existing and proposed Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial decisions, published rulings, administrative pronouncements and all other applicable authorities, all as in effect on the date of this proxy statement/prospectus and all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. Any such change could affect the accuracy and conclusions set forth in this document. This discussion does not address any aspects of state, local or non-U.S. laws or federal laws other than those pertaining to U.S. federal income taxation, is not a complete analysis or description of all of the possible tax consequences of the merger or of the ownership or disposition of shares of Schlumberger common stock and does not address all tax considerations that may be relevant to a holder in light of the holder s particular circumstances. In addition, this discussion does not address the tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of Schlumberger common stock arising under the unearned income Medicare contribution tax pursuant to the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010. In particular, this discussion addresses only holders that hold their shares of Smith common stock and will hold their shares of Schlumberger common stock as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment) and does not address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to holders subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax law, including, for example, the following:

a holder of Smith shares who, at any time within the five-year period ending on the date of the merger has owned, actually and/or constructively, 5% or more of the stock of Smith;

any person who, immediately after the merger, owns, actually and/or constructively, at least 5% of either the total voting power or the total value of the stock of Schlumberger or who, at any time after the merger, owns, actually and/or constructively, 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock entitled to vote of Schlumberger;

a bank or other financial institution;

a tax-exempt entity;

an insurance company;

a person holding shares as part of a straddle, hedge, constructive sale, integrated transaction, or conversion transaction;

a person holding shares through a partnership or other pass-through entity;

a U.S. expatriate;

a person who is liable for the alternative minimum tax;

a regulated investment company;
a real estate investment trust;
a trader in securities who has elected the mark-to-market method of accounting for its securities; and
a holder who received Smith common stock through the exercise of employee stock options, through a tax qualified retirement plan, or otherwise as compensation.  For purposes of this discussion, a U.S. holder is any beneficial owner of Smith common stock or, after the completion of the merger, Schlumberger common stock that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is:
an individual citizen or resident alien of the United States;
59

### **Table of Contents**

a corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation organized under the laws of the United States or any state thereof or the District of Columbia:

an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

a trust if (1) a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (2) it has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

A non-U.S. holder of Smith common stock or, after the completion of the merger, Schlumberger common stock, is a holder, other than an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, that is not a U.S. holder. For purposes of this discussion, holder or shareholder means either a U.S. holder or a non-U.S. holder or both, as the context may require.

If a partnership (including any entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) is a beneficial owner of Smith common stock or Schlumberger common stock, the tax treatment of a partner in that partnership generally will depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Holders of Smith common stock or Schlumberger common stock that are partnerships or partners in these partnerships should consult their tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences to them of the merger and the ownership and disposition of Schlumberger common stock.

ALL HOLDERS OF SMITH COMMON STOCK ARE ENCOURAGED TO CONSULT A TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THE PARTICULAR FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND NON-U.S. TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THEM OF THE MERGER AND THE OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF SCHLUMBERGER COMMON STOCK RECEIVED IN THE MERGER.

### Conditions to Closing

The merger is intended to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. It is a condition to the completion of the merger that Schlumberger receive a written opinion from its counsel, Baker Botts L.L.P., and that Smith receive a written opinion from its counsel, Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Schlumberger and Smith, respectively, dated as of the date of completion of the merger, to the effect that (1) the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and (2) each transfer of Smith stock to Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the merger (other than a stockholder of Smith that is a five percent transferee shareholder of Schlumberger, as defined in Treasury regulations promulgated under Section 367(a) of the Code) will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Code.

The opinions of counsel will be based on representations and assumptions set forth or referred to in the opinions. If any such representation or assumption is inaccurate, the tax consequences of the merger to holders of Smith common stock could differ materially from those described below. An opinion of counsel represents counsel s best legal judgment and is not binding on the United States Internal Revenue Service, which is referred to as the IRS, or any court.

No ruling will be requested from the IRS on any aspect of the merger. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not disagree with or successfully challenge any of the conclusions described in the following discussion.

### The Merger

The following is a discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger to U.S. holders and non-U.S. holders of Smith common stock. Assuming that (1) the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, and (2) the transfer of Smith stock to

60

### **Table of Contents**

Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the merger will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Code, the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger to such holder of Smith common stock are, in general, as follows.

U.S. Holders

In general, a U.S. holder will not recognize gain or loss upon the exchange of shares of Smith common stock for shares of Schlumberger common stock in the merger, except with respect to cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Schlumberger common stock, as discussed below. The aggregate basis of the shares of Schlumberger common stock received in exchange for shares of Smith common stock in the merger (including any fractional share of Schlumberger common stock deemed received and exchanged for cash) will be equal to the basis of the shares of Smith common stock exchanged. The holding period of the shares of Schlumberger common stock received in exchange for shares of Smith common stock in the merger (including any fractional share of Schlumberger common stock deemed received and exchanged for cash) will include the holding period of the shares of Smith common stock exchanged. Shareholders who hold shares of Smith common stock with differing bases or holding periods should consult their tax advisors as to the determination of the bases and holding periods of the shares of Schlumberger common stock received in the merger.

A U.S. holder who receives cash in lieu of a fractional share of Schlumberger common stock generally will recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the cash received and the tax basis allocated to such fractional share of Schlumberger common stock. Such capital gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss if, as of the date of the merger, the U.S. holder sholding period for the fractional share of Schlumberger common stock (including the holding period for the Smith common stock surrendered therefor) exceeds one year.

A U.S. holder who is a five percent transferee shareholder of Schlumberger, as defined in Treasury regulations promulgated under Section 367(a) of the Code (i.e., a U.S. holder that owns, actually and/or constructively, at least 5% of the total voting power or the total value of the stock of Schlumberger immediately after the merger), will qualify for non-recognition of gain, as described above, only if the U.S. holder files with the IRS a gain recognition agreement, as defined in such Treasury regulations. Other considerations not here described may apply to such a holder. Any such U.S. holder should consult his tax advisor concerning the decision to file a gain recognition agreement, the procedures to be followed in connection with that filing, and other applicable considerations.

Non-U.S. Holders

In general, a non-U.S. holder will not recognize gain or loss upon the exchange of shares of Smith common stock for shares of Schlumberger common stock in the merger, except with respect to cash received in lieu of a fractional share of Schlumberger common stock. The amount of a non-U.S. holder s gain or loss from the receipt of cash in lieu of a fractional share of Schlumberger common stock will be determined in the same manner as that of a U.S. holder. However, a non-U.S. holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any such gain unless (1) the gain is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the non-U.S. holder (and, if an income tax treaty applies, is attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment), or (2) the holder is an individual who has been present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year of the disposition and certain other conditions are satisfied.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments of cash made to a U.S. holder or non-U.S. holder of shares of Smith common stock in connection with the merger, under certain circumstances, may be subject to information reporting and backup withholding (currently, at a rate of 28%), unless such holder provides proof of an applicable exemption or furnishes its

61

### **Table of Contents**

taxpayer identification number, and otherwise complies with all applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules are not additional tax and may be allowed as a refund or credit against the holder s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner.

### Ownership and Disposition of Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock Received in the Merger

The following is a discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the ownership and disposition by U.S. holders and non-U.S. holders of Schlumberger common stock received in the merger.

#### U.S. Holders

#### Distributions

Subject to the discussion below relating to the potential application of the passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, rules, distributions, if any, made with respect to shares of Schlumberger common stock will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent of Schlumberger's current or accumulated earnings and profits as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The gross amount of dividends that a U.S. holder receives generally will be subject to U.S. federal income taxation as dividend income and will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction generally allowed to U.S. corporations. Subject to exceptions for short-term or hedged positions and certain other exceptions, dividends received before January 1, 2011 by U.S. holders who are individuals and certain other non-corporate U.S. holders generally will be subject to U.S. federal income taxation at a maximum rate of 15% if the dividends are qualified dividends. Dividends paid by Schlumberger on the Schlumberger common stock will be treated as qualified dividends as long as the Schlumberger common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and Schlumberger was not, at any relevant time prior to the year in which the dividend is paid, and is not in the year in which the dividend is paid, a PFIC. As described below, Schlumberger believes that it has not been a PFIC in any prior year, will not be a PFIC for the taxable year in which the merger occurs, and will not become a PFIC in the future. U.S. holders of Schlumberger common stock should consult their own tax advisors regarding the availability to them of the reduced dividend tax rate in light of their particular circumstances.

To the extent that a distribution exceeds Schlumberger's current or accumulated earnings and profits as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes, such distribution will be treated as a nontaxable return of capital to the extent of the U.S. holder's tax basis in the shares (with a corresponding reduction in such tax basis), and thereafter will be treated as capital gain. Such capital gain will be long-term capital gain if the U.S. holder's holding period for the Schlumberger common stock exceeds one year. Shareholders who hold shares of Smith common stock with differing bases or holding periods should consult their tax advisors as to the application of these rules to shares of Schlumberger common stock received in the merger.

Sale or Other Disposition of Schlumberger Common Stock

Subject to the discussion below relating to the potential application of the PFIC rules, upon a sale or other disposition of Schlumberger common stock, U.S. holders generally will recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between the amount realized on the disposition and the U.S. holder s tax basis. Such capital gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. holder s holding period for the Schlumberger shares exceeds one year. Long-term capital gain recognized by U.S. holders who are individuals and certain other non-corporate U.S. holders is generally eligible for reduced rates of U.S. federal income taxation. There are limitations on the deductibility of capital losses.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations

In general, a foreign corporation, such as Schlumberger, will be classified as a PFIC for any taxable year in which either (1) 75% or more of its gross income is passive income (such as, for example, dividends, interest,

62

### **Table of Contents**

rents, royalties or gains from the disposition of investment assets) or (2) at least 50% of the average value of its assets consists of assets that produce, or that are held for the production of, passive income. For purposes of applying the tests in the preceding sentence, the foreign corporation is deemed to own its proportionate share of the assets of and to receive directly its proportionate share of the income of any other corporation in which the foreign corporation owns, directly or indirectly, at least 25% by value of the stock.

Classification of a foreign corporation as a PFIC can have various adverse consequences to the shareholders of the corporation who are United States persons, as defined in the Code. These include taxation of gain on a sale or other disposition of the stock of the corporation and taxation of distributions (including distributions that would otherwise be treated as qualified dividends) at the maximum ordinary income rates and the imposition of an interest charge on such gain and distributions.

Schlumberger believes that it has not been a PFIC in any prior taxable year, will not be a PFIC in the taxable year in which the merger occurs, and will not become a PFIC in the future. Because the tests for determining PFIC status are applied annually, and it is difficult to accurately predict future income and assets relevant to this determination, there can be no assurance that Schlumberger will not become a PFIC. U.S. holders of Schlumberger shares should consult their own tax advisors about the PFIC rules, including the availability of certain shareholder elections.

#### Non-U.S. Holders

In general, a non-U.S. holder of Schlumberger common stock will not be subject to U.S. federal income or, subject to the discussion below under the heading Information Reporting and Backup Withholding, withholding tax on any dividends received on Schlumberger common stock or any gain recognized on a sale or other disposition of Schlumberger common stock (including, any distribution to the extent it exceeds the adjusted basis in the non-U.S. holder s shares of Schlumberger common stock) unless:

such dividend or gain is effectively connected with the conduct by the holder of a trade or business within the United States (and, if an income tax treaty applies, is attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment); or

in the case of gain only, the non-U.S. holder is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition and certain other conditions are satisfied.

## Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Dividends paid with respect to shares of Schlumberger common stock and proceeds from a sale or other disposition of shares of Schlumberger common stock received in the United States or through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries may be subject to information reporting and backup withholding (currently, at a rate of 28%) unless such holder provides proof of an applicable exemption or furnishes its taxpayer identification number, and otherwise complies with all applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules.

Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules are not additional tax and may be allowed as a refund or a credit against the holder s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner.

### Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger

### Antitrust Approvals

The merger is subject to review by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice, which is referred to as the Antitrust Division, under the HSR Act. Under the HSR Act, Schlumberger and Smith are required to make premerger notification filings and to await the expiration or early termination of the statutory waiting period (and

63

any extension of the waiting period) prior to completing the merger. On March 3, 2010, Schlumberger and Smith each filed a Premerger Notification and Report Form with the Antitrust Division and the Federal Trade Commission, which is referred to as the FTC. By agreement between the two agencies, the Antitrust Division is conducting the review. Prior to the expiration of the initial 30-day waiting period, on April 2, 2010, Schlumberger and Smith each received a request for additional information and documentary material, often referred to as a second request, from the Antitrust Division. Issuance of the second request extends the statutory waiting period until 30 days after such time as each of Schlumberger and Smith has certified substantial compliance with the second request, unless the Antitrust Division provides written notice that the transaction may close prior to that time. On July 16, 2010, Schlumberger and Smith each certified substantial compliance with the second request.

The merger is also subject to antitrust review by government authorities in several foreign jurisdictions in which the companies have a sufficient market presence to require filings. As of the date of this proxy statement/ prospectus, the parties have made certain antitrust filings in the European Commission pursuant to the EC Merger Regulation, and in other jurisdictions.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, Schlumberger has the right, but not the obligation, to oppose by refusing to consent, through litigation or otherwise, any divestitures, hold-separate restrictions or other restrictions demanded by an antitrust regulator. Schlumberger is required to agree to take all actions demanded by an antitrust regulator in order to resolve any objections to the merger (including divestitures, hold-separate restrictions or other restrictions) if doing so would not exceed a specified threshold, which is referred to as the detriment limit. Please see The Merger Agreement Certain Additional Agreements Filings on page 74 for more information about the detriment limit. If the merger has not occurred on or before the termination date due to the failure to obtain regulatory clearances, or if an order, decree or ruling permanently prohibits the merger, the merger agreement may be terminated (subject in some circumstance to payment of a termination fee, as described in The Merger Agreement Termination, Amendment and Waiver on page 78).

There can be no assurance that the merger will not be challenged on antitrust or competition grounds or, if a challenge is made, what the outcome would be. The Antitrust Division, the FTC, any U.S. state and other applicable U.S. or non-U.S. regulatory bodies may challenge the merger on antitrust or competition grounds at any time, including after the expiration or termination of the waiting period under the HSR Act or other applicable process, as they may deem necessary or desirable or in the public interest. Accordingly, at any time before or after the completion of the merger, any such party could take action under the antitrust laws, including, without limitation, by seeking to enjoin the effective time of the merger or permitting completion subject to regulatory concessions or conditions. Private parties may also seek to take legal action under antitrust or competition laws under certain circumstances.

## Other Regulatory Procedures

The merger may be subject to certain regulatory requirements of other municipal, state and federal, domestic or foreign, governmental agencies and authorities, including those relating to the offer and sale of securities. Schlumberger and Smith are currently working to evaluate and comply in all material respects with these requirements, as appropriate, and do not currently anticipate that they will hinder, delay or restrict completion of the merger.

### Litigation Relating to the Merger

Subsequent to the announcement of the merger, five putative class action lawsuits were commenced on behalf of stockholders of Smith against Smith and its directors, and in certain cases against Schlumberger and one of its affiliates, challenging the merger. Four of the lawsuits were filed in the District Court of Harris County, Texas, and have been consolidated into a single action in the 164th District Court of Harris County, Texas (the Texas Action), and one lawsuit is pending in the Delaware Court of Chancery (the Delaware Action, and collectively

64

with the Texas Action, the Actions ). The parties in the Texas Action and Delaware Action have agreed to an expedited discovery schedule and to the coordination of pleadings and discovery in advance of any preliminary injunction hearing, which will be heard only in the Texas Action. On April 19, 2010, the court in the Delaware Action approved the parties agreement concerning the coordination of the Texas and Delaware Actions and agreed to otherwise stay the Delaware proceedings through any preliminary injunction hearing in Texas. Plaintiffs in the Texas and Delaware Actions have served a consolidated amended petition for breach of fiduciary duty and a verified amended class action complaint, respectively. The amended pleadings are substantively similar and allege that Smith s directors breached their fiduciary duties by, among other things, causing Smith to enter into the merger agreement at an allegedly inadequate and unfair price, agreeing to transaction terms that improperly inhibit alternative transactions and failing to provide material information to Smith s stockholders in the preliminary proxy statement filed in connection with the merger. Specifically, the pleadings allege that the preliminary proxy statement omits material information relating to, among other things: the analyses performed by, and the information relied upon by, UBS; any strategic alternatives to the merger considered by UBS; UBS s involvement in the negotiations between Smith and Schlumberger; the fee to be paid to UBS in connection with the merger; and any negotiations or plans concerning the employment of Smith management after consummation of the merger. The pleadings also allege that Smith and Schlumberger aided and abetted the directors breaches of fiduciary duties. The pleadings seek, among other things, an injunction barring defendants from consummating the proposed transaction, declaratory relief and attorneys fees.

On May 28, 2010, a purported Smith stockholder filed an individual lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, against Smith and its directors, alleging that Smith had disseminated a false and materially misleading preliminary proxy statement in connection with the merger in violation of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules promulgated thereunder. The lawsuit alleges that the preliminary proxy statement omits and/or misrepresents material information relating to, among other things: negotiations, if any, with other potential acquirers of Smith; any market check conducted by Smith in connection with the merger; any strategic alternatives considered by Smith s directors in connection with the merger; whether the merger consideration includes any compensation for the synergies to be achieved in the merger; the financial information and forecasts provided by Smith s directors to UBS in connection with its fairness opinion; the discounted cash flow, comparable transaction and selected companies analyses performed by UBS; and business ties between any of Smith s directors and Schlumberger. The complaint seeks, among other things, injunctive relief, compensatory damages and reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the action, including counsel fees and expert fees.

Smith and Schlumberger believe that the lawsuits in which they are named are without merit and intend to defend the lawsuits vigorously.

65

#### THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following summary describes the material provisions of the merger agreement. The provisions of the merger agreement are complicated and not easily summarized. This summary may not contain all of the information about the merger agreement that is important to you. The merger agreement is attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A and is incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus, and you are encouraged to read it carefully in its entirety for a more complete understanding of the merger agreement.

# Representations, Warranties and Covenants in the Merger Agreement Are Not Intended to Function or Be Relied on as Public Disclosures

In reviewing the merger agreement, please remember that it is included to provide you with information regarding its terms and is not intended to provide any other factual information about Schlumberger or Smith. The merger agreement contains representations and warranties by each of the parties to the merger agreement. These representations and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the merger agreement and:

may be intended not as statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of the parties if those statements prove to be inaccurate.

have been qualified by certain disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the merger agreement, which disclosures are not reflected in the merger agreement, and

may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from what may be viewed as material to you or other investors. Moreover, information concerning the subject matter of the representations and warranties, which do not purport to be accurate as of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, may have changed since the date of the merger agreement, and subsequent developments or new information qualifying a representation or warranty may have been included in or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus.

For the foregoing reasons, the representations, warranties and covenants or any descriptions of those provisions should not be read alone or relied upon as characterizations of the actual state of facts or condition of Schlumberger, Smith or any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates. Instead, such provisions or descriptions should be read only in conjunction with the other information provided elsewhere in this document or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus.

### Structure of the Merger

The merger agreement contemplates a merger whereby Merger Sub will be merged with and into Smith, with Smith continuing as the surviving corporation. Upon completion of the merger, Smith will be a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger and Smith common stock will no longer be publicly traded. Upon effectiveness of the merger, each Smith stockholder will have the right to receive the merger consideration as described below under Merger Consideration.

### **Effective Time; Closing**

The merger will become effective on the date a certificate of merger is filed with the Delaware Secretary of State, or at such later time as Schlumberger and Smith designate in the certificate of merger. The merger agreement provides that, unless agreed otherwise, the closing of the merger will take place on the first business day or, if Schlumberger so elects, on the third business day, after all the conditions to the closing of the merger are fulfilled or waived in accordance with the agreement.

### **Merger Consideration**

The merger agreement provides that at the effective time of the merger, Smith stockholders will receive, for each share of Smith common stock that they own, 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock and the cash payable in lieu of any fractional shares as described under Fractional Shares. In this discussion, the number of shares of Schlumberger common stock to be received for each share of Smith common stock is referred to as the exchange ratio and the Schlumberger common stock issuable based on the exchange ratio and the cash payable in lieu of any fractional shares is referred to as the merger consideration.

#### **Fractional Shares**

No fractional shares of Schlumberger common stock will be issued to any holder of Smith common stock upon completion of the merger. For each fractional share that would otherwise be issued, Schlumberger will pay cash (without interest) in an amount equal to the fractional share multiplied by the closing price for a share of Schlumberger common stock on the NYSE Composite Transactions Tape on the business day immediately preceding the closing date.

### **Treatment of Equity Awards**

At the effective time of the merger, all outstanding options to purchase shares of Smith common stock will be converted into options to purchase shares of Schlumberger common stock with the duration and terms of such converted options to remain the same as the original Smith option. The number of shares of Schlumberger common stock subject to each option will be determined by multiplying the number of shares of Smith common stock subject to the original Smith option by the exchange ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share. The option exercise price per share of Schlumberger common stock will be equal to the option exercise price per share of Smith common stock under the original Smith option divided by the exchange ratio rounded up to the nearest whole cent. All converted Schlumberger options, other than those issued in respect of Smith options awarded after February 21, 2010, will be fully vested and exercisable.

At the effective time of the merger, each outstanding award of restricted stock units granted by Smith under any of its plans on or prior to February 21, 2010, will be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration based on the total number of shares of Smith common stock subject to the outstanding award. To the extent the outstanding award is for performance-based restricted stock units, the number of shares subject to the outstanding award will be calculated based on the deemed attainment of performance goals at 100% of the target performance level. Any award of restricted stock units made by Smith after February 21, 2010 will be converted into an award of Schlumberger restricted stock units in an amount equal to the product of the number of shares of Smith stock subject to the original Smith award and the exchange ratio, with any fractional units rounded to the nearest whole unit.

Equity awards granted in the ordinary course of business after February 21, 2010 may provide for accelerated vesting on a severance-qualifying termination following the effective time of the merger, but no accelerated vesting will occur for such awards made to 10 executives party to change-in-control agreements unless the executive remains employed until May 31, 2011. Upon a severance-qualifying termination of such an executive following May 31, 2011, an award held by the executive may provide for accelerated vesting with respect to the installment next scheduled to vest following such termination.

## **Exchange of Shares; Stock Transfer Books**

The conversion of Smith common stock into the right to receive the merger consideration will occur automatically at the effective time of the merger. Schlumberger will deposit with a commercial bank or trust company, as the exchange agent for the merger, the number of shares of Schlumberger common stock to be issued pursuant to the merger agreement.

67

Promptly after the effective time of the merger, Schlumberger will cause the exchange agent to send to each holder of record of Smith common stock at the effective time of the merger a letter of transmittal and instructions for effecting the exchange of Smith common stock for the merger consideration the holder is entitled to receive under the merger agreement. Upon surrender of the certificates or book-entry shares for cancellation along with the executed letter of transmittal and other documents, a Smith stockholder will receive some or all of the following: (1) one or more shares of Schlumberger common stock; (2) cash in lieu of fractional shares of Schlumberger common stock; and (3) any unpaid dividends and distributions declared and paid in respect of Schlumberger common stock after completion of the merger.

Six months after the effective time of the merger, the exchange agent will return any shares of Schlumberger common stock remaining in the exchange fund and any cash that remains unclaimed. Holders of Smith common stock who have not exchanged their certificates representing such stock prior to that time may thereafter look only to Schlumberger to exchange their stock certificates or to pay amounts to which they are entitled pursuant to the merger agreement. None of Schlumberger, Smith, Merger Sub, the surviving corporation or the exchange agent will be liable to any holder of Smith common stock certificates for any merger consideration delivered to a public official pursuant to applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar laws.

## Withholding Taxes

Schlumberger, the surviving corporation and the exchange agent will be entitled to deduct and withhold from consideration payable to any Smith stockholder the amounts that may be required to be withheld under any applicable tax law. Amounts withheld and paid over to a governmental entity will be treated for all purposes of the merger as having been paid to the stockholders from whom they were withheld.

### **Representations and Warranties**

The merger agreement contains representations and warranties made by each of the parties regarding aspects of their respective businesses, financial condition and structure, as well as other facts pertinent to the merger. Smith, on the one hand, and Schlumberger and Merger Sub, on the other hand, have made representations and warranties in the merger agreement with respect to the following subject matters:

existence, good standing and qualification to conduct business;
requisite power and authorization to enter into and carry out the obligations of the merger agreement and the enforceability of the merger agreement;
capitalization;
compliance with applicable laws and permits;
absence of any conflict or violation of organizational documents, third party agreements or laws as a result of the merger or the merger agreement;
filings and reports with the SEC and financial information;
absence of undisclosed liabilities;
absence of litigation;

absence of a material adverse effect or, with respect to Smith, other specified changes or events; internal accounting controls and disclosure controls and procedures; absence of decrees or injunctions; ownership of the other party s capital stock; compliance with export controls; compliance with Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other anticorruption and antibribery laws; and

68

### **Table of Contents**

the tax treatment of the merger. Smith has made additional representations and warranties to Schlumberger in the merger agreement with respect to the following subject matters: tax matters; employee benefit plans; labor matters; title to properties and absence of liens; environmental matters; intellectual property; insurance; fees payable to brokers, finders or investment banks in connection with the merger; required stockholder approval in connection with the merger; material contracts; inapplicability of Smith s stockholder rights agreement; and inapplicability of anti-takeover laws or certain provisions in Smith s certificate of incorporation. Schlumberger and Merger Sub have made additional representations and warranties to Smith in the merger agreement with respect to the following subject matters: the accuracy of information provided for inclusion in this proxy statement/prospectus; no Schlumberger stockholder approval required in connection with the merger; and

the status of Merger Sub.

Certain representations and warranties of Schlumberger and Smith are qualified as to materiality or as to material adverse effect, which when used with respect to Schlumberger or Smith means, as the case may be, a material adverse effect on or material adverse change in the business, assets, liabilities, financial condition or results of operations of such party and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, other than any effect or change relating to or resulting from:

changes or conditions affecting the economy or financial markets in general;

changes or conditions in the industries in which the party operates;

the announcement or the existence of, or compliance with, or taking any action required or permitted by the merger agreement or the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement or any stockholder litigation against Smith and/or its directors or officers relating to the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement;

taking any action by such party at the written request of Schlumberger or Merger Sub, in the case of Smith, or of Smith, in the case of Schlumberger or Merger Sub; or

any weather-related or other force majeure event or outbreak or escalation of hostilities or acts of war or terrorism.

### **Conduct of Business Pending the Effective Time**

Unless Schlumberger otherwise consents in writing (which consent may not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), or as contemplated by the merger agreement or required by law, Smith has agreed that, prior to the effective time of the merger, it will:

conduct its business in the ordinary course;

69

### **Table of Contents**

use reasonable best efforts to preserve its business organization intact;

maintain existing relationships and goodwill with governmental entities, customers, suppliers, distributors, creditors, lessors, employees and business associates; and

keep available the services of present employees and agents.

In addition, the merger agreement places specific restrictions on the ability of Smith and its subsidiaries to, among other things:

adopt any change in, or waive any provision of, their organizational documents or Smith s stockholder rights agreement;

merge or consolidate Smith or any of its subsidiaries with any other person, except transactions among wholly owned subsidiaries of Smith that are not obligors or guarantors of third-party indebtedness or in connection with a permitted acquisition;

issue, sell or pledge any shares of capital stock, options, warrants, convertible securities or any other equity interest, except pursuant to stock options and current employee benefit plans;

except to the extent required under a benefit plan existing on February 21, 2010 or as required by law:

increase the compensation or fringe benefits of any directors, executive officers or employees, except in the ordinary course of business to employees who are not party to change of control agreements (this limitation does not apply to ordinary course operation of the annual bonus and equity award program);

grant any severance or termination pay, other than nominal severance to terminated employees and except in ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

make new equity awards to any director, officer or employee, except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

enter into or amend any employment, consulting, change-in-control or severance agreement with any director, executive officer or employee, except as contemplated by the merger agreement or in the ordinary course of business (except with respect to employees party to a change-in-control agreement or their direct reports);

establish or materially amend any benefit plan, except as contemplated by the merger agreement;

make any contribution to a benefit plan, except as required by law or in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

make payments on performance-based awards in excess of the performance actually achieved, or amend or waive performance or vesting criteria or accelerate vesting, except as required under the applicable plan or contemplated by the merger agreement;

terminate any employee with a change-in-control agreement, other than for cause, or take any actions with respect to salary, compensation, benefits or other terms and conditions of employment that would result in the employee having good reason to terminate employment and collect severance payments and benefits pursuant to the employee s change-in-control agreement; or

execute or amend a collective bargaining agreement expect in the ordinary course of business;

declare or pay any dividend or other distributions, except for certain intercompany distributions, pro rata dividends from the M-I SWACO joint venture, regular quarterly dividends on shares of Smith common stock not exceeding \$0.12 per share per quarter, required dividends or dividends paid by certain Smith subsidiaries;

redeem or purchase any of Smith s or its subsidiaries stock, except for transactions pursuant to benefit plans and cashless exercises thereunder, and intercompany transactions;

70

### **Table of Contents**

sell, encumber or dispose of any assets or properties having a value in excess of \$10 million for one asset, and \$50 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$25 million in the aggregate in 2011, except for sales of surplus or obsolete equipment, inventory sales and intercompany transactions;

acquire any business, entity or division (1) for consideration in excess of \$30 million for one acquisition or \$100 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$30 million in the aggregate in 2011, or (2) where an antitrust or competition filing is required;

enter into a joint venture, partnership or similar arrangement or make a loan or other investment in any other person in excess of \$20 million individually, or \$50 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$15 million in the aggregate in 2011;

sell, transfer, license or modify any rights to any material intellectual property, or distribute, license or co-promote products or services;

change accounting policies or procedures, except as required by changes in GAAP or applicable law;

except as required by applicable law, take specified actions with respect to tax matters if any such action would have an adverse effect on Smith and its subsidiaries that is material;

settle or waive any claim, litigation or controversy for amounts in excess of \$5 million individually, or \$25 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$12.5 million in the aggregate in 2011;

incur any indebtedness except (1) for borrowings under Smith s existing credit facilities, (2) other debt not in excess of \$50 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$25 million in the aggregate in 2011 and (3) intercompany debt in the ordinary course of business;

repurchase or repay any debt, except in the ordinary course of business, for mortgage indebtedness in accordance with its terms and for intercompany debt in the ordinary course of business;

mortgage or encumber any material asset or property;

make any unbudgeted capital expenditures exceeding \$25 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$12.5 million in the aggregate in 2011;

enter into, materially amend or terminate material contracts, except in the ordinary course of business;

enter into, renew or extend any agreements restricting the ability to compete in any line of business or geographic area;

adopt or implement a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization;

adjust, reclassify, combine, split or subdivide, or redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of Smith s capital stock or purchase any of Schlumberger s capital stock;

release any person from, waive any right under, fail to enforce any provision of, or grant any consent or make any election under, any confidentiality, standstill or similar agreement or take any action to exempt any person other than Merger Sub and its affiliates from the restrictions on business combinations contained in the Delaware General Corporation Law or the effects set forth in Smith s shareholder rights plan;

take any action that would, or would reasonably be expected to, result in the failure of certain conditions to the merger or prevent, materially delay or materially impede the merger;

take any action that would reasonably be expected to delay materially or adversely affect the ability to obtain any consent, authorization, order or approval of any governmental entity or the expiration of any waiting period under antitrust laws; or

agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

71

Unless Smith otherwise consents in writing (which consent may not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), or as contemplated by the merger agreement or required by law, prior to the effective time of the merger, the merger agreement places specific restrictions on the ability of Schlumberger, its subsidiaries and Merger Sub to, among other things:

adopt any change in, or waive any provision of, their organizational documents;

acquire any equity or assets where an antitrust filing would be required and would reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay the acquisition of Smith;

adjust, reclassify, split, combine, subdivide or redeem any shares of Schlumberger capital stock or adopt or implement a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization, except as would not disproportionately adversely affect a holder of Smith common stock relative to a holder of Schlumberger common stock or delay or impede the merger;

declare or pay any dividend or other distribution except for quarterly dividends with declaration, record and payment dates reasonably consistent with Schlumberger s past practice; or

take any action that would, or would reasonably be expected to, result in the failure of any condition to the transaction, or prevent, materially delay or materially impede the merger;

take any action that would reasonably be expected to delay materially or adversely affect the ability to obtain any consent, authorization, order or approval of any governmental entity or the expiration of any waiting period under antitrust laws; or

agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

### **Certain Additional Agreements**

Stockholders Meeting. Unless the merger agreement is earlier terminated, the Smith board of directors must submit the merger agreement for approval at the Smith stockholders meeting, even if it changes its recommendation with regard to the merger agreement.

*No Solicitation; Recommendation.* Smith and its subsidiaries will not, and Smith and its subsidiaries will direct their respective officers, directors, employees, investment bankers, consultants, attorneys, accountants, advisors, agents and other representatives not to, directly or indirectly:

solicit, initiate, knowingly encourage or knowingly facilitate any inquiry or the making, submission or announcement of any acquisition proposal (as defined below);

participate, engage in or continue discussions or negotiations with, or furnish any non-public information relating to Smith or any of its subsidiaries or afford access to the properties, books or records of Smith or any of its subsidiaries to, any person that has made an acquisition proposal or to any person considering an acquisition proposal;

approve or recommend, or propose to approve or recommend, or enter into any letter of intent, agreement in principle, merger agreement or other agreement relating to an acquisition proposal; or

propose publicly or agree to do anything described in the preceding three bullets.

In the event Smith receives an acquisition proposal, or any request for nonpublic information relating to Smith or for access to its properties, books or records by any person that has made or, to the knowledge of Smith, would reasonably be expected to make, an acquisition proposal, Smith will promptly (and in no event later than 24 hours after receipt of any acquisition proposal or request) notify Schlumberger of the identity of the person making the request and of its material terms and keep Schlumberger informed of the status and material terms of the acquisition proposal or request. From the date of the merger agreement until the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, Smith has not received any acquisition proposal or request for nonpublic information by a person that would reasonably be expected to make an acquisition proposal.

72

The term acquisition proposal means any bona fide written offer or proposal for, or any bona fide written indication of interest in, any (1) direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of any business or assets of Smith or any of its subsidiaries that, individually or in the aggregate, constitutes 20% or more of the net revenues, net income or assets of Smith and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (2) direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of 20% or more of any class of equity securities of Smith, (3) tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in any person beneficially owning 20% or more of any class of equity securities of Smith, (4) merger, consolidation, business combination, joint venture, partnership, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving Smith or any of its subsidiaries whose business constitutes 20% or more of the net revenue, net income or assets of Smith and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (5) the declaration or payment of an extraordinary dividend (whether in cash or in property) by Smith, other than the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

Prior to obtaining stockholder approval of the merger, however, Smith or its representatives may (1) furnish information and access, but only in response to a written request, to any person making an acquisition proposal that was not solicited, initiated, knowingly encouraged or knowingly facilitated by Smith or any of its subsidiaries, affiliates or representatives on or after February 21, 2010 and (2) participate in discussions and negotiate with such person concerning an unsolicited acquisition proposal, in each case if:

Smith has not materially breached the non-solicitation provisions of the merger agreement with respect to the acquisition proposal;

the Smith board of directors concludes in good faith (after receipt of advice of a financial advisor of nationally recognized reputation) that such proposal is reasonably likely to result in a superior proposal (as defined below); and

Smith receives from such person an executed confidentiality agreement the material provisions of which are materially no less favorable to Smith and no less restrictive to such person as those contained in the confidentiality agreement between Smith and Schlumberger. In addition, the Smith board of directors may not effect a recommendation change (as defined below) unless the change occurs before stockholder approval of the merger and only if:

the Smith board of directors determines in good faith (after consultation with its outside legal counsel) that failure to make a recommendation change would be inconsistent with the directors fiduciary duties to Smith stockholders under applicable law; and

before taking any such action, Smith gives Schlumberger three business days written notice.

The term superior proposal means any bona fide written acquisition proposal for or in respect of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith common stock or all or substantially all of Smith s and its subsidiaries assets (1) on terms that the Smith board of directors determines in its good faith judgment (after consultation with a financial advisor of nationally recognized reputation) are more favorable to Smith and its stockholders than the merger and (2) that constitutes a transaction that is reasonably likely to be consummated on the terms so proposed, taking into account all legal, financial, regulatory and other aspects of such proposal.

A recommendation change would occur if the Smith board of directors fails to make, withdraws, modifies or qualifies, or proposes publicly to withhold, withdraw, modify or qualify, in any manner adverse to Schlumberger or its affiliates, the merger or approval of the merger agreement, or approves, endorses, or recommends, or publicly proposes to approve, endorse or recommend, an acquisition proposal.

Coordination of Dividends. Smith will coordinate with Schlumberger to designate the record dates for Smith s quarterly dividends to coincide with the record dates for Schlumberger s quarterly dividends.

Rights Agreement. Prior to the effective time of the merger, the Smith board of directors will take any action necessary to prevent the merger and the merger agreement from causing the rights granted under Smith s

stockholder rights agreement from becoming exercisable. Smith may extend the expiration of its stockholder rights agreement, or replace the plan prior to its expiration, and will do so upon Schlumberger s request. On June 8, 2010, Smith amended its stockholder rights agreement at Schlumberger s request to extend the expiration date of the rights to May 31, 2011.

*Indemnification.* After the effective time of the merger, Schlumberger and the surviving corporation will (1) indemnify each director, officer or employee of Smith or its subsidiaries against all expenses and liability reasonably incurred as a result of such person s service to Smith or its subsidiaries, to the fullest extent permitted by law, and (2) advance expenses incurred to the same extent.

Prior to the effective time of the merger, Smith may purchase a tail directors and officers liability insurance policy for at least six years after the effective time of the merger. If Smith does not purchase such a policy, then for a period of six years after the effective time of the merger, the surviving corporation will maintain directors and officers liability insurance policies with terms substantially no less advantageous to the indemnified parties than Smith s existing policies. The surviving corporation will not be required to spend more than 300% of what Smith currently spends to maintain current insurance coverage.

Filings. Each of Schlumberger and Smith has agreed to:

make its respective required filings under the HSR Act, the EC Merger Regulation and any other competition laws;

use its reasonable best efforts to cooperate with the other party to determine which filings, consents, approvals, permits and authorizations are required to be made or obtained from any governmental entity prior to the effective time of the merger, and to timely make such filings;

promptly notify the other party of any communication concerning the merger agreement or the merger from any governmental entity and to consult with and permit the other party to review in advance any proposed communication concerning the merger agreement or the merger to any governmental entity;

not agree to participate in any meeting or substantive discussion with any governmental entity related to any filings or investigation concerning the merger agreement or the merger unless it consults with the other party in advance and, unless prohibited by the governmental entity, invites the other party to attend;

furnish to the other party draft copies prior to submission of all correspondence, filings and communications that it intends to submit to any governmental entity;

furnish to the other party such necessary information and reasonable assistance as such other party may reasonably request in connection with its preparation of necessary filings, registrations or submissions of information to any governmental entity; and

deliver to the other party s outside counsel complete copies of all documents furnished to any governmental entity as part of any filing. The parties have also agreed that Schlumberger will be entitled to direct the antitrust defense of the transaction contemplated by the merger agreement or litigation by or negotiations with any governmental entity.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, Schlumberger has the right, but not the obligation, to oppose by refusing to consent, through litigation or otherwise any divestitures, hold-separate restrictions or other restrictions demanded by an antitrust regulator. Schlumberger is required to agree to take all actions demanded by an antitrust regulator in order to resolve any objections to the merger (including divestitures, hold-separate restrictions or other restrictions) if doing so would not exceed a specified threshold, which is referred to as the detriment limit. The detriment limit would be exceeded if the required divestitures or hold-separate restrictions affect assets other than (1) the W-H Energy Services business and corresponding Schlumberger operations and (2) other assets accounting for Schlumberger or Smith revenues of not more than \$190 million

in 2009, excluding from such calculation any W-H Energy Services operations and Smith  $\,$ s Wilson business unit. In calculating revenue of Schlumberger or Smith for purposes of the detriment limit, the lower of Schlumberger  $\,$ s or Smith  $\,$ s

#### **Table of Contents**

revenues from the overlapping assets, business or product line will be used, regardless of which overlapping assets, business or product line Schlumberger actually divests or holds separate. If the merger has not occurred on or before the termination date due to the failure to obtain regulatory clearances, or if an order, decree or ruling permanently prohibits the merger, the merger agreement may be terminated (subject in some circumstances to payment of a termination fee). Please see The Merger Agreement Termination, Amendment and Waiver for more information on the termination date and termination fee.

*Employee Matters.* After the effective time of the merger, Schlumberger and its subsidiaries will honor all Smith benefit plans and compensation arrangements in accordance with their terms as in effect immediately prior to the effective time of the merger. For a period of one year after the effective time of the merger, Schlumberger will provide to each current and former employee of Smith and its subsidiaries:

compensation and benefits that are no less favorable, in the aggregate, than the compensation and benefits provided to each such employee immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, excluding for purposes of comparison any equity-based compensation (so long as Schlumberger provides equity compensation substantially comparable to similarly situated employees of Schlumberger);

severance benefits to terminated employees in accordance with the applicable severance plans and arrangements of Smith in effect immediately prior to the effective time of the merger with full service credit for years of service with Smith and its subsidiaries; and

for those Smith employees who are eligible for retiree welfare benefits immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, retiree welfare benefits that are no less favorable than those provided pursuant to the arrangements of Smith in effect immediately prior to the effective time of the merger.

For purposes of vesting, eligibility to participate and benefit accrual (other than for purposes of benefit accrual under any defined benefit pension plan, severance plan or eligibility under a retiree welfare plan sponsored by Schlumberger or its subsidiaries) under the employee benefit plans of Schlumberger, Smith employees will be credited with their years of service with Smith prior to the effective time of the merger to the same extent the Smith employee was entitled to such credited service prior to the effective time of the merger under the corresponding Smith plans. Following the first anniversary of the effective time of the merger, Smith employees will be treated as new hires as of the effective time of the merger in any retiree medical arrangement made available to them by Schlumberger. Over the four-year period commencing on the first anniversary of the effective time of the merger, the severance benefits of Smith employees will transition to the Schlumberger severance plan. Specifically, between the first and third anniversary of the effective time of the merger, Smith employees will be eligible for severance based on the sum of the amounts payable under the Smith severance plan (with respect to service prior to the effective time of the merger) and the Schlumberger severance plan (with respect to service on or after the effective the of the merger). From and after the third anniversary of the effective time of the merger, Smith employees will be transitioned over a two-year period to severance based on full past service credit under a Schlumberger severance plan, with full past service credit in place as of the fifth anniversary of the effective time of the merger.

Smith employees will be eligible to participate in the surviving corporation s medical, dental, pharmaceutical and/or vision plans without any waiting period or pre-existing condition exclusions, except to the extent such waiting period or exclusion applied in the applicable Smith plan. Smith employees will receive credit for amounts paid under the Smith medical plans in the year in which the merger occurs for satisfying deductibles, coinsurance and maximum out of pocket requirements under the surviving corporation s plans.

During the period prior to the effective date of the merger, Smith may set and pay performance-based short-term incentive bonuses in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice. If a short-term incentive bonus participant incurs a severance-qualifying termination prior to the end of the performance period, such participant shall receive a pro-rata bonus to be paid at the same time the bonus for the performance period is generally paid.

75

#### **Table of Contents**

Schlumberger agreed to consider in good faith, and to consult with Smith in good faith in respect of, design alternatives with respect to equitable treatment under (x) the retiree medical programs of Schlumberger of Smith employees who have turned 40 prior to the effective time of the merger, and (y) the defined benefit pension plans of Schlumberger of Smith employees who were previously employed by Schlumberger participated in such plans.

Schlumberger and Smith acknowledge that a change in control will occur for purposes of Smith s benefit plans at the time of the merger.

Under the merger agreement, Smith may establish a retention program with a retention pool of up to \$50 million for Smith employees who are not executive officers. The parties have since agreed to increase the maximum size of this pool to approximately \$58.3 million. Retention bonuses will be allocated by Smith s CEO in consultation with Schlumberger s CEO. Half of each employee s award generally will be payable at the effective time of the merger, and half will be payable on the first anniversary of such date. Forfeited retention awards may be reallocated to other employees. In addition, Smith may establish a retention program for Smith executive officers or employees with change of control agreements with a retention pool of up to \$16 million. Any such retention bonuses will be allocated by Smith s lead independent director in consultation with Schlumberger s CEO. All amounts payable under the executive officer pool will be payable at the effective time of the merger.

*Reorganization.* Schlumberger and Smith have agreed not to take any action that would (1) prevent the merger from qualifying as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code or (2) cause the stockholders to recognize gain pursuant to Section 367(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Reasonable Best Efforts. Schlumberger and Smith have agreed to use their reasonable best efforts to take all actions and to assist and cooperate to promptly consummate the merger, including the obtaining of authorizations, clearances, consents and approvals from governmental entities or third parties, the defending of lawsuits challenging the merger, the delivery of officer s certificates to tax counsel to support any tax opinion, and the execution and delivery of additional instruments necessary to consummate the merger.

Listing Application. Schlumberger will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the shares of Schlumberger common stock to be issued in the merger and to be reserved for issuance upon exercise of options on Smith common stock to be approved for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance, prior to the effective time of the merger.

*Inspection.* Until the effective time of the merger, each party to the transaction has agreed to allow designated officers, attorneys, accountants and other representatives of the other party access to the records and files, correspondence, audits and properties, as well as to all information relating to commitments, contracts, titles and financial position, or otherwise pertaining to its business and affairs.

*Publicity*. Schlumberger and Smith have agreed to consult with each other before issuing any press release or public statement with respect to the merger. In addition, neither Schlumberger nor Smith will issue any press release or otherwise make any public statement or disclosure concerning the other party or the other party s business, financial condition or results of operations without the consent of the other party.

Stockholder Litigation. Smith has agreed to give Schlumberger the opportunity to participate in the defense or settlement of any stockholder litigation against Smith and/or its directors or officers relating to the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. Smith has further agreed that it will not settle or offer to settle any litigation against Smith or any of its directors or officers by any stockholder of Smith relating to the merger without the prior written consent of Schlumberger (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed).

76

### **Conditions to the Merger**

The respective obligations of each party to effect the merger will be subject to the fulfillment of the following conditions on or prior to the closing date:

the adoption of the merger agreement by Smith s stockholders;

(1) the termination or expiration of any waiting period under the HSR Act and (2) the issuance by the European Commission of a decision under the EC Merger Regulation declaring the merger compatible with the common market;

the expiration, lapse or termination of all applicable waiting or other time periods under antitrust laws in other specified jurisdictions, except as would not reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect;

the absence of any judgment, injunction, order or decree of any governmental authority in the United States, the European Union or other specified jurisdictions prohibiting or enjoining the consummation of the merger;

the effectiveness of the registration statement of which this proxy statement/prospectus is a part, and the absence of any stop order or proceeding seeking a stop order relating to such effectiveness; and

the approval for listing on the NYSE of the Schlumberger common stock to be issued pursuant to the merger. *Additional Conditions to the Obligations of Smith.* Unless waived by Smith, the obligation of Smith to effect the merger is subject to the satisfaction on or prior to the closing date of the following additional conditions:

performance in all material respects by each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub of its respective covenants and agreements required to be performed by it under the merger agreement at or prior to the closing date;

certain representations and warranties of Schlumberger and Merger Sub contained in the merger agreement that are qualified as to a material adverse effect being true and correct as of the date of the merger agreement and as of the closing date;

other representations and warranties of Schlumberger and Merger Sub contained in the merger agreement that are not qualified as to a material adverse effect being true and correct as of the date of the merger agreement and as of the closing date, except where the failure of any such representations and warranties to be so true and correct would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect:

receipt by Smith of a certificate signed on behalf of Schlumberger by an executive officer to the effect that the conditions specified in the preceding three bullets have been satisfied; and

receipt of an opinion by Smith from its counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Smith, dated as of the closing date, to the effect that for federal income tax purposes (1) the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and (2) each transfer of Smith stock to Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the merger

(other than certain 5% shareholders of Schlumberger) will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code. *Additional Conditions to the Obligations of Schlumberger*. Unless waived by Schlumberger, the obligations of Schlumberger and Merger Sub to effect the merger are subject to the satisfaction on or prior to the closing date of the following additional conditions:

performance in all material respects by Smith of all of its covenants and agreements required to be performed by it under the merger agreement at or prior to the closing date;

certain representations and warranties of Smith contained in the merger agreement that are qualified as to a material adverse effect being true and correct as of the date of the merger agreement and as of the closing date;

77

other representations and warranties of Smith contained in the merger agreement that are not qualified as to a material adverse effect being true and correct as of the date of the merger agreement and as of the closing date, except where the failure of any such representations and warranties to be so true and correct would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect;

receipt by Schlumberger of a certificate signed on behalf of Smith by an executive officer to the effect that the conditions specified in the preceding three bullets have been satisfied; and

the receipt of an opinion by Schlumberger from its counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Schlumberger, dated as of the closing date, to the effect that for federal income tax purposes (1) the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and (2) each transfer of Smith stock to Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the merger (other than certain 5% shareholders of Schlumberger) will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

### Termination, Amendment and Waiver

*Termination.* The merger agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the effective time of the merger, notwithstanding the adoption of the merger agreement by Smith s stockholders:

by mutual written agreement of Schlumberger and Smith;

by either Schlumberger or Smith if:

the merger has not occurred on or before the termination date, February 21, 2011, which termination date may, if certain other conditions are satisfied and at the option of either Schlumberger or Smith, be extended to a date not later than May 31, 2011; however, neither party may terminate the merger agreement under this provision if that party s breach of any provision of the merger agreement has been the cause of, or resulted in, the failure of the merger to occur on or before the termination date;

the Smith stockholders do not adopt the merger agreement at the annual meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the annual meeting; or

a court of competent jurisdiction in the United States, the European Union or other specified jurisdictions has issued a final, nonappealable order, decree or ruling permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the merger;

by Smith if:

Schlumberger is in breach of the merger agreement such that the conditions set forth in the merger agreement would not be satisfied and such breach is not curable prior to the termination date; provided, that Smith will have no right to terminate the merger agreement under this provision if Smith is then similarly in breach of the merger agreement; or

Smith has received an acquisition proposal that Smith s board of directors determines in good faith to be a superior proposal and reasonably likely to be consummated and, after giving Schlumberger at least three business days notice of its intent to terminate the agreement (and at least two business days notice following any change to the financial terms of such proposal), resolves to accept such proposal and pay the termination fee described below; or

by Schlumberger if:

Smith is in breach of the merger agreement such that the conditions set forth in the merger agreement would not be satisfied and such breach is not curable prior to the termination date; *provided*, that Schlumberger will have no right to terminate the merger agreement under this provision if Schlumberger is then similarly in breach of the merger agreement; or

the Smith board of directors fails to recommend the merger to Smith stockholders or withdraws, modifies or qualifies (or publicly proposes to do any of the foregoing) its recommendation.

78

### **Table of Contents**

Fees and Expenses. The merger agreement provides for the payment of termination fees by one party to the other if the agreement is terminated in specified circumstances.

Smith will be obligated to pay Schlumberger a \$340 million termination fee (net of any expense reimbursement as described below) if:

either party terminates the merger agreement because Smith s stockholder approval is not obtained and:

prior to such time there is a publicly announced or disclosed acquisition proposal by another bidder that has not been withdrawn; and

within one year after the date of termination, Smith enters into a definitive agreement with respect to, or consummates, an acquisition proposal;

Smith terminates the merger agreement prior to obtaining the approval of Smith s stockholders in order to enter into an agreement providing for a superior proposal; or

the Smith board of directors fails to recommend its approval of the merger or withdraws, modifies or qualifies (or publicly proposes to do any of the foregoing) its recommendation.

Schlumberger will be obligated to pay Smith a \$615 million termination fee if the merger agreement is terminated by Smith or Schlumberger as a result of an order, decree, ruling or other action prohibiting the merger under certain antitrust or competition laws or because the merger has not been consummated on or before the termination date, and all other conditions to the merger (except for those that, by their nature, cannot be satisfied until closing) have been satisfied or waived as of the date of such termination.

The merger agreement provides that all expenses incurred by the parties will be borne by the party that has incurred such expenses; however, Smith will be required to reimburse Schlumberger for its expenses of up to \$10 million if:

the agreement is terminated because Smith s stockholders do not adopt the merger agreement at the annual meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the annual meeting, and no termination fee is yet payable by Smith, and

the merger agreement is terminated by Schlumberger because Smith has willfully and materially breached the agreement. If the merger agreement is terminated by Smith because Schlumberger has willfully and materially breached the merger agreement, then Schlumberger will reimburse Smith for its expenses of up to \$10 million.

Amendment. The merger agreement may be amended in writing at any time by action of the parties respective boards of directors. However, if the merger agreement has been approved by Smith s stockholders, then no amendment can be made that by law requires the further approval of stockholders without receipt of such further approval.

Waiver. At any time prior to the effective time of the merger, each of Schlumberger and Smith may:

extend the time for the performance of any obligations of the other party;

waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties of the other party; and

waive compliance with any agreement or condition for the benefit of that party.

79

#### UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of income for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and for the year ended December 31, 2009 combines the historical consolidated statements of income of Schlumberger and Smith, giving effect to the merger as if it had occurred on January 1, 2009. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2010 combines the historical consolidated balance sheets of Schlumberger and Smith, giving effect to the merger as if it had occurred on March 31, 2010. The historical consolidated financial information has been adjusted in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements to give effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the merger, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the statement of income, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information was based on and should be read in conjunction with the:

Separate historical financial statements of Schlumberger as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009 and the related notes included in Schlumberger s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, which is incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus;

Separate historical financial statements of Smith as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009 and the related notes included in Smith s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, which is incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus;

Separate historical financial statements of Schlumberger as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and the related notes included in Schlumberger s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010, which is incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus; and

Separate historical financial statements of Smith as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and the related notes included in Smith s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010, which is incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/prospectus.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been presented for informational purposes only. The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of what the combined company s financial position or results of operations actually would have been had the merger been completed as of the dates indicated. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not purport to project the future financial position or operating results of the combined company.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared using the acquisition method of accounting under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and the regulations of the SEC. All material transactions between Schlumberger and Smith during the periods presented in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statement have been eliminated. Schlumberger has been treated as the acquirer in the merger for accounting purposes. The acquisition accounting is dependent upon certain valuations and other studies that have yet to commence or progress to a stage where there is sufficient information for a definitive measurement. Accordingly, the pro forma adjustments are preliminary and have been made solely for the purpose of providing this unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the final acquisition accounting will occur, and these differences could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and the combined company s future results of operations and financial position.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not reflect any cost savings, operating synergies or revenue enhancements that the combined company may achieve as a result of the merger, the costs to integrate the operations of Schlumberger and Smith, or the costs necessary to achieve these cost savings, operating synergies and revenue enhancements.

80

### SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

### UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

### As of March 31, 2010

### (In millions)

	Schl	umberger	Smith	Pro Forr Adjustme		Pro Forma Combined
ASSETS						
Current Assets						
Cash and short-term investments	\$	4,203	\$ 548			\$ 4,751
Receivables, net		5,972	1,918	\$ (50)	(A)	7,840
Inventories		1,851	1,824	290	(B)	3,965
Deferred taxes		154	72			226
Other current assets		885	144			1,029
		13,065	4,506	240		17,811
Fixed Income Investments, held to maturity		708				708
Investments in Affiliated Companies		2,360	87	(1,446)	(C)	1,001
Fixed Assets, net		9,545	1,922	150	(D)	11,617
Multiclient Seismic Data		333				333
Goodwill		5,397	3,075	(3,075)	(E)	11,108
				5,711	(F)	
Intangible Assets		840	593	(593)	(G)	6,465
				5,625	(H)	
Deferred Taxes		301				301
Other Assets		334	220			554
	\$	32,883	\$ 10,403	\$ 6,612		\$ 49,898
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY						
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	4,705	\$ 989	\$ (50) 80	(A) (I)	\$ 5,724
Estimated liability for taxes on income		865	90		(1)	955
Dividend payable		250	30			280
Convertible debentures		299				299
Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt		635	486			1,121
		6,754	1,595	30		8,379
Long-term Debt		4,052	1,317	322	(T)	5,691
Postretirement Benefits		1,623	1,317	344	(J)	1,623
Deferred Tax Liabilities		1,023	506	(289)	(TT)	2,265
Deterred Tax Liabilities			300	2,010	(K)	2,203
				38	(L)	
Other Liabilities		915	152	30	(M)	1,067
Other Liabilities		913	132			1,007
		13,344	3,570	2,111		19,025
Equity						
Common stock		4,841	2,987	(2,987)	(N)	14,743
				9,902	(O)	

Edgar Filing: SCHLUMBERGER LTD /NV/ - Form S-4/A

Treasury stock	(5,221)	(484)	484	(N)	(5,221)
Retained earnings	22,440	2,907	(2,907)	(N)	23,715
			(80)	(I)	
			1,355	(M)	
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)	(2,632)	) 6	(6)	(N)	(2,609)
			23	(M)	
Schlumberger/Smith stockholders equity	19,428	5,416	5,784		30,628
Noncontrolling interests	111	1,417	(1,283)	(P)	245
	19,539	6,833	4,501		30,873
	ŕ	ŕ	•		•
	\$ 32,883	\$ 10,403	\$ 6,612		\$ 49,898

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

### SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

### UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME

### For the three months ended March 31, 2010

(In millions, except per share amounts)

	Schlı	ımberger	Sı	mith	Reclassif	fications (AA)	Fo	Pro orma stments		Forma mbined
Revenue	\$	5,598	\$ 2	2,138			\$	$(55)^{(BB)}$	\$	7,681
Interest and other income		64		1	\$	7		$(30)^{(CC)}$		42
Expenses:										
Cost of revenue		4,343	]	1,547		377		$(55)^{(BB)}$		6,261
								$(14)^{(DD)}$		
								60 (EE)		
								3 <sup>(FF)</sup>		
Research & engineering		207				37		_		244
General & administrative		144				44				188
Selling, general & administrative				466		(466)				
Merger & integration		35				15		$(32)^{(GG)}$		18
Interest		45		38				$(11)^{(HH)}$		72
Income from Continuing Operations before										
taxes		888		88				(36)		940
Taxes on income		214		41				7 <sup>(CC)</sup>		249
								$(13)^{(II)}$		
								( - )		
Income from Continuing Operations		674		47				(30)		691
Income attributable to noncontrolling		071		.,						071
interests		(2)		(35)				37 <sup>(CC)</sup>		
		(=)		(55)				3,		
Income from Continuing Operations										
Attributable to Schlumberger/Smith	\$	672	\$	12	\$		\$	7	\$	691
Transdation to be mainterget/billian	Ψ	072	Ψ	12	Ψ		Ψ	,	Ψ	071
Income from continuing operations per share										
attributable to Schlumberger/Smith:										
Basic earnings per share	\$	0.56	\$	0.05					\$	0.50
Diluted earnings per share	\$	0.56		0.05					\$ \$	0.50
	Ψ	0.50	Ψ	0.03					φ	0.50
Average shares outstanding:										
Basic		1,195		248						1,371(JJ
Assuming dilution		1,215		250						1,391(JJ

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

### SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

### UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the year ended December 31, 2009

(In millions, except per share amounts)

	Schl	umberger	Sn	nith	Reclassi	ifications (AA)	F	Pro orma istments		o Forma mbined
Revenue	\$	22,702		,218			\$	$(209)^{(BB)}$		30,711
Interest and other income		273	·	3	\$	27		(131) <sup>(CC)</sup>		172
Expenses:										
Cost of revenue		17,483	5	,969		1,321		(209) <sup>(BB)</sup> (52) <sup>(DD)</sup>		24,760
								238 (EE)		
								10 (FF)		
Research & engineering		802				141				943
General & administrative		535				216				751
Selling, general & administrative			1	,651		(1,651)				
Interest		221		150				$(45)^{(HH)}$		326
Income from Continuing Operations before taxes Taxes on income		3,934 770		451 139				(282) 19 (CC) (53)(II)		4,103 875
Income from Continuing Operations		3,164		312				(248)		3,228
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests		(8)		(164)				150 <sup>(CC)</sup>		(22)
Income from Continuing Operations Attributable to Schlumberger/Smith	\$	3,156	\$	148	\$		\$	(98)	\$	3,206
Income from continuing operations per share attributable to Schlumberger/Smith:	ф	2 (2	Ф	0.67					¢.	2.22
Basic earnings per share	\$	2.63		0.67					\$	2.33
Diluted earnings per share	\$	2.61	\$	0.66					\$	2.31
Average shares outstanding:		1.100								
Basic		1,198		222						1,374(JJ)
Assuming dilution		1,214		223						1,390(JJ)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

### **Note 1: Description of Transaction**

On February 21, 2010, Schlumberger and Smith entered into a merger agreement pursuant to which, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the merger agreement, Smith will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger. At the effective time of the merger, shares of Smith common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger will be converted into the right to receive 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock, with cash paid in lieu of fractional shares.

At the effective time of the merger, each outstanding option to purchase Smith common stock will be converted pursuant to the merger agreement into a stock option to acquire shares of Schlumberger common stock on the same terms and conditions as were in effect immediately prior to the completion of the merger. The number of shares of Schlumberger common stock underlying each converted Smith stock option will be determined by multiplying the number of shares of Smith common stock underlying such Smith stock options by the 0.6966 exchange ratio, and rounding down to the nearest whole share. The exercise price per share of each converted Smith stock option will be determined by dividing the per share exercise price of such stock option by the 0.6966 exchange ratio, and rounding up to the nearest whole cent (each option, as so adjusted, an adjusted option).

Smith stock options, whether or not then vested and exercisable, will become fully vested and exercisable (except for options granted between the date of the merger agreement and closing, which will not automatically vest) and assumed by Schlumberger at the effective date of the merger in accordance with preexisting change-in-control provisions. Smith stock options granted between the date of the merger agreement and closing will continue to vest and become exercisable for Schlumberger common stock according to their original terms, subject to the adjustments described in the paragraph above. The fair value of the adjusted options, whether vested or unvested, will be recorded as part of the purchase consideration transferred, to the extent that pre-acquisition services have been rendered. The remainder of the fair value of the unvested options, if any, will be recorded as compensation expense over the future vesting period in the periods following the merger completion date.

At the effective time of the merger, Smith restricted stock units, whether or not then vested, will become fully vested (except for grants between the date of the merger agreement and closing, which will not automatically vest) and converted into shares of Schlumberger common stock in connection with the merger, in an amount determined by multiplying the number of shares of Smith common stock subject to each award by the 0.6966 exchange ratio, rounded to the nearest whole share (assuming, in the case of performance-based Smith restricted stock unit awards, the deemed attainment of the performance goals under the award at the target level). To the extent the fair value is attributable to pre-acquisition services, it will be recorded as part of the purchase consideration transferred, and the remainder, if any, will be recorded as compensation expense over the future vesting period in the periods following the merger completion date.

### **Note 2: Basis of Presentation**

The merger is reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements as being accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Under the acquisition method, the total estimated purchase price as described in Note 3 will be measured at the closing date of the merger using the market price of Schlumberger common stock at that time. Therefore, this may result in a per-share equity value that is different from that assumed for purposes of preparing these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements. The assets and liabilities of Smith have been measured at fair value based on various preliminary estimates using assumptions that Schlumberger management believes are reasonable utilizing information currently available. Use of different estimates and judgments could yield materially different results. There are limitations on the type of information that can be exchanged between Schlumberger and Smith at this time. Until the merger is complete, Schlumberger will not have complete access to all relevant information.

84

### **Table of Contents**

The process for estimating the fair values of identifiable intangible assets and certain tangible assets requires the use of significant estimates and assumptions, including estimating future cash flows. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated amounts of identifiable assets and liabilities of Smith as of the effective date of the merger will be allocated to goodwill. The purchase price allocation is subject to finalization of Schlumberger s analysis of the fair value of the assets and liabilities of Smith as of the effective date of the merger. Accordingly, the purchase price allocation in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements is preliminary and will be adjusted upon completion of the final valuation. Such adjustments could be material.

In accordance with the SEC s rules and regulations, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not reflect any cost savings, operating synergies or revenue enhancements that the combined company may achieve as a result of the merger or the costs to integrate the operations of Schlumberger and Smith or the costs necessary to achieve these cost savings, operating synergies and revenue enhancements.

Upon completion of the merger, Schlumberger will perform a detailed review of Smith s accounting policies. As a result of that review, Schlumberger may identify differences between the accounting policies of the two companies that, when conformed, could have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the combined company.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the historical presentation of Smith to conform to the presentation used in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income. Upon consummation of the merger, further review of Smith s financial statements may result in additional revisions to Smith s classifications to conform to Schlumberger s presentation.

85

### Note 3: Estimate of Consideration Expected to be Transferred

The following is a preliminary estimate of the consideration expected to be transferred to effect the acquisition of Smith.

(In millions, except exchange ratio and per share amounts)	
Number of shares of Smith common stock outstanding as of March 31, 2010	248
Number of Smith unvested restricted stock units outstanding as of March 31, 2010	4
	252
Multiplied by the exchange ratio	0.6966
Equivalent new Schlumberger shares of common stock to be issued	176
Schlumberger common stock share price on May 28, 2010	\$ 56.15
Common stock equity consideration	\$ 9,882
Fair value of Schlumberger equivalent stock options to be issued (a)	\$ 20
Estimate of consideration expected to be transferred (b)	\$ 9,902

(a) Generally accepted accounting principles require that the fair value of replacement stock option awards attributable to pre-merger services be included in the consideration transferred. The fair value of the Schlumberger equivalent stock options was estimated as of May 28, 2010 using the Black-Scholes valuation model utilizing the following assumptions:

Stock price	\$56.15
Post-conversion exercise price	\$16.87-\$55.68
Expected volatility	37%
Dividend yield	1.25%
Risk-free interest rate	0.40%
Expected term	1 year
Black-Scholes weighted average fair value per option	\$27.36

(b) The estimated consideration expected to be transferred reflected in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements does not purport to represent what the actual consideration transferred will be when the merger is completed. The fair value of equity securities issued as part of the consideration transferred is required to be measured on the closing date of the merger at the then-current market price. This requirement will likely result in a per-share equity component different from what has been assumed in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and that difference may be material.

Assuming a \$1.00 change in Schlumberger s closing common stock price, the estimated consideration transferred would increase or decrease by approximately \$176 million, which would be reflected in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements as an increase or decrease to goodwill. Furthermore, for every 10% change in Schlumberger s stock price, the estimated consideration transferred would increase or decrease by approximately \$1.0 billion, which would result in a corresponding increase or decrease in goodwill.

### Note 4: Estimate of Assets to be Acquired and Liabilities to be Assumed

The following is a preliminary estimate of the assets to be acquired and the liabilities to be assumed by Schlumberger in the merger, reconciled to the estimate of consideration expected to be transferred (in millions):

Book value of net assets acquired at March 31, 2010		\$ 6,833
Less: Smith noncontrolling interest balance relating to M-I SWACO		(1,283)
Less: Smith historical goodwill		(3,075)
Less: Smith historical intangible assets		(593)
Add: Smith historical deferred tax liabilities relating to intangible assets		289
Less: Surviving postcombination noncontrolling interests		(134)
· ·		
Adjusted book value of net assets acquired		2,037
Fair value adjustments to:		
Increase the value of inventory	\$ 290	
Increase the value of fixed assets	150	
Intangible assets	5,625	
Increase the book value of long-term debt	(322)	
Deferred tax liabilities	(2,010)	
Goodwill	5,711	
Total fair value adjustments		9,444
Gain on investment in affiliate		(1,416)
Other		(163)
Estimate of consideration expected to be transferred		\$ 9,902

The following is a discussion of the adjustments made to Smith s assets and liabilities in connection with the preparation of these unaudited proforma condensed combined financial statements.

Inventory: The estimated adjustment to write up inventories to fair value is comprised of two components, approximately \$115 million for inventories carried at FIFO cost and \$175 million for inventories carried at LIFO cost. With regard to the \$115 million adjustment to FIFO inventories, cost of revenue will reflect this increased valuation as this inventory is sold. Accordingly, Schlumberger margins will be temporarily reduced in the initial periods subsequent to merger. With regard to the \$175 million adjustment to LIFO inventories, such adjustment will only be reflected in cost of revenues when Schlumberger begins to liquidate this new LIFO layer. The impact of both of these inventory adjustments is not reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income because they will not have a continuing impact.

Fixed Assets: For purposes of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, Schlumberger has estimated that the fair value adjustment to increase fixed assets to their fair value would approximate \$150 million. This estimate of fair value is preliminary and subject to change once Schlumberger has sufficient information as to the specific types, nature, age, condition and location of Smith s fixed assets.

Intangible Assets: The fair value of identifiable intangible assets is determined primarily using the income approach, which requires a forecast of all of the expected future cash flows either through the use of the relief-from-royalty method or the multi-period excess earnings method. Some of the more significant assumptions inherent in the development of intangible asset values include: the amount and timing of projected future cash flows, the discount rate selected to measure the risks inherent in the future cash flows, and the assessment of the asset s life cycle, as well as other factors. However, for purposes of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, using certain high-level assumptions, the fair value of the identifiable intangible assets, the related amortization expense and their weighted-average useful lives have been estimated as follows:

			Amortiz	ation Expense	
	Estimated Fair Value (in millions)	Weighted Average Estimated Useful Life (in years)	Year Ended December 31, 2009 (in millions)	Three Months I March 31, 20 (in millions	010
Customer Relationships	\$ 2,470	28.5	\$ 87	\$	22
Technology / Technical Know-How	2,300	18.8	122		31
Tradenames / Trademarks	855	30.0	29		7
	\$ 5,625		\$ 238	\$	60

These preliminary estimates of fair value and estimated useful life will likely be different from the final acquisition accounting, and the difference could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements. A 10% change in the valuation of intangible assets would cause a corresponding increase or decrease in annual amortization expense of approximately \$20 million, assuming an overall weighted-average useful life of 24 years. Once Schlumberger has full access to the specifics of Smith s intangible assets, additional insight will be gained that could impact: (i) the estimated total value assigned to intangible assets and (ii) the estimated weighted average useful life of each category of intangible assets. The estimated intangible asset values and their useful lives could be impacted by a variety of factors that may become known to Schlumberger only upon access to the additional information and/or changes in such factors that may occur prior to the effective time of the merger.

Long-term debt: The carrying value of Smith s long-term debt will be remeasured to its fair value as of the closing of the merger. The ultimate adjustment of the fair value of long-term debt may vary significantly at the merger completion date based on market conditions at that time.

Deferred tax liabilities: As of the effective date of the merger, adjustments will be made for deferred taxes as part of the accounting for the acquisition. This adjustment reflects the estimated deferred tax liability impact of the acquisition on the balance sheet, primarily relating to estimated fair value adjustments for acquired inventory, fixed assets, intangible assets and long-term debt. For purposes of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, deferred taxes are provided at the 35% U.S. federal statutory income tax rate.

Gain on investment in affiliate: Represents a pro forma adjustment to record Schlumberger s gain as a result of remeasuring its previously held equity interest in M-I SWACO, a drilling fluids joint venture that is 40% owned by Schlumberger and 60% owned by Smith. Generally accepted accounting principles require that an acquirer remeasure its previously held equity interest in an acquiree at its acquisition date fair value and recognize the resulting gain or loss in earnings. The gain is calculated based upon the acquisition date fair value of M-I SWACO, and will be impacted by transactional activity such as equity income and dividends, up until the date the merger is completed. Because this pro forma adjustment will not have a continuing impact, it is excluded from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income, but is reflected as an adjustment to goodwill and retained earnings in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet.

88

### **Table of Contents**

Goodwill: Goodwill is calculated as the difference between the acquisition date fair value of the consideration expected to be transferred and the values assigned to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is not amortized, but rather is subject to impairment testing on at least an annual basis.

Other: Represents a difference in basis between Smith s noncontrolling interest balance relating to M-I SWACO and Schlumberger s equity investment in M-I SWACO.

### Note 5: Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

- (A) Reflects the elimination of accounts receivable and accounts payable in connection with Smith revenue relating to Schlumberger.
  (B) To adjust acquired inventory to an estimate of fair value. Schlumberger s cost of revenue will reflect the increased valuation of Smith s inventory as the acquired inventory is sold. This adjustment does not have a continuing impact on the combined operating results and as such, it is not included in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income.
  (C) To eliminate Schlumberger s investment in M-I SWACO.
  (D) To adjust for the estimated differences between the carrying value and fair value of the fixed assets. See Note 4 for further details.
  (E) To eliminate Smith s historical goodwill.
  (F) To record the estimated goodwill created as a result of this transaction. See Note 4 for detailed calculation.

(H) To record the estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets. See Note 4 for further details.

(G) To eliminate Smith s historical intangible assets.

- (I) Reflects an estimate of Schlumberger s remaining merger-related transaction costs to be incurred, including advisory and legal fees as well as amounts relating to employee benefits such as change in control payments. These amounts will be expensed as incurred and are not reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income because they will not have a continuing impact. No adjustment has been made for merger-related costs to be incurred by Smith, which are estimated to be approximately \$55 million.
- (J) Reflects an adjustment to increase the carrying value of Smith s long-term debt to its estimated fair value.
- (K) Represents an adjustment to eliminate deferred tax liabilities associated with Smith s preacquisition intangible assets and goodwill.

89

(L) The adjustment to deferred tax liabilities represents the estimated deferred tax liability based on the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35% multiplied by the fair value adjustments made to assets acquired and liabilities assumed, excluding goodwill, as calculated below:

Establish deferred tax liabilities (assets) for the following (in millions):	
Identified intangible assets	\$ 5,625
Increase in the basis of inventory	290
Increase in the basis of fixed assets	150
Increase in the basis of long-term debt	(322)
	5,743
U.S. federal statutory tax rate	35%
	<b>**</b> • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

\$ 2,010

- (M) Represents the preliminary fair value adjustment associated with Schlumberger s previously held equity interest in the M-I SWACO joint venture, resulting in an estimated after-tax gain of \$1.378 billion, net of deferred taxes of \$38 million. Because this adjustment will not have a continuing impact, it is excluded from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income. See Note 4 for further details.
- (N) Reflects adjustments to eliminate Smith s historical equity balances.
- (O) To record merger consideration at fair value.
- (P) To eliminate Smith s noncontrolling interest balance relating to the M-I SWACO joint venture with Schlumberger. Note 6: Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Income Statement
  - (AA) Certain reclassifications have been made to Smith s historical statement of income to conform to Schlumberger s presentation, primarily relating to selling and research and engineering expenses.
  - (BB) Reflects the elimination of revenue and cost of revenue in connection with Smith sales to Schlumberger.
  - (CC) Reflects the elimination of Schlumberger's equity earnings relating to the M-I SWACO joint venture as well as Smith's corresponding noncontrolling interest in the net income of the venture, respectively. This joint venture is structured as a partnership in the U.S. Smith consolidates the results of M-I SWACO and, as such, has reflected the pretax income of the entire joint venture (including the U.S. partnership), and has appropriately not recorded income taxes associated with Schlumberger's 40% interest in the U.S. partnership. Therefore, an adjustment is required to reclassify these additional taxes which were previously reflected as a component of Schlumberger's equity income.
  - (DD) To eliminate Smith s historical intangible asset amortization expense.

- (EE) Reflects amortization expense associated with intangible assets recorded in this transaction. See Note 4 for further details.
- (FF) Represents incremental depreciation expense associated with the estimated fair value adjustment related to Smith s fixed assets over the estimated remaining useful life of 15 years.
- (GG) Reflects merger related advisory and legal fees incurred by both Schlumberger and Smith during the three months ended March 31, 2010 which do not have a continuing impact and therefore are not reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income.

90

- (HH) Represents the amortization associated with the fair value adjustment to increase Smith s fixed rate long-term debt, over the weighted-average remaining term of the obligations.
- (II) Schlumberger has assumed a 35% tax rate when estimating the tax impacts of the appropriate pro forma adjustments, which represents the U.S. federal statutory tax rate. The effective tax rate of the combined company could be significantly different from what is presented in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements for a variety of reasons, including post-merger activities.

The tax impact of the pro forma adjustments has been calculated as follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31, 2009		Three Months Ende March 31, 2010	
Elimination of Smith's historical amortization				
expense	\$	(52)	\$	(14)
Amortization expense associated with intangible				
assets		238		60
Depreciation expense relating to fixed asset fair				
value adjustment		10		3
Amortization of debt fair value adjustment		(45)		(11)
Pro forma incremental expenses		151		38
U.S. federal statutory tax rate		35%		35%
•				
Tax benefit relating to pro forma incremental				
expenses	\$	53	\$	13

(JJ) Represents the adjusted weighted-average shares outstanding calculated as follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31, 2009		Three Months Ended March 31, 2010		
		Assuming		Assuming	
	Basic	Dilution	Basic	Dilution	
Schlumberger historical shares outstanding	1,198	1,214	1,195	1,215	
New Schlumberger shares of common stock to be issued	176	176	176	176	
	1,374	1,390	1,371	1,391	

The dilutive effect of Smith stock options that will be converted into Schlumberger stock options is not significant.

#### COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS

As a result of the merger, holders of Smith common stock will become stockholders of Schlumberger, and the rights of the former stockholders of Smith will thereafter be governed by Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and the Commercial Code of the Netherlands Antilles, which is referred to in this discussion as Netherlands Antilles law. The rights of Smith stockholders are currently governed by Smith s restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and the Delaware General Corporation Law, which is referred to in this discussion as Delaware law.

The following summarizes certain differences between the current rights of Smith stockholders and the current rights of Schlumberger stockholders. These differences arise in part from the differences between Netherlands Antilles law and Delaware law. Additional differences arise from the governing instruments of the two companies.

Although it is impracticable to compare all of the aspects in which Netherlands Antilles law and Delaware law and Schlumberger s and Smith s governing instruments differ with respect to stockholder rights, the following discussion summarizes the material differences between them. This summary is not intended to be complete, and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to Netherlands Antilles law, Delaware law, Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and Smith s restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws. You are encouraged to carefully read this entire proxy statement/prospectus, the relevant provisions of Netherlands Antilles law and Delaware law and the other documents to which Schlumberger and Smith refer in this proxy statement/prospectus for a more complete understanding of the differences between the rights of a Schlumberger stockholder and the rights of a Smith stockholder. Schlumberger and Smith have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission their respective governing documents referenced in this comparison of shareholder rights. See Where You Can Find More Information.

### **Authorized Stock**

#### Smith Stockholder Rights

The authorized capital stock of Smith consists of (a) 500,000,000 shares of Smith common stock and (b) 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock.

Smith s board of directors has the authority to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more classes or series issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix (a) the designations, powers, preferences privileges, (b) the relative participating, optional or special rights and (c) the qualifications, limitations or restrictions, including dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption and liquidation preferences of any series of preferred stock.

#### Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

Schlumberger may issue (a) 3,000,000,000 shares of Schlumberger common stock and (b) 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock.

Schlumberger s board of directors has the authority to and to fix (a) the designations, (b) the annual dividend rate on such series (subject to limitations on such rate set forth in Schlumberger s articles of incorporation), (c) whether such dividends will be paid annually or in installments, (d) any rights of holders of such series to convert their shares into other series of Schlumberger capital stock, (e) any rights of Schlumberger to redeem such shares or of holders to require Schlumberger to purchase such shares, (f) any sinking fund provisions and (g) other terms that are not inconsistent with Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and Netherlands Antilles law.

92

### **Smith Stockholder Rights**

As of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, there were no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

**Voting Rights** Smith stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of Smith common stock they hold.

**Stockholder Meetings** 

Smith s bylaws provide that general meetings of stockholders can be held wherever the Smith board of directors dictates and, pursuant to Delaware law, a stockholder meeting must be held no more than 13 months from the date of the last stockholder meeting.

Smith s bylaws provide that special meetings of stockholders may be called by a majority of the board of directors, the Chairman of the board of directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, the Secretary or any two other officers of Smith.

Stockholder Action By Written Consent Smith s certificate of incorporation specifically denies stockholders the right to act by written consent.

**Board of Directors** 

Under Smith s certificate of incorporation, the Smith board of directors is divided into three classes, only one of which stands for reelection each year.

Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

As of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, there were no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

Schlumberger stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of Schlumberger common or preferred stock they hold.

Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and Netherlands Antilles law provide that all general meetings of Schlumberger stockholders must be held in the Netherlands Antilles, and a general stockholder meeting is required to be held once a year under Netherlands Antilles law.

Special general meetings of Schlumberger stockholders may be called at any time upon the direction of the Chairman of the board of directors, the Vice Chairman of the board of directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President or the Board of Directors. Special general meetings of stockholders may also be called by one or more Schlumberger stockholders representing at least 10% of the votes that can be cast on the topics they wish to be addressed at such meeting and that have a reasonable interest in having such meeting convened, by one or more holders of shares representing in the aggregate a majority of shares then outstanding and, in certain circumstances if all of the directors are prevented from or incapable of serving, by any person or persons holding in the aggregate at least 5% of the outstanding shares of Schlumberger common stock for the purpose of electing a board of directors.

Under Netherlands Antilles law, stockholders may not act by written consent without a meeting, unless all stockholders entitled to vote on the matter have cast a vote.

Under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, Schlumberger s entire Board of Directors stands for reelection each year.

93

#### Smith Stockholder Rights

Under Smith s bylaws, in uncontested elections, directors are elected by a

Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

Under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, directors are elected at a

majority of the votes cast at a meeting for the election of general meeting of stockholders by a majority of votes each director. A majority of the votes cast is defined in Smith s bylaws to mean that the number of shares voted

for a director s election exceeds 50% of the number of votes cast with respect to that director s election. Votes cast includes votes to withhold authority in each case and excludes abstentions with respect to that director s election. In contested elections, directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast.

cast by stockholders entitled to vote.

set at between six and 15 by Smith s certificate of incorporation.

Smith s certificate of incorporation provides that a director may be removed only for cause, by holders of a majority of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors.

Under Smith s certificate of incorporation, the board of Under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, the directors has the authority to appoint directors to fill any vacancies on the board to hold office until the expiration appoint directors to fill any vacancies on the board to of the term of the class of directors to which such director is appointed.

The number of directors on Smith s board of directors is The number of directors on Schlumberger s board is set at between five and 24 by Schlumberger s articles of incorporation.

> Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and Netherlands Antilles law provide that a director may be removed at any general meeting of stockholders by a majority vote of the votes cast at that meeting.

board of directors generally has the authority to hold office until the next general meeting of Schlumberger s stockholders.

None of Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and bylaws, nor Netherlands Antilles law contain any specific provisions that govern the submission of director nominations or other proposals by stockholders. As described above, special general meetings of stockholders may be called by one or more Schlumberger stockholders representing at least 10% of the votes that can be cast on the topics they wish addressed at such meeting.

Notice of Stockholder **Proposals or Nominations of Director Candidates by** Stockholders

Smith s bylaws generally permit stockholders to nominate director candidates or propose other proper business if the stockholder intending to make such nomination or proposal gives timely notice thereof in writing in proper form. To be timely, Smith s bylaws require, subject to certain limited exceptions, that written notice of an intention to nominate a director candidate or to propose other proper business be received by Smith s Secretary not earlier than 90 days and not later than 60 days prior to the first anniversary of the previous year s annual meeting.

**Amendment of Governing Documents** 

Under Smith s certificate of incorporation, a vote of 75% None of Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and or more of the outstanding voting stock of Smith is

bylaws nor Netherlands Antilles law require a supermajority vote

94

#### Smith Stockholder Rights

necessary to amend Smith s certificate of incorporation to approve such transactions. The vote of a majority of to change the provisions of Smith s certificate of incorporation described under Special Vote Required for Certain Combinations with Interested Stockholders. unless such change is recommended by the board of directors, all of whom would be continuing directors under Smith s certificate of incorporation. All other amendments to Smith s certificate of incorporation require a vote of 50% or more of the outstanding voting stock of Smith under Delaware law.

Smith s bylaws may be amended by either an 75% stockholder vote or the vote of a majority of the board of directors.

**Financial Statements**; Dividends

Smith is not required to seek stockholder approval for financial statements or proposed dividends.

**Change of Domicile** 

Under Delaware law, approval of all stockholders is required in connection with a change in a corporation s domicile from Delaware or conversion of the corporation into a legal entity under the laws of another jurisdiction. However, a Delaware corporation may effectively change its domicile with the approval of a majority of its stockholders by merging with a subsidiary incorporated under the laws of another iurisdiction.

**Short-Form Merger**; **Buy-Out** 

Under Delaware law, the owner of 90% of a corporation s outstanding equity may effect a short-formone person, or any two or more legal entities merger without the vote of the acquired corporation s board of directors or shareholders.

### Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

the outstanding voting stock will suffice to approve such transactions.

Schlumberger s bylaws may be amended only by the vote of a majority of the board of directors.

Under Netherlands Antilles law and Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, Schlumberger is required to present annually its financial statements and proposed dividends to its stockholders for inspection and approval.

Under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, Schlumberger s board of directors may move its corporate seat to, or convert Schlumberger into a legal entity under the laws of, another jurisdiction, and may change Schlumberger s corporate domicile from the Netherlands Antilles to another jurisdiction to the extent allowed by applicable law. In certain cases, stockholder approval of such action may not be required under applicable law.

Under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, any belonging to the same group, holding shares representing at least 90% of Schlumberger s equity can require the remaining stockholders to transfer their shares as provided by and in accordance with the provisions of Netherlands Antilles law. In order to effect a compulsory share transfer, the owner or owners of 90% of Schlumberger s outstanding equity would have to institute an action in a

95

#### **Smith Stockholder Rights**

#### Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

Netherlands Antilles court and pay the transferring stockholders the value of the shares to be transferred as determined by the judge (based on the advice of one or three experts). A judge can deny a request for a compulsory share transfer if a stockholder would suffer serious material damage through the transfer.

Schlumberger is not subject to such a provision.

### Special Vote Required for Certain Combinations with Interested Stockholders

Smith is subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Under Section 203, Smith generally would be prohibited from engaging in any business combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years following the time that the stockholder became an interested stockholder unless:

prior to this time, the Smith board of directors approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of Smith s voting stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding shares owned by persons who are directors and also officers, and by employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or

at or subsequent to such time, the business combination is approved by the Smith board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of Smith stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 662/3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

96

#### Smith Stockholder Rights

Under Section 203, a business combination includes:

Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

any merger or consolidation involving the corporation and the interested stockholder;

any sale, transfer, pledge or other disposition of 10% or more of a corporation s assets involving the interested stockholder;

any transaction that results in the issuance or transfer by the corporation of any of its stock to the interested stockholder, subject to limited exceptions;

any transaction involving the corporation that has the effect of increasing the proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the corporation s capital stock beneficially owned by the interested stockholder; or

the receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits provided by or through the corporation.

In general, Section 203 defines an interested stockholder as any entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of the corporation s outstanding voting stock and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by such entity or person.

# Limitation of Liability and Indemnification

Smith s certificate of incorporation provides that a director of Smith will not be personally liable to Smith or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of any fiduciary duty as a director, except:

for any breach of the director s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders;

Schlumberger s bylaws provide that to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Schlumberger shall indemnify any current or former director or officer who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceedings, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of Schlumberger) by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer, of Schlumberger, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed

for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

97

### Smith Stockholder Rights

for liability of directors for unlawful payment of dividends or unlawful stock purchases or redemptions;

for any transaction from which a director derived an improper personal benefit.

Smith s certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide for indemnification of its directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law.

Delaware law provides that a corporation may indemnify any persons, including officers and directors, who are, or are threatened to be made, parties to any threatened, pending or completed legal action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of such corporation), by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such corporation or is or was serving at the request of such corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or enterprise. The indemnity may include expenses (including attorneys fees), judgments, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise or fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, provided such director, officer, employee or agent acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had

### Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

to be in or not opposed to the best interest of Schlumberger and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that such person s conduct was unlawful.

Netherlands Antilles law enables a corporation to indemnify a director as provided for in Schlumberger s bylaws.

Schlumberger s articles of incorporation permits (but do not require) the indemnification of its directors, officers, employees and agents, except that indemnification is mandatory with respect to a present or former officer or director in the event of a change of control or if such present or former officer or director has been successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding. Schlumberger s bylaws contain mandatory indemnification for current and former directors and officers

To the fullest extent permitted by Netherlands Antilles law, Schlumberger will indemnify any current or former director or officer who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of Schlumberger) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer of Schlumberger, or is or was serving at the request of the company as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, entity, against expenses (including attorneys fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of Schlumberger, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause

98

### Smith Stockholder Rights

reasonable cause to believe that the person s conduct wasbelieve that such person s conduct was unlawful. The unlawful. Where an officer or director is successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action referred to above, the corporation must indemnify him against the expenses that such officer or director actually and reasonably incurred.

A Delaware corporation may indemnify officers and directors in an action by or in the right of the corporation under the same conditions, except that no indemnification is permitted without judicial approval if the officer or director is adjudged to be liable to the corporation.

The indemnification permitted under Delaware law is not exclusive, and a corporation is empowered to purchase and maintain insurance against liabilities, whether or not indemnification would be permitted by statute. Smith maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers.

# **Shareholder Rights Plan**

Smith has a shareholder rights plan.

### Schlumberger Stockholder Rights

Registrant is required to indemnify any present or former officer or director of the Registrant to the fullest extent allowed by the preceding paragraphs in the event of a change of control of Schlumberger (as defined in the articles of incorporation).

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Schlumberger will indemnify any current or former director or officer in an action in the right of the company to procure a judgment in Schlumberger s favor under the same conditions, except that no indemnification may be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person has been finally adjudged to be liable to Schlumberger for improper conduct unless and only to the extent that the court in which that action or suit was brought or any other court having appropriate jurisdiction determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for those expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement which the court in which the action or suit was brought or such other court having appropriate jurisdiction deems proper. Schlumberger is required to indemnify any present or former officer or director to the fullest extent allowed by this paragraph in the event of a change of control.

The indemnification permitted under Schlumberger s bylaws is not exclusive, and Schlumberger may purchase and maintain insurance against liabilities, whether or not indemnification would be permitted by its bylaws. Schlumberger maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers.

Schlumberger has no such rights plan.

99

### DESCRIPTION OF SCHLUMBERGER S CAPITAL STOCK

The following description of Schlumberger s share capital is a summary. This summary is not complete and is subject to the complete text of Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws. Schlumberger s articles of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws are exhibits to Schlumberger s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, and are incorporated in this proxy statement/prospectus by reference.

### Available, Issued and Treasury Shares

Schlumberger may issue an aggregate of 3,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share. As of June 30, 2010, 1,334,212,164 shares of Schlumberger common stock were issued, of which 1,193,236,410 shares were outstanding and 140,975,754 shares were held by Schlumberger as treasury stock.

Schlumberger may also issue an aggregate of 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share, which may be issued in one or more separate series. Under Schlumberger's articles of incorporation, Schlumberger's preferred stock (1) may be issued for not less than par value and not less than fair value taking into account the terms and conditions of such preferred stock, (2) would be subject to maximum and minimum dividend rates, (3) would be entitled to one vote per share, (4) would be entitled to receive certain liquidation preferences, (5) may contain provisions allowing it to be converted into common stock or other securities, and (6) may contain optional or mandatory redemption provisions. No shares of preferred stock have been issued as of the date of this proxy statement/prospectus.

## **Dividend Rights**

All outstanding shares of Schlumberger common stock (i.e., shares not held by Schlumberger) are entitled to participate equally and receive dividends that may be paid out of available profits of the preceding fiscal year or years or distributions out of contributed surplus capital reserves. All accumulated and unpaid dividends payable on preferred stock (if issued and outstanding) must be paid prior to the payment of any dividends on Schlumberger common stock. The amount of dividends payable with respect to any fiscal year is determined by Schlumberger stockholders at the annual general meeting following such fiscal year, except that Schlumberger s board of directors may allocate such part of the earnings to the retained earnings reserves as it deems fit and may declare interim dividends and may declare and make distributions out of retained earnings reserves or out of contributed surplus capital reserves. Any such distribution can only occur if, at the time of distribution, Schlumberger s equity (i.e., Schlumberger s net asset value) at least equals the nominal capital (i.e., the aggregate par value of Schlumberger s outstanding shares) and as a result of the distribution will not fall below the nominal capital.

# **Voting Rights**

*Entitlement to Vote.* Each holder of shares of Schlumberger common stock and each holder of Schlumberger preferred shares (if issued and outstanding) is entitled to one vote for each share registered in that holder s name. Voting rights may be exercised in person or by proxy.

Quorum. No action may be taken at any general meeting of Schlumberger stockholders unless a quorum consisting of the holders of at least one-half of the outstanding shares entitling the holders thereof to vote at such meeting are present at such meeting in person or by proxy. If a quorum is not present in person or by proxy at any general meeting of Schlumberger stockholders, a second general meeting will be called in the same manner as the original meeting of stockholders, to be held within two months, at which second meeting, regardless of the number of shares represented (subject to certain limitations in the event of an asset disposition or liquidation of Schlumberger or the amendment of Schlumberger s articles of incorporation), valid resolutions may be adopted with respect to any matter stated in the notice of the original meeting and also in the notice of the second meeting or which by law is required to be brought before Schlumberger stockholders despite the absence of a quorum.

100

### **Table of Contents**

Required Vote. In general, any action requiring the approval of Schlumberger stockholders may be authorized by a majority of the votes cast (excluding any abstentions) at any meeting at which a quorum is present (subject to the quorum exception described above).

No action to amend Schlumberger s articles of incorporation or to dissolve Schlumberger can be taken, however, unless such action is approved by the holders of at least a majority of the shares outstanding and entitled to vote. In addition, holders of Schlumberger preferred stock (if issued and outstanding) would have additional rights to vote as a class on certain amendments to Schlumberger s articles of incorporation that would adversely affect the preferred stock.

The sale or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of Schlumberger must be approved by the holders of at least a majority of the shares outstanding and entitled to vote, except that under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation this requirement does not apply to a reorganization or rearrangement of Schlumberger or any of Schlumberger s subsidiaries or any of its assets in any transaction that does not result in any diminution of the beneficial interest of Schlumberger stockholders in Schlumberger s assets.

Under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, Schlumberger s board of directors may move its corporate seat to, or convert Schlumberger into a legal entity under the laws of, another jurisdiction, and may change Schlumberger s corporate domicile from the Netherlands Antilles to another jurisdiction to the extent allowed by applicable law. In certain cases, stockholder approval of such action may not be required under applicable law

## **Preemptive and Other Rights**

The shares of Schlumberger common stock do not carry any preferential, preemptive or conversion rights, and there are no redemption provisions with respect to the Schlumberger common stock. The shares of Schlumberger preferred stock (if issued and outstanding) would not carry any preemptive rights, but Schlumberger s board of directors could specify conversion rights, redemption provisions and (within limits) liquidation preferences with respect to one or more series of preferred stock. The board of directors may grant contract rights to acquire shares of Schlumberger s capital stock.

Upon delivery pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement, the shares of Schlumberger common stock deliverable to holders of Smith common stock will be fully paid and nonassessable.

### Repurchases of Schlumberger Common Stock

Schlumberger may for its own account purchase shares of Schlumberger common stock so long as one share of Schlumberger common stock remains outstanding and Schlumberger s equity before and after such a purchase at least equals its nominal capital.

### **Election and Removal of Directors**

Directors are elected at a general meeting of stockholders by a majority of votes cast by stockholders entitled to vote. The number of directors constituting the whole board of directors may not be less than five nor more than 24, as fixed and elected by the general meeting of Schlumberger stockholders. Schlumberger s board of directors is authorized to appoint directors to fill vacancies on the board of directors, which appointment will be effective until the next general meeting of stockholders. Directors may be suspended or dismissed at any general meeting of stockholders. A suspension automatically terminates if the person concerned has not been dismissed within two months after the day of suspension.

### **Stockholder Meetings**

In accordance with applicable law, all general meetings of Schlumberger stockholders must be held in the Netherlands Antilles. The annual general meeting of Schlumberger stockholders is held on a date determined

101

from year to year by the board of directors, for the purpose of electing directors, reporting on the course of business during the preceding fiscal year, approving of the balance sheet and the profit and loss account for the preceding fiscal year and for any other purposes required by law or as may be stated in the notice of such meeting. Special general meetings of Schlumberger stockholders may be called at any time upon the direction of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the President or the board of directors. Special general meetings of stockholders may also be called by one or more Schlumberger stockholders representing at least 10% of the votes that can be cast on the topics they wish to be addressed at such meeting and that have a reasonable interest in having such meeting convened, by one or more holders of shares representing in the aggregate a majority of shares then outstanding and, in certain circumstances if all of the directors are prevented from or incapable of serving, by any person or persons holding in the aggregate at least 5% of the outstanding shares of Schlumberger common stock for the purpose of electing a board of directors.

### **Stockholder Action by Written Consent**

Under Netherlands Antilles law, stockholders may not act by written consent without a meeting, unless all stockholders entitled to vote on the matter have cast a vote.

### **Buy-Out**

Under Schlumberger s articles of incorporation, any one person, or any two or more legal entities belonging to the same group, holding shares representing at least 90% of Schlumberger s equity can require the remaining stockholders to transfer their shares as provided by and in accordance with the provisions of Netherlands Antilles law. This provision is somewhat similar to statutes that exist in Delaware and most U.S. states, which typically allow the owner or owners of 90% of a company s outstanding equity to effect a short-form merger. In order to effect a compulsory share transfer, the owner or owners of 90% of Schlumberger s outstanding equity would have to institute an action in a Netherlands Antilles court and pay the transferring stockholders the value of the shares to be transferred as determined by the judge (based on the advice of one or three experts). A judge can deny a request for a compulsory share transfer if a stockholder would suffer serious material damage through the transfer.

### **Rights Upon Liquidation**

In the event of liquidation, each share of Schlumberger common stock is entitled to equal rights after satisfaction of any preferred stock liquidation preference.

## Listing, Transfer Agent and Registrar

Schlumberger common stock is listed for trading on the NYSE, Euronext Paris, Euronext Amsterdam, the London Stock Exchange and the SIX Swiss Exchange. The transfer agent and registrar for Schlumberger common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A., Canton, Massachusetts.

102

### ELECTION OF DIRECTORS OF SMITH

### **Nominees**

Directors to be elected to Class III for a term expiring in 2013:

James R. Gibbs, 65, has been a director since 1990. He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Frontier Oil Corporation from April 1992 until December 31, 2008 and President and Chief Operating Officer of Frontier from January 1987 to April 1992. He joined Frontier Oil in February 1982 as Vice President of Finance and Administration and was appointed Executive Vice President in September 1985. He has served as a director of Frontier Oil, an independent oil refining and marketing company, since 1985 and as their Chairman of the Board since 1999. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Gibbs to serve as a director because he has extensive direct knowledge of the oil and gas industry, having served in leadership roles in the industry for over 25 years, in particular as President of Frontier Oil for most of those years. In addition, Mr. Gibbs has a PhD in Economics and taught full time at Southern Methodist University. He also has intimate knowledge of Smith and its technology, market segment and management, gained through his 20-year tenure on Smith s board of directors. With these characteristics, Mr. Gibbs provides a valuable perspective to his board service. The Smith board of directors believes that Mr. Gibbs is well regarded in the industry and among his peers, making him an effective independent lead director. Mr. Gibbs also serves as the Chairman of Smith s Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and a member of Smith s Compensation and Benefits Committee.

**Duane C. Radtke**, 61, has been a director since 2009. He currently serves as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Valiant Exploration LLC and as the Non-Executive Chairman of NFR Energy LLC, a private exploration and production company, a position he has held since August 2009. Mr. Radtke has served on the board of NFR Energy since June 2008. From April 2001 until December 2007, Mr. Radtke served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Dominion Exploration and Production ( Dominion E&P ) and Executive Vice President of Dominion Resources, Inc., the parent company of Dominion E&P. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Radtke to serve as a director because he has over 20 years of experience leading companies in the oil and gas industry. The Smith board of directors believes that Mr. Radtke is highly respected in the industry and among his peers, bringing extensive management and oversight expertise to the Smith board of directors.

John Yearwood, 50, has been a director since 2006. He has served as Smith s Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer since January 2009. He served as Executive Vice President and President Smith Completions and Production from August 2008 until December 2008. He served as a Senior Advisor to the Chief Executive Officer of Schlumberger from March 2006 until May 2008. From 1980 to March 2006, he served in a variety of positions at Schlumberger, much of which included responsibilities for businesses primarily focused outside of the United States, most recently as President North and South America, Oilfield Services. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Yearwood to serve as a director because he is Smith s Chief Executive Officer and has over 20 years of leadership experience in the oilfield services industry, particularly concentrated on the international market. While at Schlumberger, Mr. Yearwood served as a charter member of the M-I SWACO executive committee, thus enhancing the Smith board of directors with his intimate knowledge and unique perspective of the M-I SWACO joint venture. A native of Trinidad & Tobago, Mr. Yearwood also brings a strong international perspective and relationships to the Smith board of directors, which is especially relevant as Smith continues to expand outside the United States.

### **Directors Continuing in Office**

Class I directors to continue in office until 2011:

**Loren K. Carroll**, 66, has been a director since 1987. From April 2006 until April 2008, he served as an advisor to Smith. From March 1994 until April 2006, Mr. Carroll served as President and Chief Executive Officer of M-I SWACO. From 1992 (when he rejoined Smith) until 1994, he served as Smith s Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. He joined Smith in December 1984 and served as Vice President and

103

Chief Financial Officer until January 1988 and then Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer until March 1989. He serves as a director of KBR, Inc. (since 2007), an engineering, construction and services company; CGG - Veritas (since 2007), a geophysical services and equipment provider; Forest Oil Corporation (since 2006), an exploration and production company; and Fleetwood Enterprises, Inc. (since 1999), a manufacturer of motor homes. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Carroll to serve as a director because he has direct and intimate knowledge of Smith and its M-I SWACO joint venture, its products and current technology as well as future technological needs. He also brings valuable management and finance expertise to the Smith board of directors. As a director at various other public companies, Mr. Carroll also provides direct and valuable experience in strategy, risk management and other corporate governance issues.

Dod A. Fraser, 59, has been a director since 2004. Mr. Fraser is the President of Sackett Partners Incorporated, a consulting company, and a member of other corporate boards. Mr. Fraser established Sackett Partners in 2000 upon retiring from a 27-year career in investment banking. From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Fraser was with The Chase Manhattan Bank, now JP Morgan Chase, where he was Managing Director, Group Executive of the global oil and gas group. Prior to that, Mr. Fraser was General Partner of Lazard Freres & Co., which he joined in 1978. He serves as a director of Forest Oil Corporation (since 2000), an exploration and production company, and Acergy SA (since 2009), a subsea engineering and construction services company. He served as a director of Terra Industries, Inc., a producer of nitrogen products for agricultural, industrial and environmental markets, from 2003 until 2010. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Fraser to serve as a director because he has valuable investment banking and financial expertise, including extensive experience with capital markets transactions and investments. The Smith board of directors also benefits from his service on the audit committees of other public companies. He serves as the Chairman of the Smith Audit Committee and as a member of the Smith Compensation and Benefits Committee.

### Class II directors to continue in office until 2012:

Robert Kelley, 64, has been a director since 2005. Since 2001, Mr. Kelley has served as the President of Kellco Investments, a private investment company. From 1986 to 2001, Mr. Kelley served in several senior management roles including Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Noble Affiliates, Inc. Prior to 1986, he was President and Chief Executive Officer of Samedan Oil Corporation, a subsidiary of Noble Energy Inc. He serves as a director of Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation (since 2003), an exploration and production company, and OGE Energy Corp. (since 1996), an electric utility. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Kelley to serve as a director because he has over 30 years of executive leadership experience. His tenure as a public company director, both within and outside Smith s industry, equips him with valuable experience for many of the same issues that the Smith board of directors faces, such as executive compensation and succession planning. He serves as Chairman of the Smith Compensation and Benefits Committee and as a member of the Smith Audit Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Luiz Rodolfo Landim Machado, 53, has been a director since 2008. Mr. Landim has served as advisor to the President of the EBX Group since April 2009 and served as Chief Executive Officer of OSX Brasil S/A from June 2009 until April 2010. He served as Chief Executive Officer of OGX Petroleo e Gas S.A. from April 2008 until April 2009. From May 2006 until April 2008, he served as a member of the Board, the Executive President and the head of Investor Relations of MMX - Mineracao e Metalicos S.A. Prior to joining MMX, Mr. Landim served in various positions at Petroleo Brasileiro S.A. (Petrobras) from 1980 until April 2006, most recently as Chief Executive Officer of BR Distribuidora, a subsidiary of Petrobras. He serves as a director of the subsidiaries of the EBX Group, which include OGX Petroleo e Gas S.A. (since 2008), an exploration and production company; MMX - Mineracao e Matalicos S.A. (since 2006), a mining company; LLX Logistica S.A. (since 2007), a logistics company; and MPX Energia S.A. (since 2007), a power generation company. Mr. Landim served on the Board of Globex Utilidades S.A., a retail department store chain, from 2006 until 2009. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Landim to serve as a director because he brings an international oil and gas industry perspective to the Smith board of directors. A native of Brazil, his intimate knowledge of the Brazilian exploration and production industry as well as his understanding of and experience in the Brazilian and

104

international markets enable him to make meaningful contributions to Smith as it continues its international expansion. He serves as a member of the Smith Audit Committee and the Smith Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

**Doug Rock**, 63, has been a director since 1987 and has been Smith s Chairman of the Board since 1991. Mr. Rock is currently Chairman of the Smith board of directors and a Special Executive Advisor to the Chief Executive Officer of Smith until his resignation, effective May 12, 2010. Mr. Rock joined Smith in 1974 and served as Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer from March 1989 until December 2008. He served as a director of Moneygram International, Inc. (from 2004 until 2009), a payment services company, and CE Franklin Ltd. (from 1999 until 2008), an oilfield distribution company, of which Smith owns 53%. The Smith board of directors selected Mr. Rock to serve as a director because of his many years of service as Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of Smith. Mr. Rock s intimate and extensive knowledge of Smith and its employees, culture, technology, customers and market are a valuable asset to the Smith board of directors, particularly as the industry emerges from the recent economic crisis.

105

### SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table shows, as of July 14, 2010, certain information about stock ownership of all persons known to Smith to own of record or beneficially more than 5% of Smith s outstanding common stock. This information is based upon information furnished to Smith by these persons and statements filed with the SEC. The number and percentage of shares beneficially owned is determined under SEC rules, and the information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under such rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares which the individual has the right to acquire within 60 days of July 14, 2010 through the exercise of any stock option or any other right. Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes, each person has sole voting and investment power (or shares such powers with his or her spouse) with respect to the shares shown as beneficially owned.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Class
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.	18,335,302(1)	7.4%
100 East Pratt Street		
Baltimore, Maryland 21202		
FMR LLC	16,908,065(2)	6.8%
82 Devonshire St.		
Boston, MA 02109		
BlackRock, Inc.	14,736,712(3)	5.9%
40 East 52nd Street		
New York, NY 10022		
The Growth Fund	12,697,098(4)	5.1%
333 South Hope Street		
Los Angeles, California 90071		

- (1) Based upon the statement on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 11, 2010. Such filing indicates that T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. (Price Associates) has sole voting power over 4,872,222 shares of Smith common stock and sole dispositive power over 18,335,302 shares of Smith common stock. These securities are owned by various individual and institutional investors for which Price Associates serves as investment adviser with power to direct investments and/or sole power to vote the securities. For purposes of the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Price Associates is deemed to be a beneficial owner of such securities; however, Price Associates expressly disclaims that it is the beneficial owner of such securities.
- (2) Based upon the statement on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 16, 2010. Such filing indicates that FMR LLC has sole voting power over 257,616 shares of Smith common stock and sole dispositive power over 16,908,065 shares of Smith common stock.
- (3) Based upon the statement on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 29, 2010.
- (4) Based on the statement on Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 12, 2010. Such filing indicates that The Growth Fund has sole voting power over 12,697,098 shares of Smith common stock and sole dispositive power over no shares of Smith common stock. Such filing also indicates that The Growth Fund is advised by CRMC which manages equity assets for various investment companies through two divisions, Capital Research Global Investors and Capital World Investors. These divisions generally function separately from each other with respect to investment research activities and they make investment decisions and proxy voting decisions for the investment companies on a separate basis.

106

The following table shows the number of shares of Smith common stock beneficially owned as of July 14, 2010 by each director or nominee for director, the executive officers named in the summary compensation table included in this proxy statement/prospectus, and all directors and executive officers as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, the persons listed below have sole voting power and investment power relating to the shares shown.

Name of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership (1)	Percent of Class
Loren K. Carroll	193,662	*
Dod A. Fraser.	27,179	*
James R. Gibbs (2)(3)	46,207	*
Robert Kelley (4)	11,994	*
Luiz Rodolfo Landim Machado	12,096	*
Duane C. Radtke	30,463	*
William J. Restrepo	18,000	*
Christopher I. S. Rivers (5)	108,823	*
Bryan L. Dudman (5)	69,353	*
Norman A. Mckay	1,000	*
Margaret K. Dorman (6)		*
Doug Rock	868,929	*
John Yearwood	46,519	*
All directors and executive officers as a group (17 persons)	1,615,956	*

- \* Less than 1%.
- (1) The amounts reported include shares of Smith common stock that could be acquired within 60 days of April 22, 2010 through the exercise of stock options as follows: Mr. Carroll: 59,000 shares; Mr. Dudman: 4,800 shares; Mr. Rivers: 60,340 shares; and all directors and executive officers as a group: 158,790 shares.
- (2) The amounts reported do not include 24,000 restricted stock units held by Mr. Gibbs. Each such restricted stock unit represents a contingent right to receive one share of Smith common stock and was granted to Mr. Gibbs in 1999 in connection with the termination of the Directors Retirement Plan. The shares will not be issued until the restricted stock units vest upon retirement after ten years of service as a director. Mr. Gibbs currently has no voting or investment power with respect to the related shares of Smith common stock.
- (3) The amounts reported include 2,000 shares held by Mr. Gibbs spouse.
- (4) The amounts reported do not include 15,671 shares, the receipt of which were deferred by Mr. Kelley until his retirement from the Smith board of directors.
- (5) The amounts reported include shares of Smith common stock allocated to accounts under a 401(k) plan as follows: Mr. Dudman: 24,209 shares; Mr. Rivers: 7,182 shares; and all directors and executive officers as a group: 32,139 shares.
- (6) Ms. Dorman resigned from her position with Smith, effective October 16, 2009. Smith is not reasonably able to determine at this time how many shares of Smith common stock are owned by Ms. Dorman.

107

### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

## **Corporate Governance Guidelines**

Smith s Corporate Governance Guidelines outline the functions of the Smith board of directors, director qualifications and responsibilities, and various processes and procedures designed to ensure effective and responsive governance. The full text of the guidelines is published on Smith s website at www.smith.com under the Investor Relations caption and link to Governance. Smith stockholders may also obtain a free copy upon request by contacting Smith s Corporate Secretary, Smith International, Inc., 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073.

# **Board Structure and Role in Risk Management**

Smith s board of directors currently consists of eight directors. Board agendas include regularly scheduled sessions for the independent directors to meet without management present. The independent board members have determined that a leadership structure in which Mr. Rock continues his service as Chairman provides the continuity required during a period in which Smith s senior-most leadership has changed for the first time in over twenty years. The Smith board of directors has also determined that strong corporate governance requires an independent lead director to chair executive sessions of the non-management directors and to execute the responsibilities outlined below. The Smith board of directors has designated Mr. Gibbs as its Lead Director. As such his responsibilities are to:

preside at all meetings of the board at which the Chairman is not present, including executive sessions of the independent directors;

call meetings of the independent directors;

serve as principal liaison on board-wide issues between the independent directors and the Chairman; and

be available for consultation and director communication, if requested by any major stockholder.

In accordance with NYSE requirements, Smith s Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing Smith s financial reporting and internal operating controls, which includes Smith s risk assessment and risk management policies, as discussed in more detail in the section titled Audit Committee. The Audit Committee receives reports at each regularly scheduled meeting from the Director of Internal Audit, Chief Ethics Officer and General Counsel, including updates on Smith s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and other relevant compliance matters. The Audit Committee also receives regular updates from management and the independent auditors. Material violations of Smith s policies are identified to the Audit Committee promptly upon discovery, with full reports at the next regularly scheduled meetings. The Audit Committee approves Smith s Internal Audit Plan, which includes an annual risk assessment, and receives regular updates on the status of the audit.

### **Board and Annual Meetings**

The Smith board of directors and its committees meet throughout the year on a set schedule, and also hold special meetings and act by written consent from time to time as appropriate. The Smith board of directors held fourteen meetings during 2009. All directors attended at least 75% of the meetings of the board of directors and of all committees on which they served. Smith does not have a policy regarding directors attendance at the annual meeting of stockholders. Although no directors attended the 2009 annual meeting in person, all were available telephonically.

# **Director Independence**

The Smith board of directors annually evaluates the independence of the directors of Smith and has affirmatively determined that all directors are independent except Messrs. Rock and Yearwood, who are employees of Smith, and Mr. Carroll, who was an employee of Smith within the past three years. The Smith

108

### **Table of Contents**

board of directors determination regarding independence and financial expertise of its members is based on applicable laws and regulations, Smith s Corporate Governance Guidelines, the rules of the SEC and NYSE and a review of any direct or indirect relationship between each director or his immediate family and Smith. To be considered independent, the Smith board of directors must affirmatively determine that a director has no material relationship with Smith. In each case, the Smith board of directors broadly considers all relevant facts and circumstances, including the director s commercial, industrial, consulting, legal, accounting, charitable and familial relationships and such other criteria as the Smith board of directors may determine from time to time. In evaluating the independence of each non-employee director, the board considered that in the ordinary course of business Smith s subsidiaries buy from or sell to companies with which its directors have relationships as follows:

- (1) Mr. Gibbs is Chairman of the Board, and former President and Chief Executive Officer, of Frontier Oil Corporation.
- (2) Mr. Fraser is a director of Forest Oil Corporation and Terra Industries.
- (3) Mr. Kelley is a director of Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation and OGE Energy Corp.
- (4) Mr. Landim is a director of Globex Utilidades S.A.
- (5) Mr. Carroll is a director of Forest Oil Corporation.
- (6) Mr. Radtke is a director of NFR Energy; 35% owner of Juniper Exploration LLP and 100% owner of Valiant Exploration LLC.

All of these companies expect to continue their business relationship in 2010.

### Communication with the Board

Stockholders and interested parties who wish to communicate with the non-management directors as a group, the Lead Director, or with any individual director, may do so by contacting Smith s Corporate Secretary at 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073. Smith s Corporate Secretary will then relay all communications to the appropriate director or group of directors.

### **Committees of the Board**

The Smith board of directors has delegated various responsibilities and authority to different board committees as described in this section of this Proxy Statement. The Smith board of directors has determined that all committee members are independent and satisfy the relevant additional independence requirements for the members of such committees imposed by the SEC, the NYSE or Smith. Each committee operates under a formal charter adopted by the Smith board of directors, the full text of which may be found on Smith s website at <a href="https://www.smith.com">www.smith.com</a> under the Investor Relations caption and link to Governance. Smith stockholders may also obtain a free copy upon request by contacting Smith s Corporate Secretary, Smith International, Inc., 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073.

109

Members of the Committees of the Smith Board of Directors.

			Nominating
		Compensation	and
		and	Corporate
	Audit	Benefits	Governance
	Committee	Committee	Committee
Loren K. Carroll			
Dod A. Fraser	X*	X	
James R. Gibbs			X*
Robert Kelley	X	X*	
Luiz Rodolfo Landim Machado	X		X
Duane C. Radtke		X	X
Doug Rock			

### John Yearwood

### \* Committee Chairman

*Audit Committee.* During 2009, the Audit Committee met ten times, including telephone meetings, to discuss relevant accounting, auditing, internal control and disclosure matters. The Audit Committee s responsibilities, discussed in detail in the charter include, among other duties, the responsibility to:

assist the Smith board of directors in its general oversight of Smith s auditing, financial reporting and internal control functions;

appoint, compensate and oversee the work of Smith s independent registered public accounting firm;

review Smith s compliance with corporate governance standards; and

review the work and performance of Smith s internal audit function.

The Smith board of directors has determined that all members are financially literate and that all members qualify as audit committee financial experts.

Compensation and Benefits Committee. During 2009, the Compensation and Benefits Committee met ten times. The Compensation and Benefits Committee charter permits the Compensation and Benefits Committee to delegate its authority to sub-committees. The Compensation and Benefits Committee s responsibilities, discussed in detail in the charter include, among other duties, the responsibility to:

review Smith s executive compensation program, including approving corporate goals and objectives relating to Chief Executive Officer compensation and evaluating Chief Executive Officer performance in light of such goals and objectives;

review Smith s employee benefits and incentive compensation plans and programs, including their establishment, modification and administration:

review and make recommendations to the Smith board of directors with respect to director compensation; and

review and discuss with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and recommend its inclusion in this proxy statement/prospectus.

*Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.* During 2009, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met five times. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee s responsibilities, discussed in detail in the charter include, among other duties, the responsibility to:

monitor developments in corporate governance principles and standards and develop and recommend to the Smith board of directors a set of corporate governance guidelines;

110

identify and review the qualifications of director candidates and make recommendations for board membership and structure;

review and evaluate the effectiveness of Smith s management succession plan; and

administer a process to measure the effectiveness of the Smith board of directors and its committees.

### **Director Qualifications and Nominations**

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider nominees proposed by stockholders. To recommend a prospective nominee for the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee s consideration, you may submit the candidate s name and qualifications to Smith s Corporate Secretary at 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073. Recommendations from stockholders for nominees must be received by Smith s Corporate Secretary within the parameters set forth under the section Stockholders Proposals.

The process for identifying and evaluating director nominees includes the following steps:

- (1) the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, Chairman of the Board or other board members identify a need to fill vacancies or add newly created directorships;
- (2) the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee initiates a search and seeks input from board members and senior management and, if necessary, hires a search firm or obtains advice from legal or other advisors;
- (3) director candidates, including any candidates properly proposed by stockholders in accordance with Smith s bylaws, are identified and presented to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee;
- (4) initial interviews of candidates are conducted by the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee;
- (5) the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee meets to consider and approve final candidate(s) and conduct further interviews as necessary; and
- (6) the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee makes recommendations to the full board for inclusion in the slate of directors at the annual meeting.

The evaluation process will be the same whether the nominee is recommended by a stockholder or by a member of the Smith board of directors. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for establishing the selection criteria for candidates from time to time and reviewing with the board such criteria and the appropriate skills and characteristics required of board members in the context of the then current make-up of the Smith board of directors. Annually, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee evaluates the directors that are then up for election and, at least annually, evaluates the then current needs and composition of the Smith board of directors, including the effectiveness of the board s diversity initiative. At a minimum, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee must be satisfied that each nominee for director has the necessary business and/or professional knowledge and experience relevant to Smith, its business and the goals and perspectives of its stockholders; is well regarded in the community, with a long term, good reputation for high ethical standards; has good common sense and judgment; has a positive record of accomplishment in present and prior positions; has an excellent reputation for preparation, attendance, participation, interest and initiative on other boards on which he or she may serve; and has the time, energy, interest and willingness to become involved in Smith and its future. In addition, the Smith board of directors believes that an important component of a board of directors is diversity, including background, skills, experience, expertise, gender, race and culture. In considering individuals as candidates for board membership, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee seeks to attain such diversity in board composition. Any search firm retained to assist the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is advised to seek to include diverse candidates from traditional and nontraditional pools.

### **Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation**

During 2009, Messrs. Gibbs, Fraser and Kelley served as members of Smith s Compensation and Benefits Committee. None of the Compensation and Benefits Committee members has served as an employee or officer of Smith, and none of Smith s executive officers has served as a director or member of the compensation committee of another entity, which has an executive officer serving as a member of the Smith board of directors.

### **Code of Business Conduct and Ethics**

All of Smith s officers, employees and directors are required to comply with Smith s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics to help ensure that Smith s business is conducted in accordance with the highest standards of ethical behavior. Smith s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics covers all areas of professional conduct, including customer relationships, conflicts of interest, insider trading, financial disclosure, intellectual property and confidential information, as well as requiring strict adherence to all laws and regulations applicable to Smith s business. Employees may report any violations or suspected violations of the Code by using Smith s ethics hotline. The Code includes an anti-retaliation statement. The full text of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, as well as any waiver of a provision of the Code granted to any senior officer or director or material amendment to the Code, if any, is published on Smith s website at www.smith.com under the Investor Relations caption and link to Governance. Stockholders may also obtain a free copy upon request by contacting the Smith Corporate Secretary, Smith International, Inc., 1310 Rankin Road, Houston, Texas 77073.

### COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### Overview

Compensation Objectives. Smith has designed its executive compensation program to reward its executives based on Smith, business unit and individual performance. The general objectives of Smith s executive compensation program are to:

Attract and retain the best available individuals to serve on Smith s executive team;

Motivate Smith s executives to achieve Smith s short- and long-term financial and operational goals; and

Align Smith s executives interests with those of its other stockholders.

*Compensation Philosophy.* The Compensation and Benefits Committee (referred to as the Compensation Committee ) bases its executive compensation philosophy on the following principles:

A significant portion of executive compensation should be variable and dependent on company and business unit performance.

The principal measures of performance should be annual financial measures versus specified goals.

Of the at-risk portion, a significant amount should be paid in equity with vesting restrictions (i) to align executive interests with those of Smith s other stockholders and (ii) to promote long-term retention of Smith s executives.

Corporate executives incentive compensation plans should be tied to overall corporate performance whereas business unit executives plans should be tied in part to overall corporate performance and in part to the business unit performance for which they are responsible.

In the aftermath of the economic crisis, the Compensation Committee conducted an extensive review of Smith s compensation policies to ensure that performance goals were aligned not only with long-term stockholder interests but also with Smith s need to weather the crisis. In addition to emphasizing stockholder value objectives such as earnings per share and return on net capital employed, the Compensation Committee added specific identifiable goals related to cash flow, day-sales-outstanding and inventory reduction objectives

112

that are crucial to Smith in a downturn. The Compensation Committee anticipates that it will continue using personal objectives in setting annual compensation goals, such as participation in quality, heath, environmental and safety initiatives or other types of activities requiring personal involvement of the executive officers that support the business success of Smith.

**Decision Process.** The Compensation Committee makes all executive compensation decisions. The Compensation Committee retained Pearl Meyer & Partners (referred to in this section as Pearl Meyer ), an independent compensation consultant, to assist it in the decision making process. Pearl Meyer works for the Compensation Committee and does not undertake assignments for management that exceed \$120,000 per year.

In October of each year, the Compensation Committee reviews preliminary recommendations from Pearl Meyer based on current and comparative compensation data, including benchmarking results as discussed below. For all executive officers other than the Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee reviews recommendations and comparative data provided by Pearl Meyer and, in conjunction with additional input from the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Vice President of Human Resources, especially as to individual executive performance, makes its decision. For the Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee uses recommendations and comparative data provided by Pearl Meyer in making its decision.

Generally, the Compensation Committee makes final compensation decisions and sets performance targets in December of each year to correspond with the business plan for Smith supcoming fiscal year and with their evaluation of executive performance for the current year. Executive compensation decisions become effective January 1 of the upcoming fiscal year. With the exception of equity incentive awards for new hires or promotions, which are typically granted at the next Compensation Committee meeting after the hire or promotion date, Smith grants equity incentive awards only in December.

**Benchmarking Group.** The worldwide energy industry is a competitive environment for executive talent. To attract and retain a high level of executive expertise, Smith must remain competitive with the pay of companies with whom it competes for executive talent. Pearl Meyer provides Smith with general compensation information related to Smith s industry and specific compensation information related to a group of companies in Smith s industry whose executives have similar duties and responsibilities. The following companies compose Smith s benchmarking group:

Baker Hughes Incorporated Halliburton Company

BJ Services Company National Oilwell Varco, Inc.

Cameron International Corporation Schlumberger Limited

FMC Technologies, Inc. Weatherford International Ltd.

Executive Position Grade Levels. Smith has established nine executive management grade levels. Smith assigns all executive officers in Smith to a grade level consistent with the responsibility and authority of the position. The Compensation Committee, with the assistance of Pearl Meyer, uses the grade levels to establish guidelines for salary, target annual incentive awards, target long-term incentive awards, and perquisite benefits. The grade level for each individual executive officer typically corresponds to his or her management position; however, occasionally Smith may advance an individual to a higher level to recognize exceptional contributions. Variable pay awards and equity grants, as well as perquisite benefits, are consistent within each grade level.

*Fixed versus Variable Pay.* Smith divides its compensation program into two general categories, fixed and variable pay. Fixed pay consists of base salary and provides Smith s executive officers with a level of assured cash compensation appropriate for their positions within Smith. Variable pay includes annual cash bonus awards and annual equity awards (each as explained in more detail below) and is the largest component of executive management s total target compensation. Typically, the equity awards to executive officers are solely performance-based awards that are not earned unless financial performance goals are met.

Performance Matrices. At the beginning of each year, the Compensation Committee approves consolidated and business unit performance matrices that establish targets for the variable-pay component of executive compensation. Generally, these matrices are based on the financial performance goals established in Smith s annual business plan, supplemented by personal objectives relevant to each business segment. Because the goals are pre-determined and market conditions fluctuate throughout the year, the performance goals may not correspond to Smith s actual results.

This process has resulted in the establishment of performance goals that are not easily met and require excellent performance and effort by management regardless of general market conditions. For instance, in performance year 2008, when Smith reported record earnings and returns during a period of robust market activity in the oilfield service industry, the annual cash bonus awards for Smith s named executive officers ranged from 44% to 200% of target and the performance-based equity awards were 92.6% of target. For performance year 2009, Smith s results suffered from the extreme economic recession, particularly with respect to the North American gas drilling industry, and the annual cash bonus awards for Smith s named executive officers ranged from 0% to 79% of target and the performance-based equity awards were 63.2% of target. For the last three years, the awards to the named executive officers as a percent of target are set forth in the table below.

	Percen	ntage of Target Award Paid				
	for H	Each Performance	Year:			
	2009	2008	2007			
Annual Cash Bonus Award	0% - 79%	44% - 200%	35% - 162%			
Annual Equity Award	63.2%	92.6%	106.5%			

Alignment of Interests with Stockholders. Long-term equity incentives comprise a significant portion of total compensation for Smith s executives. Smith awards all long-term equity incentives as restricted stock units which vest ratably over either three or four years, depending on the type of award (three years for performance-based awards and four years for time-based awards). As a result, executives receive a significant amount of equity in Smith, thereby aligning their interests with those of the stockholders and providing incentive to avoid excessive risks. For instance, for the 2010 performance-year awards granted in December of 2009, approximately 70% of the total target compensation to the Smith Chief Executive Officer was in equity-based performance awards. Equity-based compensation awards constituted 50% to 68% of the total target compensation to the other named executive officers and 40% to 55% of the total target compensation to the other executive officers. In determining the type of equity awards to grant, the Compensation Committee evaluated, among other considerations, the required accounting treatment and other tax and accounting implications of various types of equity awards. The Compensation Committee selected restricted stock units ( units ), discussed below, as the equity award component because Smith can offer equal long-term value as it could with stock options while issuing fewer shares, thus reducing the dilution effect of the equity program. Performance-based unit awards are earned only when the financial performance goals are met and are forfeited prior to issuance of the common stock if the financial performance goals are not met. All unit awards contain a retention element and align executive management with stockholder interests. For these reasons, the Compensation Committee has determined that units are the most appropriate long-term equity based incentive for Smith and are the only type of equity incentive that Smith currently awards to its executive officers.

The Compensation Committee encourages stock ownership by executive management and periodically considers the appropriateness of implementing stock ownership guidelines. The Compensation Committee has chosen not to require stock ownership guidelines for the executive management at this time. Smith s Insider Trading Policy prohibits Smith s executive officers from engaging in any hedging or monetization transactions involving Smith securities.

114

### **Executive Compensation Components**

**Annual Base Salary.** The Compensation Committee sets salaries for each executive by reference to the executive grade level of the position and individual performance. The criteria used in evaluating individual performance, including that of the Smith Chief Executive Officer, vary depending on the executive s function, but generally include:

Leadership inside and outside Smith;

Advancing Smith s interests with customers, vendors and in other business relationships;

Product quality and development;

Financial results.

Advancement in skills and responsibility; and

For the 2009 year, base salary represents 14% of Chief Executive Officer total target compensation and between approximately 17% and 30% of total target compensation for the other named executive officers. Base salary generally remains at the median level of the salary range, but may exceed the median if deemed appropriate by the Compensation Committee.

Annual Cash Bonus. Smith s executive officers participate in the Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) which provides for annual cash bonuses. For the 2009 year, the Compensation Committee tied 14% of Chief Executive Officer total target compensation and between 15% and 20% of each other named executive officer s total target compensation to the achievement of financial performance goals under the AIP.

Participants in the AIP can earn an annual cash bonus based upon the achievement of Smith s established financial performance goals, supplemented by personal goals set for each executive officer, for each fiscal year, as described above in Fixed versus Variable Pay and Performance Matrices. The target annual bonus percentages for the executive officers are determined based upon the grade level of the executive officer and are generally close to the median of the benchmarking group. The payout award, if any, is determined by multiplying the actual annual cash bonus percentage earned by the product of the target annual cash bonus percentage times the executive s base salary.

Depending upon Smith s financial performance, the AIP payout can range from zero to 200% of the target annual cash bonus percentage. Upon the achievement of the target financial performance goals, participants earn 100% of their target annual cash bonus.

The Compensation Committee has no discretion to increase any award after establishing the performance targets, but may decrease or eliminate any annual bonus award, even if Smith or the executive meets the established performance targets. The Committee periodically uses such negative discretion as an additional catalyst to encourage compliance with particular personal goals for the executive management that emerge during the fiscal year and that were not initially included in the performance matrices. Smith intends that the AIP comply with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code ) so that amounts paid under the AIP will be fully deductible by Smith for federal income tax purposes.

Annual Restricted Stock Unit Award. The annual restricted stock unit ( unit ) award, issued pursuant to the Third Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan ( LTIP ), is the largest single component of total target annual compensation. Units represent the right to receive shares of common stock in the future, depending upon the achievement of the target equity goal for the coming year (for performance-based unit awards) or continued employment with Smith (for time-based unit awards). As discussed above, in typical years, executive officers receive only performance-based unit awards. As discussed above, generally the Compensation Committee makes compensation decisions for the upcoming fiscal year in December of each year. In December 2008, the global business environment was significantly deteriorating and the economic outlook was extremely

115

volatile, particularly as related to projections for oil price and rig count, two key drivers for Smith s business. In addition, the market value of Smith s common stock had declined significantly from the beginning of 2008, as had that of the S&P 500 Index, the Philadelphia Oil Service Index (OSX), and Smith s peer companies, including those of Smith s benchmarking group. It was against this backdrop that Smith s Compensation Committee made their compensation decisions for 2009.

When approving the December 2008 equity awards for the 2009 performance year, the Compensation Committee considered the possibility that global industry conditions, along with general economic market conditions, could worsen beyond any then-current projections. In that case, 2009 performance targets may not have been reasonably achievable for non-operational related reasons outside the control or influence of management, resulting in a zero payout for all performance-based compensation. Historically, Smith had granted equity awards to its executive officers that were 100% performance-based. To ensure the retention value of the 2009 equity pay component, particularly during the uncertain market conditions, the Compensation Committee granted 20% of the total equity awards as time-based units for all executive officers, except Smith s Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Yearwood. The remaining 80% of the equity awards continued to consist of performance-based units. Mr. Yearwood received only performance-based units. The Compensation Committee viewed the 2009 performance period award structure as a one-time change due to the extenuating circumstances of the economic crisis. It did not contemplate continuing this mix of performance-based and time-based unit awards to the executive officers and returned in December 2009 to granting only performance-based units to the executive officers.

The Compensation Committee sets the monetary value of the awards by grade level for equity awards with all executive officers in the same grade level receiving unit awards of the same monetary value. The awards for the 2009 and 2010 performance years were in the range of the 50<sup>th</sup> percentile of equity awards granted by the benchmarking group. Award recipients do not own the underlying shares until the awards have been earned and vested; accordingly, participants have no voting rights on the shares and do not receive dividends until the shares are earned and vested. The number of target units granted is determined based on the closing price of the common stock on the date of grant, discounted for the present value of the dividends that are not paid on the unvested shares based on the dividend rate at the time of the award. The time-based units vest in equal installments over a four-year period based on continued employment requirements. If the performance-based units are earned at year-end by meeting the predetermined financial performance goals, they vest in equal installments over a three-year period based on continued employment requirements.

Depending upon performance, the payout for the performance-based unit awards for the 2009 performance year could range from zero to 130% of the target. Upon the achievement of the target equity goal, participants earn 100% of the units awarded. Once the financial performance goals have been set, the Compensation Committee does not exercise any discretion in the number of units awarded. In December 2009, the Compensation Committee evaluated the payout range for the executive officers. In order to encourage extraordinary efforts by Smith s senior leadership team, the Compensation Committee increased the maximum payout to 150% of the target for the top four grade levels beginning with the 2010 performance year awards.

### 2009 Compensation and Performance Year Awards.

The 2009 corporate performance metrics, set in March 2009 and used in the AIP, are (i) earnings per share and (ii) return on net capital employed, together composing 80% of the AIP goal, and cash flow generation based on a consolidated receivable and inventory reduction goal composing 20% of the AIP goal. The LTIP performance matrix is based on a return on net capital employed goal. Both of these sets of metrics are shown in the tables below. The business unit metrics for the AIP are set for each specific business unit and include (i) earnings and return on operating assets or return on net capital employed goals and (ii) free cash flow or a combination of day-sales-outstanding and inventory reduction goals. When consolidated, the business unit goals align with the consolidated AIP goals. The Compensation Committee selected these financial measurements because these metrics are readily understood by the executives, provide a balanced incentive to increase income

116

while managing Smith s investment in its net assets, and relate directly to the creation of economic value that is ultimately reflected in share value.

Annual Cash Bonus. For the 2009 performance year, the grade level and target AIP percentages for the named executive officers were as follows:

	Performance Year 2009						
Name	Grade Level	Target AIP %					
D. Rock*	n/a	120%					
J. Yearwood	I	100%					
W. Restrepo	III	65%					
C. Rivers	II	85%					
N. Mckay	II	85%					
B. Dudman	II	85%					
M. Dorman**	II	85%					

<sup>\*</sup> Mr. Rock serves as Smith s Chairman of the Board, which was an executive officer position during 2009. During 2009, he was compensated as a Special Executive Advisor pursuant to his employment agreement and so was not in any particular officer grade level.

\*\* Ms. Dorman served as Smith s Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer until October 2009. The AIP target goals for the 2009 performance year included a performance matrix with a corporate earnings per share target of \$1.34 and a return on net capital employed target of 15.5% representing 80% of the plan goals. The remaining 20% of the plan goals included a consolidated receivable and inventory reduction goal of \$1,148 million. The metrics are set forth below. For the 2009 performance year, Smith s earnings per share were \$0.66, return on net capital employed was 11.7% and consolidated receivable and inventory reductions from December 31, 2008 were \$1,009 million; resulting in a payout of 15.4% to Messrs. Rock, Yearwood and Restrepo.

# ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN 2009 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MATRIX 80% EARNINGS PER SHARE

RETURN ON NET C EMPLOYEI	ACTUAL \$0.66	<\$0.94	THRESHOLD \$0.94	\$1.14	TARGET \$1.34	\$1.47	MAXIMUM \$1.61	
	<10.9%		0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%
THRESHOLD	10.9%		0%	20%	35%	60%	85%	110%
ACTUAL	11.7%	0%						
	13.2%		0%	35%	50%	75%	100%	125%
TARGET	15.5%		0%	60%	75%	100%	125%	150%
	17.1%		0%	85%	100%	125%	150%	175%
MAXIMUM	18.6%		0%	110%	125%	150%	175%	200%

# ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN 2009 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MATRIX 20% CONSOLIDATED RECEIVABLE AND INVENTORY

# REDUCTION FROM DECEMBER 31, 2008 (IN

MILLIONS)		PAYOUT EARNED
	<804	0.0%
THRESHOLD	804	20.0%
	861	36.0%
	918	52.0%
	976	68.0%
ACTUAL	1,009	77.2%
	1,033	84.0%
TARGET	1,148	100.0%
	1,205	125.0%
	1,263	150.0%
	1,320	175.0%
MAXIMUM	1,378	200.0%

The business unit matrices and payout calculations follow a similar model, with the same payout range, but with targets that are specific to each business unit. The actual performance levels achieved by the business units were below the target goals, resulting in Messrs. Rivers, Dudman and Mckay (pro-rated for time of employment) earning 58.7%, 0% and 79.2%, respectively, of their target annual cash bonus percentage. Because Ms. Dorman was not an employee as of December 31, 2009, she did not earn any award under the AIP.

Annual Equity Award. All units granted to Mr. Yearwood in 2008 for the 2009 performance year were performance-based units. Messrs. Rivers and Dudman received a mix of 80% performance-based units and 20% time-based units. Because Mr. Mckay joined the Company in November 2009, he did not receive any performance-based units for the 2009 performance year. No units were granted to Mr. Rock in 2008 for the 2009 performance year. The target for the 2009 performance year was return on net capital employed was 15.5%, the same level as for the AIP. The matrix is set forth below. For the 2009 performance year, Smith s return on net capital employed was 11.67%, resulting in each individual earning 63.2% of their target unit award. Because Ms. Dorman was not an employee as of December 31, 2009, she did not receive any performance-based unit awards based on the criteria set forth above. Her settlement agreement is described in the section titled Employment Agreements below.

### ANNUAL PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED SHARES

### 2009 FISCAL YEAR AWARD MATRIX

# RESTRICTED SHARES EARNED

RETURN ON NET CAPITAL	EMPLOYED	(AS A % OF TARGET AWARD)
	<10.85%	0.0%
THRESHOLD	10.85%	50.0%
	11.63%	62.5%
ACTUAL	11.67%	63.2%
	12.40%	75.0%
	13.18%	87.5%
	13.95%	93.8%
TARGET	15.50%	100.0%
	16.28%	107.5%
	17.05%	115.0%
	17.83%	122.5%
MAXIMUM	18.60%	130.0%

### **Other Executive Compensation Components**

Perquisites. Smith has an interest in ensuring the physical and mental wellness of its employees and, therefore, provides for a reimbursement of up to \$3,000 for an annual physical for each executive officer. In addition, in lieu of providing specific perquisites, Smith provides a set dollar amount of specifically identified perquisites. This dollar amount is consistent within each grade level for U.S. residents and within corporate guidelines established for non-U.S. residents and is paid annually in 26 equal bi-weekly payments, as identified in the footnotes to the Summary Compensation Table. The executive officers do not need to spend their allowance on the specified items, but are free to use the allowance at their discretion. The perquisite package for non-U.S. residents follows a similar methodology with different dollar amounts. Mr. Mckay receives the non-U.S. perquisite package, as identified in the footnotes to the Summary Compensation Table. Smith believes that providing a set dollar amount allows its executive officers more flexibility and is more efficient to administer than reimbursing for each individual expense. The amount provided is reviewed periodically and is consistent with perquisites provided by the benchmarking group. In addition, Smith s executive officers may receive personal administrative assistant services at no incremental cost to Smith. Perquisite amounts are not considered annual salary for bonus purposes or 401(k) contributions.

401(k) Plan. Smith believes that financial security during retirement is an important benefit to provide to its executive management. For this reason, Smith and various subsidiaries offer 401(k) plans to their employees, including their executive officers. Because the Smith and subsidiary plans operate and are administered in a similar fashion, for purposes of this discussion, the 401(k) plans will be referred to in the singular. Participants may contribute up to the federal limit in the 401(k) plan. Smith makes various levels of contributions to the 401(k) plan, including age-weighted contributions and performance-based matching contributions as defined in the 401(k) plan. Although the majority of Smith peers have both defined benefit and defined contribution plans, the Compensation Committee elected to implement a defined contribution plan (the 401(k) plan ) to control Smith s costs. Smith 401(k) Plan is consistent with similar plans available generally in the energy industry. Executive officers participate in the 401(k) plan on the same basis as other employees.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. In addition to the 401(k) Plan described above, Smith s officers, including all of the executive officers, and other key employees are eligible to participate in Smith s Post-2004 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the post-2004 SERP). In connection with the adoption of the post-2004 SERP, Smith suspended contributions to its previous SERP (SERP), except for guaranteed interest contributions discussed in the narrative disclosure following the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table. The SERP and post-2004 SERP were implemented to allow Smith s officers to defer additional pre-tax compensation for retirement without regard to the limits placed on 401(k) plans under the Code. Smith believes that the post-2004 SERP is an important tool for the retirement planning efforts of Smith s officers. Moreover, after reviewing data from the benchmarking group, Smith s Compensation Committee determined that the post-2004 SERP is important to remain competitive in the compensation arena. Additional information regarding the operation of the SERP and post-2004 SERP may be found in the footnotes and narrative disclosure following the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table.

### Change of Control and Employment Agreements

Change of Control Agreements. Smith has entered into change of control agreements with ten members of management, including all of the named executive officers. After reviewing benchmarking studies performed by outside legal counsel at the request of the Compensation Committee in 1999, the Compensation Committee adopted a form of change of control agreement. The Compensation Committee periodically reviews the terms of the change of control agreements and retains outside legal counsel to conduct benchmarking studies to determine whether the change of control agreements remain competitive in Smith s industry. As a result of these reviews, the Compensation Committee periodically revises the form of change of control agreement. In December 2009, the Compensation Committee revised the form of change of control agreement to eliminate tax gross-ups.

119

The Compensation Committee has determined that the change of control agreements are a necessary component of Smith s compensation package in order for Smith to provide competitive compensation arrangements, particularly because such agreements are standard in Smith s industry. In addition, they make executives neutral to change of control transactions that are in the best interests of Smith and its stockholders, and thereby help create, rather than diminish, stockholder value. Moreover, Smith believes that the change of control agreements help it to attract and retain its executive officers by reducing the personal uncertainty and anxiety that arises from the possibility of a future business combination. Smith selected objective criteria to determine whether a change of control has occurred for purposes of the change of control agreements in order to reduce the likelihood of a dispute in the event of a change of control and to help ensure that the agreements are triggered only under circumstances when a true transfer of control or ownership has occurred. While the change of control agreements do not influence decisions regarding compensation elements, the Compensation Committee periodically reviews the terms of the change of control agreements so that they remain generally consistent with those of the benchmarking group. Additional information regarding the change of control agreements may be found in the section titled Executive Compensation Change of Control and Employment Agreements.

Employment Agreements. When Smith emerged from bankruptcy in 1987, it offered employment agreements to certain key officers. The only remaining executive officer with an employment agreement is Mr. Dudman. Smith entered into this agreement primarily as a retention tool, but also because the Smith board of directors felt that Mr. Dudman could provide extraordinary and unique management and strategy skills to maintain and grow Smith. The Compensation Committee no longer offers these types of employment agreements to executive officers.

Mr. Dudman s employment agreement contains severance provisions that would entitle him to receive a lump sum payment in cash equal to his current annual base salary, bonus and benefits through the end of the employment period (three years) in the event that he were to be terminated by Smith (other than for cause, death or disability) or if for any reason his position is eliminated or otherwise becomes redundant, except in the event of a change of control, in which case severance would be paid pursuant to his change of control agreement as explained in the section titled Executive Compensation Change of Control and Employment Agreements. Mr. Dudman s agreement was restated in 2008 to comply with the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, but otherwise remains the same agreement as executed in 1987.

In addition, Smith entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Rock upon his retirement as Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer (the Rock agreement) pursuant to which Mr. Rock would serve as a Special Executive Advisor or in such other position as determined by Smith's board of directors for a period commencing January 1, 2009 and ending on the first day following the conclusion of Smith's annual meeting of stockholders for the calendar year 2010. Mr. Rock remained a member of Smith's board of directors and the Chairman of the Board after January 1, 2009. Effective as of 11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2008, the Rock agreement superseded Mr. Rock's previous employment agreement with Smith and Mr. Rock's previous change of control employment agreement with the Company. The Rock agreement provided for an annual base salary of \$1.3 million, a target bonus of 120% of base salary with respect to Smith's 2009 fiscal year and eligibility to participate in all Smith benefit and perquisite plans during the employment period other than Smith's Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan. The Rock agreement and Mr. Rock's employment were terminable by either Smith at any time or by Mr. Rock with 30 days written notice, and terminated automatically upon a change of control (as defined in the Rock agreement). In the event that Mr. Rock's employment was terminated as a result of his death or disability (as defined in the Rock agreement), by Smith without cause (as defined in the Rock agreement) or due to a change of control, Mr. Rock would have been entitled to certain accrued obligations and a termination payment equal to \$108,333.33 times the number of whole months (rounded up or down as provided for in the Rock agreement) between the date of termination and the original termination date of the Rock agreement. Mr. Rock was subject to a confidentiality covenant and a non-competition covenant during the term of the Rock agreement. Mr. Rock terminated the Rock agreement effective May 12, 2010, and is no longe

120

### **Table of Contents**

In connection with Ms. Dorman s departure from Smith effective October 16, 2009, Smith and Ms. Dorman entered into a separation agreement on September 28, 2009, under which Ms. Dorman received a one-time lump sum severance payment of \$2,697,514, less applicable taxes and deductions, reimbursement for health coverage premiums for up to eighteen months following October 16, 2009 to the extent Ms. Dorman elects to participate in COBRA coverage, executive-level outplacement services for a period of one year following October 16, 2009 and accelerated vesting of all outstanding equity grants, with an exercise period of up to three-years for outstanding stock options. Vesting of the performance-based restricted stock units relating to the 2009 performance period were accelerated and paid out at a level reflecting then-anticipated achievement of the 2009 performance metrics. These special severance benefits were contingent upon execution of a general release, which was executed, and ongoing compliance with confidentiality, non-disparagement and cooperation obligations.

**Pension Plan.** Smith has a defined benefit pension plan, which is currently frozen. The benefit accruals were frozen effective March 1, 1987, and the amount of the pension benefit was fixed for all eligible employees based only upon benefit accruals from September 1, 1985 to March 1, 1987. Mr. Rock is the only named executive officer with any benefit accruals under the plan. Any benefits under the pension plan are offset by benefits paid under a previous pension plan of Smith. There are no executive officers with any benefit accruals under the plan.

### COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management. Based on such review and discussion, the Committee recommended to the Smith board of directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement/prospectus.

Robert Kelley, Chairman

Dod A. Fraser

James R. Gibbs

This report of the Compensation and Benefits Committee shall not be deemed soliciting material, or to be filed with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act ), except to the extent that we specifically request that the information be treated as soliciting material or specifically incorporate it by reference into a document filed under the Securities Act of 1933 (the Securities Act ) or the Exchange Act. Further, this report will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act except to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by reference.

121

## **EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION**

The following tables show compensation for services to Smith of the persons who during 2009 were the principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and the next three most highly compensated executive officers (the named executive officers). Also included are Margaret Dorman, who was Smith s principal financial officer for a portion of the year, and Bryan Dudman, who otherwise would have been subject to reporting absent Mr. Mckay s new hire equity award.

### **Summary Compensation Table**

Name and Principal  Position (a)	Year (b)		Salary (\$) (c)	(\$)	nus (1) d)	Stock Awards (\$)(2) (e)	Aw (\$	otion ards )(2) (f)		Fon-Equity Incentive Plan ompensation (\$)(3) (g)	No I Cor	hange in Pension Value and nqualified Deferred npensation Carnings (\$) (h)		All Other mpensation (\$)(4) (i)	Total (\$) (j)
Doug Rock(5) Chairman of the Board	2009 2008 2007	\$	1,300,000 1,347,115 1,175,000	\$ \$ \$	0 0 0	\$ 0 \$ 0 \$ 4,652,695	\$	0 0 0	\$ \$ \$	240,240 1,341,600 1,837,230	\$ \$ \$	9,144 4,212 0(6)	\$ \$ \$	820,690	\$ 2,683,859 \$ 3,513,617 \$ 8,255,477
John Yearwood President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer	2009	\$	942,308	\$	0	\$ 4,499,994	\$	0	\$	154,000	\$	0	\$	192,702	\$ 5,789,004
William Restrepo Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer	2009	\$	96,923	\$	0	\$ 1,497,590	\$	0	\$	9,384	\$	0	\$	19,619	\$ 1,623,516
Christopher I.S. Rivers President and Chief Executive Officer, M-I SWACO	2009	\$	543,714	\$	0	\$ 1,644,134	\$	0	\$	290,892	\$	0	\$	139,647	\$ 2,618,387
Norman A. Mckay Executive Vice President and President, Smith Technologies	2009	\$	125,001	\$	0	\$ 3,644,131	\$	0	\$	56,100	\$	0	\$	53,082	\$ 3,878,313
Bryan L. Dudman Executive Vice President and President, Smith Drilling and Evaluation	2009 2008 2007	\$ \$ \$	637,000 631,092 485,000	\$	0	\$ 1,644,134 \$ 1,325,722 \$ 1,890,611	\$	0 0 0	\$ \$ \$	0 220,513 401,944	\$ \$ \$	0 0 0	\$ \$ \$		\$ 2,463,231 \$ 2,362,471 \$ 2,940,554
Margaret K. Dorman(7) Former Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer	2009 2008 2007	\$ \$ \$	505,465 578,012 465,000		0	\$ 0 \$ 1,493,074 \$ 1,372,588	\$		\$ \$ \$	0 391,592 424,126	\$ \$ \$	0 0 0	\$ \$ \$	194,860	\$ 3,369,448 \$ 2,657,538 \$ 2,417,844

<sup>(1)</sup> Performance-based cash bonuses paid pursuant to the AIP are included in column (g).

<sup>(2)</sup> The amounts in column (e) and (f) reflect the grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, based on the closing price of the stock on the date of grant minus the present value of the dividend stream for the vesting period, assuming a 1-year, 2-year, 3-year and 4-year annual discount rate of 0.27%, 0.67%, 1.12% and 1.56%. The target, threshold and maximum value of equity awards granted during 2009 are shown below in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table.

(3) The amounts in column (g) reflect the cash bonus awards paid to the named individuals in 2009 for the 2010 performance year under the AIP, which is discussed in more detail under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis Annual Cash Bonus.

122

### **Table of Contents**

(4) The amounts in column (i) for 2009, which include Smith s contributions to the SERP and post-2004 SERP (disclosued collectively below as the SERP ) and the 401(k) plan and perquisites, are itemized below:

						Life
				erquisite		surance
	SERP	SERP 401(k)		owance(a)	Premiums	
D. Rock	\$ 1,064,366	\$ 18,375	\$	32,800	\$	18,897
J. Yearwood	\$ 143,209	\$ 11,025	\$	32,837	\$	5,631
W. Restrepo	\$ 9,631	\$ 2,523	\$	7,027	\$	438
C. Rivers	\$ 89,303	\$ 17,437(b)	\$	26,500	\$	6,407
N. Mckay	\$ 11,555	\$ 0	\$	41,527	\$	0
B. Dudman	\$ 136,669	\$ 13,475	\$	26,537	\$	5,416
M. Dorman(c)	\$ 134,836	\$ 11,025	\$	18,529	\$	2,079

- (a) These amounts include a specified dollar amount for U.S. residents for an automobile allowance, financial planning and tax preparation, mobile phone, medical reimbursement, club memberships and legal counseling that may be used at the discretion of each individual and a \$3,000 allowance for an annual physical that is paid for by the Company. All named executive officers except Mr. Mckay are U.S. residents. Mr. Mckay receives Smith s non-U.S. resident perquisite package under which he received a U.S.\$3,000 allowance for an annual physical that is paid for by Smith, a foreign service allowance of U.S.\$12,500, a foreign cost of living allowance of U.S.\$7,780, a car allowance of AED12,000 (U.S.\$3,268) and a housing allowance of AED55,000 (U.S.\$14,978). The car allowance and housing allowance were paid to Mr. Mckay in United Arab Emirates Dirham (AED) and converted into U.S. dollars for purposes of this disclosure based on the average conversion rate during the time that Mr. Mckay was employed by Smith in 2009. Perquisites are described in more detail under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis Perquisites.
- (b) Mr. Rivers also participates in the M-I SWACO 401(k) Plan. This amount includes \$3,206 in profit sharing contributions from M-I SWACO.
- (c) Ms. Dorman also received a negotiated settlement of \$2,697,514 pursuant to her separation agreement.
- (5) Mr. Rock is Smith Chairman of the Board, which was an executive officer position during 2009. Effective May 12, 2010, Mr. Rock resigned his employment with Smith, but remains Chairman of the Board.
- (6) Due to an increase in the discount rate used in the Smith International, Inc. Restated Pension Plan, the change in pension value for the 2007 fiscal year was a negative \$752. It is reflected in the above table as being zero change. The change in pension value for 2008 and 2009 were both positive and included in the above table. The restated pension plan is discussed in the narrative to the Pension Benefits Table below.
- (7) Effective October 16, 2009, Ms. Dorman retired from Smith.

123

### **Grants of Plan-Based Awards for Fiscal 2009**

The following table provides information regarding incentive awards made to the named executive officers during the 2009 fiscal year.

	Cront	Under No	ated Possible on-Equity Ind Awards(1)	entive Plan	Under Eq	Awards(2	ntive Plan )	All Other Stock Awards: Number of Shares of	All Other Option Awards: Number of Securities Underlying Options	Exercise or Base Price of Option	Grant Date Fair Value of Stock and Option Awards
Name	Grant Date	Threshold (\$)	Target (\$)	Maximum (\$)	Threshold (#)	Target (#)	Maximum (#)	Units (#)(3)	(#)	Awards (\$/Sh)	Awarus (4)
(a)	(b)	(c)	(d)	(e)	(f)	(g)	(h)	(i)	(i)	(k)	(1)
D. Rock	12/01/09	\$ 312,000	\$ 1,560,000	\$ 3,120,000	, ,	U,	, ,	` '	•	` '	``
J. Yearwood	12/01/09	\$ 200,000	\$ 1,000,000	\$ 2,000,000	84,238	168,476	252,714				\$ 6,749,991
W. Restrepo	12/01/09 10/21/09	/	\$ 292,500	\$ 585,000	13,995	27,989	41,984	23,385			\$ 1,121,379 \$ 750,004
C. Rivers	12/01/09	\$ 99,111	\$ 495,557	\$ 991,114	30,778	61,555	92,333				\$ 2,466,201
N. Mckay	12/01/09 11/02/09		\$ 425,000	\$ 850,000	30,778	61,555	92,333	74,122			\$ 2,466,201 \$ 1,999,997
B. Dudman	12/01/09	\$ 114,920	\$ 574,600	\$ 1,149,200	30,778	61,555	92,333				\$ 2,466,201
M. Dorman		\$									

- (1) Amounts represent possible payouts for the 2009 performance year under the AIP, which is discussed in more detail under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis Annual Cash Bonus. The actual payout amount is included in column (g) of the summary compensation table.
- (2) Amounts represent performance-based restricted stock unit ( PBRSU ) awards made in December 2009 for the 2010 performance year under the LTIP, which is discussed in more detail under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis Annual Restricted Stock Unit Award. If threshold levels of performance are not met, then no shares would be issued.
- (3) Amounts represent new hire time-based restricted stock unit ( TBRSU ) awards made during 2009 under the LTIP, which is discussed in more detail under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis Annual Restricted Stock Unit Award.
- (4) The grant date fair market value was determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, based on the closing price of the stock on the date of grant minus the present value of the dividend stream for the vesting period, assuming a 1-year, 2-year, 3-year and 4-year annual discount rate of 0.27%, 0.67%, 1.12% and 1.56%.

124

# Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End for Fiscal 2009

The following table shows the number of shares covered by exercisable and unexercisable options and unvested restricted stock units held by the named executive officers on December 31, 2009. The market value of unvested awards is based on Smith s closing market price of \$27.17 per share on December 31, 2009.

			Optio	on Awards					Stock	Awards Equity	Equity
Name (a)	Grant Date (b)	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable (c)	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable (d)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Unearned Options (#) (e)	Option Exercise Price (\$) (f)	Option Expiration Date (g)	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#) (h)	SI U H V	Market Value of hares or Units of Stock That Lave Not ested (\$) (i)	Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That have Not Vested (#) (j)	Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$) (k)
D. Rock	12/04/2007 12/07/2004	21,500			\$ 28.13	12/07/2014(2)	24,324(1)	\$	660,883		
J. Yearwood	12/01/2009 12/01/2008 08/25/2008						92,314(4) 4,414(1)		2,508,171 119,928	168,476(3)	\$ 4,577,493
W. Restrepo	12/01/2009 10/21/2009						23,385(5)	\$	635,370	27,989(3)	\$ 760,461
N. Mckay	12/01/2009 11/02/2009						74,122(5)	\$ 2	2,013,895	61,555(3)	\$ 1,672,449
C. Rivers	12/01/2009 12/01/2008 12/01/2008 12/04/2007 12/07/2004 12/09/2004 12/02/2003 12/03/2002 12/12/2002 12/04/2001 12/14/2001 12/05/2000 12/19/2000	9,600 5,550 18,000 16,500 4,000 11,560 5,312 4,680 5,440			\$ 31.65 \$ 19.41 \$ 17.36 \$ 22.57 \$ 11.75 \$ 26.00 \$ 15.38	12/07/2014(2) 12/09/2014(7) 12/02/2013(8) 12/03/2012(9) 12/12/2012(10) 12/04/2011(11) 12/14/2011(12) 12/05/2010(13) 12/19/2010(14)	27,752(4) 12,453(6) 4,398(1)	\$ \$ \$	754,022 338,348 119,494	61,555(3)	\$ 1,672,449
B. Dudman	12/01/2009 12/01/2008 12/01/2008 12/04/2007 12/07/2004	4,800			\$ 28.13	12/07/2014(2)	12,453(6) 27,752(4) 9,884(1)		338,348 754,022 268,548	61,555(3)	\$ 1,672,449
M. Dorman	12/07/2004 12/02/2003	16,000 56,000				10/16/2012(2) 10/16/2012(8)					